
 Mayor & City Council City of College Park 
  3667 Main Street 

 Regular Session Meeting College Park, GA  30337 

 

  http://www.collegeparkga.com 

 ~ Agenda ~ 404-669-3756 (Main) 

 

  Experience College Park 
  Georgia’s Global City 

 

Monday, December 7, 2020 7:30 PM Council Chambers 

Mayor & City Council Page 1 Printed 12/3/2020 

1. Opening Ceremonies 

A. Pledge Of Allegiance 

B. Invocation 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, or Changes to the Agenda 

3. Presentation of Minutes of City Council 

A. Approval of Regular Session Minutes dated November 16, 2020 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Approval of Workshop Session Minutes dated November 16, 2020. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, and Announcements 

A. Expression of appreciation to the Mayor and City Council for their support of the Conley 

Recreation Center Summer Dance Program by Tia Singleton Taylor of the Main Attraction 

Dance Studios & Dancing Towards Sisterhood program. 

5. Remarks of Citizens 

6. Other Business 

A. Update on the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI), billing interface, and other related 

software.   See memorandum dated December 2, 2020 from Director of Power Hugh 

Richardson.  Also, see attached PowerPoint presentation. 

B. Discussion and update on recently adopted ordinances and resolutions.  See memorandum 

dated December 3, 2020 from City Clerk Shavala Moore.  Also, see attached supporting 

documentation. 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda December 7, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 2 Printed 12/3/2020 

7. Public Hearings 

A. Public Hearing to consider a zoning modification presented by the Folia Group to the 

Hawthorne Station PD - Planned Development located at 0 Karen Road to remove the 

zoning conditions for lot width and lot coverage requirements due to a change of builder to 

Rocklyn Homes.  See memorandum dated December 2, 2020 from City Planner Michelle 

Alexander.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. Wards 2 & 4. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

8. Bids, Change Order Requests and Contracts 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the replacement of the 7.5 ton Air 

Handling Unit (AHU-6) at the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Regional 

Headquarters.  See memorandum dated November 18, 2020 from City Manager Terrence 

R. Moore and letter dated November 10, 2020 from Colliers International Commercial 

Property Manager Ron Wilkerson recommending Batchelor & Kimball, Inc. in the amount 

of $27,284.00.  Also, see attached proposal.  This is a budgeted item.  Ward 3. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a solar initiative power purchase 

contract between the City of College Park and the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia 

(MEAG Power) to purchase 2 MW of solar power for 20 years. See memorandum dated 

December 2, 2020 from Power Director Hugh Richardson recommending approval.  Also, 

see attached proposed purchase power contract. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

C. Consideration of and action on a request to adopt a resolution approving a Tax Allocation 

District (TAD) Project within the Six West Development recommended by the Tax 

Allocation District Advisory Council.  See memorandum dated December 3, 2020 from 

Executive Director of the College Park Business and Industrial Development Authority 

Artie Jones, III, recommending adoption of the resolution.  Also, see supporting 

documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a one-year landscape maintenance 

services agreement for the Georgia International Convention Center, The Arena, Main 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda December 7, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 3 Printed 12/3/2020 

Street and detention ponds.  See memorandum dated December 3, 2020 from Convention 

Center Executive Director Mercedes Miller requesting consideration of vendor selection 

approval.  Also, see attached proposed agreements.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

E. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of bids received for professional 

engineering services for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funded projects.  

See memorandum dated December 3, 2020 from Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

Michelle Johnson recommending Metrocorp Development Enterprises, Inc. to provide 

professional engineering services.  Also, see attached proposed professional services 

agreement. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

F. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of an annual service agreement 

between the City of College Park and Motorola Solutions, Inc. for maintenance, support, or 

other services for the Police Public Safety radio system.  See memorandum dated 

December 1, 2020, from Chief of Police Ferman Williford requesting approval in annual 

amount of $174,036.81.  Also, see attached Service Agreement.  This is a budgeted item. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

G. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the Indemnification & Hold 

Harmless Agreement and Right of Way Maintenance Agreement in substantially the same 

form as attached between the City of College Park and the Georgia Department of 

Transportation for implementation of the Main Street College Parklets project.  See 

memorandum dated December 2, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore and City 

Attorney Danielle Matricardi.  Also, see attached agreements. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Unfinished (Old) Business 

A. Consideration of appointments to the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee for the 

update of the City of College Park Comprehensive Plan by the Atlanta Regional 

Commission (ARC).  See memorandum dated December 3, 2020 from City Planner 

Michelle Alexander. 

ACTION: 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda December 7, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 4 Printed 12/3/2020 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

10. New Business 

A. Second Quarter Budget Adjustments Considerations.  See memorandum dated December 3, 

2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore, GICC Director Mercedes Miller, Director of 

Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley & Financial Advisor Ed Wall.  Also, see 

attached supporting documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of the temporary closure of the Georgia International Convention Center and 

the Gateway Center Arena.  See memorandum dated December 2, 2020 from Convention 

Center Executive Director Mercedes Miller. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

11. City Attorney's Report 

12. City Manager's Report 

A. Revisions to the City of College Park’s Acceptable Use of City-Owned Vehicles Policy.  

See memorandum dated December 3, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, 

see attached supporting documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property tax payers.  See memorandum dated 

December 2, 2020 from  Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  Also, 

see attached background information.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 

C. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.  See memorandum 

dated December 3, 2020 from the Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-

Bradley.  Also, see attached background information.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 

13. Report of Mayor and Council 

14. Executive Session 

15. Approval of Executive Session Minutes 

16. Adjournment 



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8411  

Updated: 11/25/2020 1:52 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 25, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Regular Session Minutes dated November 16, 2020 

 

 

See attached Regular Session Minutes dated November 16, 2020. 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 RS111620 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 11/25/2020 9:43 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:52 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/01/2020 11:52 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

3.A

Packet Pg. 5



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 1 of 20  

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

REGULAR SESSION 3 

NOVEMBER 16, 2020 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

  7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick Taylor, Ken 8 

Allen, and Roderick Gay; City Manager Terrence Moore; City Clerk Shavala 9 

Moore; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 10 

 11 

Absent: None.  12 

 13 
1. Opening Ceremonies. 14 

 15 

A. Pledge of allegiance to the flag. 16 

 17 

 B. Invocation by Chaplain Alexander. 18 

 19 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, Or Changes To The Agenda.  None. 20 

 21 

3. Presentation Of Minutes Of City Council. 22 

 23 

A. Regular Session held November 2, 2020. 24 

 25 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve Regular Session Minutes dated November 2, 26 

2020, with correction, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried as follows:  27 

(All Voted Yes). 28 

 29 

 Page 12, line 512 – speaker s/b Mayor Motley Broom…” 30 

 31 

B. Workshop Session held November 2, 2020. 32 

 33 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Workshop Session Minutes dated November 2, 34 

2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.   (All Voted 35 

Yes). 36 

 37 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, And Announcements.  None.   38 

 39 

5. Remarks Of Citizens. 40 

 41 

a. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Barbara Hampton.  While 42 

living in Ward 4, I have had the honor of being a constituent while the Late Councilman 43 

Phillips held the office.  Councilman Phillips served well and diligently until his passing.  44 

When the mandate passed to Councilman Gay, he stepped into a place of challenges that 45 

required him to be thick skinned and strong enough to ignore personal biases against him 46 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 6



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 2 of 20  

because he had pledged to serve our ward putting our interests first no matter the cost.  47 

Day 1 to present he has kept that pledge bringing new business, securing funding to help 48 

those previously denied and using those funds to ensure our ward prospered.  We began 49 

to see beautification, sidewalks, bus stops, and so much more.  Councilman Gay led with 50 

dignity and honor.  We all should be grateful that we had and have a capable committed 51 

leader.             52 

     53 

b. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record additional comments from Barbara 54 

Hampton.  As I embark upon my current transition, new office in a new city, I cannot 55 

allow it to go unsaid the importance of having been a resident of Ward 4 under your 56 

capable leadership.  From the moment you took office, Ward 4 has prospered and 57 

bloomed.  Your forthright approach to leadership by example has been exemplary.  Both 58 

yourself and gracious first lady Pamela set examples we can all be proud of.  The first 59 

family always polite, concerned, and supportive have shown themselves to be Ward 4 60 

champions and advocates for your constituents.  It is my sincere prayer and desire that 61 

the city I love that has helped to shape me with my business and added to my life, will 62 

see another term under your capable guidance.  CEO of Hampton & Associates.            63 

 64 

c. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Jennifer Crooks.  I have 65 

been a resident of Ward 4 of College Park for 6 years.  Growing up I have been familiar 66 

with this neighborhood and the park and the various different businesses and shops in the 67 

Jamestown Plaza.  I am now currently a Master of Social Works at Georgia State 68 

University completing a community analysis of the Jamestown property here in Ward 4.  69 

Through my analysis I interviewed residents, business owners, and stakeholders like 70 

Councilman Gay.   71 

 72 

 As I met with Councilman Gay, he informed me of the rich history of the Jamestown 73 

community and what he views as the community assets and issues.    I was given the 74 

opportunity to hear his goals and visions for the community I currently reside in.  I was 75 

also able to hear from long-term residents that have noticed the changes in the community 76 

over time.  Although this community analysis is an assignment for my class, it sparked a 77 

desire to become an avid participant in my community.  There are so many strengths in 78 

both the Jamestown community and the wide area of Ward 4.  Community involvement 79 

is a crucial aspect to both the development of the individual and the neighborhood.  80 

Without a gathering space or resources, it is difficult to engage members of the 81 

community to invest important resources that they have into the community.                  82 

 83 

 Many of the residents and business owners I had the opportunity to interview expressed 84 

their dismay with the conditions of the Jamestown Plaza and the now vacant shopping 85 

center.  In my interview with Councilman Gay, I brought this concern to his attention.  I 86 

understand that the 18 acres resides in our adjoining Ward 2.  This is the front door of 87 

our residential community.  It is under power lines and intersects to major streets.   88 

 89 

 Please consider use that expands the park, attracts visitors, and serves as an economic 90 

engine for the corridor.  This land could potentially become an asset and strength to the 91 

community if it is developed in a manner that listens to the public’s input and pays careful 92 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 7



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 3 of 20  

attention to the strengths of the community.  I believe this land could be developed into 93 

community centers that provides social services specially tailored to the demographics 94 

and needs of Ward 4 and our City of College Park.  This development could transform 95 

how closely residents identify and interact with the community.  It will provide unity 96 

among residents in the city and attract businesses and organizations that can heighten the 97 

economic status of the area.  This space could be a safe haven for our youth, a meeting 98 

space to boost community involvement, and a way to promote healthy lifestyles for 99 

residents in College Park.                         100 

 101 

d. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Munira Bhai, Owner of 102 

Chevron Food Mart located at 2407 Riverdale Road, College Park, Georgia, 30337.  103 

Across the street from our store is a vacant lot known as the 18 acres, BIDA property.  104 

We have hoped that this land is developed to bring more business and commerce to the 105 

corridor.  We pay a considerable amount of tax and fees to the City of College Park, 106 

Georgia.   107 

 108 

 Councilman Gay has been the Councilmember, and he has told us about several potential 109 

developments for the property.  He told us about a 400-room hotel, a community center, 110 

and a sports complex.  We are disappointed none of these developments ever occurred.  111 

From talking with Councilmember Gay over the years, he has been passionate and 112 

optimistic about development at that land.  He explained that the land sits in the corner 113 

of another ward, but he felt the City leaders all were like-minded and supportive of a 114 

good development or the ones he supported.  The important thing we want to express that 115 

certain development will impede the growth of the area.   116 

 117 

 Councilman Gay works hard to keep large tractor-trailers from entering the community 118 

from this corridor.  What we see is when groups have events at that land, business 119 

increases 100 percent. We hope that whatever is being proposed will be commercial 120 

development that attracts visitors and adds significant value to the Ward 4 community.  121 

I’m excited to learn that maybe a development being proposed may bring visitors and 122 

give the community seniors, apartment dwellers, and visitors a city-wide amenity with 123 

great beautification of the land.  Thank you and regards.        124 

 125 

 e. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Ms. Selissa Jefferson. 126 

 The City of College Park needs to continue the efforts on installing the splash pad in 127 

 Charles Phillips Park.  The community engagement of Ward 4 is not determined by one 128 

 or two residents, but through a total consensus of all residents, and the children and 129 

 family development in the City of College Park matters.  130 

 131 

  It’s appalling that we elected a Mayor and bias Council that do not put all citizens’ 132 

 improvement of our quality of life as first priority.  The current state of economic 133 

 development in Ward 4 is ZERO. And for this Mayor and bias alliance 134 

 Councilmembers to continue to this practice of ignoring the residents in Ward 4 is a 135 

 travesty.  What have we gained under this Mayor’s weak and lack thereof leadership … 136 

 higher taxes, higher utility rates, and debt.  There has been no improvement since the 137 

 last Mayor’s  corruptive regime and still the same practices are continuing against Ward 138 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 8



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 4 of 20  

 4.  We are tired of the discrimination, biases, and alliance council practices.  Ward 4 139 

 wants our splash pad and to expand Charles Phillips Park into the Ward 2 (18 acres) 140 

 into a conservatory park.  For once, try to do the right thing by the single black mothers 141 

 and  force in our community, and rid yourselves of your bias against our community.  142 

 Black families matter.  Ward 4 community stakeholder.                     143 

 144 

  City Clerk Shavala Moore said those are all the comments that were submitted to be 145 

 read into the record.  We then have 2 individuals to sign in; Ms. Louise Harris and 146 

 Kenneth Anderson.   147 

 148 

  Mayor Motley Broom asked Mr. Hicks if Ms. Harris was on the line. 149 

 150 

  Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said I don’t see either one of them on the line.  151 

  There is a cell number here that is unidentified.  There are other callers that have raised 152 

  their hand. 153 

 154 

  Mayor Motley Broom said okay.  We will go to 1 minute for the individuals who wish 155 

  to speak.  How many people do we have Mr. Hicks? 156 

 157 

  Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said we have 3 people.   158 

 159 

f. Stanley Muhammad said I have 2 people to lend me their minutes.  Is that permissible? 160 

 161 

  Mayor Motley Broom said not at this time, sir.  Just 1 minute.   162 

 163 

  Mr. Muhammad said I want to oppose the renewal of the contract of Chief Williford 164 

 who have not demonstrated culture diversity in my personal experience under his 165 

 tyrannical leadership injustice.  And I’m asking the Council & Mayor to choose a police 166 

 officer that reflects the majority of College Park, which is black.  And look around the 167 

 country and see all the white police brutality going on and ask yourself the question:  168 

 Do you want College Park to reflect what is going on around the country such as a 169 

 George Floyd, Ahmed Aubrey, Breonna Taylor, and the injustice that we see all over 170 

 the  country?  He is not qualified.  He does not have a degree as the policy requires all 171 

 black chief officers require a degree.  Why are you allowing the white officer who is racist 172 

in nature to be able to be over the City of College Park; majority black?  Shame on you, 173 

 Council, if you continue this contract.  Thank you very much.                     174 

 175 

g. Ashley Holt said we are looking to rezone our property.   176 

 177 

 Mayor Motley Broom said yes, and we will get to that.  Anyone else who wishes to 178 

 speak for 1 minute that did not sign up before?      179 

          180 

     There were no further comments made.   181 

 182 

6. Other Business. 183 

 184 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 9



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 5 of 20  

A. Discussion and update on recently adopted ordinances and resolutions.   185 

 186 

 There were no comments on this item.    187 

 188 

7. Public Hearings. 189 

 190 

A. Public Hearing to consider the rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low Density 191 

Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District.  Ward 1. 192 

 193 

City Planner Michelle Alexander explained the rezoning request.  The Planning Commission 194 

recommended approval.  We recommend approval with a condition for City Engineer to 195 

approve the location of the driveway that is proposed, should you agree to grant their request.  196 

 197 

 Mayor Motley Broom said the applicant is here.  Mrs. Holt, do you wish to add anything? 198 

 199 

 Mrs. Holt said we have retired, so we are going to move.  It will really improve the property 200 

 values around there.  We love it here, but it’s time to go to the beach. 201 

 202 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we will miss you. 203 

 204 

 Mrs. Holt said thank you. 205 

 206 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the public hearing open. 207 

 208 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked if there was anyone from the public that would like to speak  for 209 

 or against the rezoning of 2154 Rugby Avenue.   210 

 211 

 City Clerk Shavala Moore reiterated the process for citizens to click on the Zoom link for an 212 

 invite to the meeting.    213 

 214 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked Mr. Hicks, do you see anyone who wishes to speak? 215 

 216 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said no, ma’am, I do not.   217 

 218 

 Mayor Motley Broom said all right. 219 

 220 

 Mr. Stanley Muhammad said it sounds like the request of this couple, which is in Ward 1, 221 

 seems like they always get special privileges.  And it sounds like the request is subjective 222 

 and not looking out for the interest of the entire city.  And I don’t think that there is enough 223 

 information available for us to make a real and sound decision.  Why should we rezone our 224 

 city for a couple who desires to move out of our city to a beach?  And then here we are as 225 

 majority black people, we make basic requests that gets ignored by Council and Mayor.  But 226 

 this couple seems privilege that they get on the agenda, and they want to rezone for their 227 

 personal reasons.  And then you are not telling us why we should rezone it as a whole, and 228 

 they are leaving the city.  They no longer want to be a resident of College Park but want to 229 

 rezone it for them and then they leave.  Who benefits? 230 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 10



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 6 of 20  

 Mayor Motley Broom said thank you for that.  The agenda packet is available on-line, so all 231 

 the information that accompanied this particular application is available for the public to 232 

 view, prior to the meeting through our City Clerk’s tab on our website.      233 

   234 

 Mr. Muhammad said I’m asking the question, Mayor. 235 

 236 

 Mayor Motley Broom said the information is available on collegeparkga.com.  Anyone else 237 

 to speak?      238 

 239 

       There were no further comments made. 240 

 241 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the public hearing closed. 242 

 243 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, do Councilmembers have any questions? 244 

 245 

 Councilman Allen said it says the City Engineer will approve the driveway outlines.  Have 246 

 you looked at the driveway options yet, or will that be done at a later date? 247 

 248 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said the proposal is just the conceptual plan.  And the 249 

 proposal was what raised the City Engineer’s condition to say that she needs to see revised 250 

 drawings, and the City Engineer is satisfied that the driveway location is safe and 251 

 appropriate.      252 

 253 

 Councilman Allen said thank you.   254 

 255 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked Ms. Alexander to explain how this came before us. 256 

 257 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said sure.  The agenda packet shows the City Planner’s 258 

 staff report which might help too.  An applicant comes in and they are required to have a 259 

 pre-application.  They meet with the City Planner to see if their property is even eligible to 260 

 be approved.  If that is okay, the application is reviewed by staff, and it becomes advertised.  261 

 That first public hearing takes place before the Planning Commission.  That Body gives the 262 

 community any public comment to speak for or against and state their reasons.  The 263 

 Planning Commission uses their information to make their recommendation, along with the 264 

 staff report, and from there it is advertised again so that the City Council’s hearing is made 265 

 available to the public.   266 

 267 

(City Clerk Shavala Moore puts the Zoning Map on screen) 268 

 269 
 City Planner Michelle Alexander said the adjacent property and the ones behind it would be 270 

 compatible with that size.  Lot sizes and uses are available on the website.  Anyone can call 271 

 the City Planner and we can talk you through any of the cases so you are informed.  Tonight 272 

 you have the public hearing to comment on and to deliberate. 273 

 274 

 Mayor Motley Broom said thank you for walking us through.      275 

 276 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 11



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 7 of 20  

       Mayor Motley Broom asked, does anyone have any questions? 277 

 278 

 Councilman Clay said no.  I got mine answered.  279 

   280 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Planner Michelle Alexander 281 

on the rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low Density Residential to R2 - 282 

Medium Density Residential Zoning District, seconded by Councilman Allen and 283 

motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 284 

 285 

8. Bids, Change Order Requests And Contracts. 286 

 287 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a contract for services for the 288 

design of the bridge to cross Camp Creek tributary between Yale and Columbia Avenue 289 

within the Six West development.  290 

 291 

Director of Economic Development Artie Jones explained the request. 292 

 293 

Director of Economic Development Artie Jones said back in the winter of 2019, Jackson and 294 

I put out an RFP for On-Call Engineering Services.  There were 13 groups that applied, and 295 

there were 4 groups that make the cut, as far as On-Call Engineering Services.  Out of those 296 

4 organizations, Jackson and I put out an RFP for Six West Design Services.  Out of the four 297 

firms that we put out for, there were 3 firms that submitted a proposal.  Within your packet 298 

you will see the ones under the bid tabulation that provided bids for the work.  Jackson and I 299 

are suggesting a recommendation that we move forward with Kimley-Horn for design 300 

services for the Six West Bridge.  We are here to address any questions that you might have. 301 

 302 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I am sure there will be some.  I have a couple, but I will open it 303 

 up to the group.   304 

 305 

 Councilman Clay said I have several.  Go ahead and ask yours, Mayor.    306 

 307 

 Mayor Motley Broom said mine is the elevation of the bridge and how we are planning for 308 

 the 10-year flood year.  But it seems to me that we are having all these exceptional events 309 

 that everyone keeps on saying 100 year flood or 500 year flood.  Is the 10-year plan 310 

 enough?                     311 

 312 

 Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said right now it is 3 culverts, concrete and 313 

 metal culverts that Rhodes Street flows over.  Once we build the bridge, we can remove 314 

 those 3 culverts.  And since I have been here, 16 years now, I have not seen that culvert 315 

 overflow or anything.  We don’t feel that this will be a raise in elevation because we are 316 

 taking out the 3 culverts.            317 

 318 

 Councilman Clay said we talk about issues with the crossings downstream.  And opening up 319 

 these 3 culverts means that the water can pass through more freely.  And I think that is more 320 

 of an area of concern than at this bridge itself.      321 

   322 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 12



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 8 of 20  

 Mayor Motley Broom said I was getting to that.   323 

 324 

 Councilman Clay said so, what do we do about that?  And that came into a question that I 325 

 had, the no rise condition must be obtained on the property downstream.  And it said, well, if 326 

 it is infeasible, then it would not.  On packet page 85, the hydrologic and hydraulic 327 

 approach (reading).   So, that is the answer I got from them, and I paraphrased.  But that still 328 

 doesn’t answer my question.  It still sounds like we can have impact downstream, and that 329 

 means more cost presumably.  Can anybody  comment on that?       330 

 331 

 Mr. Mike Lobdell, Kimley-Horn, said if it is down towards the golf course that will just 332 

 need to be documented in the map provision with FEMA.   333 

 334 

 Councilman Clay asked, is there a cost impact, or is it as simple as saying we documented 335 

 that these crossings are going to flood out?  Or, do we say, no, we have to build the crossing 336 

 higher, or what?    337 

    338 

 Mr. Lobdell said the review with FEMA will be about $6,500.00 to $8,000.00.  That is 339 

 going to be part of the hydraulic study that we are doing as part of the City’s guidelines.   340 

 341 

 Councilman Clay said and you gave me those numbers later on, but that is all that is 342 

 required.  We don’t need to worry about the fact that we are going to overflow the 343 

 crossing, or what have you.   344 

     345 

 Mr. Lobdell said we needed to determine at that point where it goes under Camp Creek 346 

 Parkway.                 347 

 348 

 Councilman Clay said what I am trying to get at is, do we have any idea at this point of what 349 

 the financial impact is?  For example, do we have to dig up Camp Creek Parkway and put 350 

 more capacity for flow underneath that?                         351 

 352 

 Mr. Lobdell said not Camp Creek Parkway, but maybe finding a detention above the bridge 353 

 or downstream to mitigate  whatever that would be.  354 

 355 

 Councilman Clay said what I am trying to get at is:  I don’t want a big surprise later on in 356 

 this project and that we have to spend $2 million to do something major at Camp Creek, the 357 

 road.   358 

 359 

 Mr. Lobdell said understandable.  We won’t know that until we do the modeling itself.  It 360 

 wouldn’t be the case with designing the entire project and then surprising you at the end.  361 

 362 

 Councilman Clay said that’s where I’m going.  How soon are you going to have that done? 363 

 364 

 Mr. Lobdell said that would be the first order of business, a 6-week process to get that 365 

 modeling done.    366 

 367 

  Councilman Clay said so first of the year. 368 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 13



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 9 of 20  

 Mr. Lobdell said yes, sir.   369 

 370 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, do any other members of Council have any questions? 371 

 372 

 Councilman Allen said it will be a 2 lane and then expanding it into a 4 lane.   373 

 374 

 Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said that’s correct. 375 

 376 

 Councilman Allen asked Mr. Myers, can you explain the reasons why we don’t do it at one 377 

 time?  378 

  379 

 Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said it will cost us more money.   And 2 lanes 380 

 will be coming off of Camp Creek Parkway, and the bridge is designed to be able to add 381 

 additional lanes as the development grows.  We felt it would be better to save the money up 382 

 front.  Once we come back for construction costs, then we can talk about the additional 2 383 

 lanes.      384 

 385 

 Councilman Clay said I looked through this document pretty carefully.  They are really 386 

 going to build half a bridge.  In other words, they are going to have the crown, the high part 387 

 of the road will be in the center, so it will slope to the east.  And then as traffic demand goes 388 

 up and more action goes on, they will knock out the wall, the parapet, on the west side of the 389 

 bridge, let’s say, and they will then build the other half with the sloping down to the west.             390 

 391 

 Councilman Allen said I just wonder how much it would cost to do another lane, rather than 392 

 do 4 lanes right now.  But with the money short, we may just do the 2 lanes right now.   393 

 394 

 Councilman Clay said that’s what we agreed to in the past was to bring in 2 lanes to start.  395 

 It’s a cash flow issue.  Removing the parapet is not a major thing. 396 

 397 

 Mayor Motley Broom said this RFQ was solicited to our On-Call Engineering firms; is that 398 

 correct?    399 

 400 

 Director of Economic Development Artie Jones said yes, ma’am.     401 

 402 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, is there any issue that this did not go out broader, like a 403 

 bid process?  404 

 405 

      Director of Economic Development Artie Jones said I will let Jackson speak to that. 406 

 407 

Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said we did a process where we advertised 408 

through the Purchasing Department. We picked these firms so we would save the City time 409 

and money by not having to keep spending money on advertising.  So, we came back and 410 

asked Mayor & Council for permission to pick these engineering firms so that we could go 411 

and use the Brooks Act and talk to them and came up with the best price by what we needed 412 

to go forth and do with the new Six West and negotiate the best deal. 413 

 414 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 14



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 10 of 20  

 Mayor Motley Broom asked City Attorney, are we good legally? 415 

 416 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said yes, ma’am, I think we are good.   417 

 418 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, anyone else have any more questions? 419 

 420 

 Councilman Clay said on packet page 88, top paragraph (reading).  That may be obvious to 421 

 everybody, but I think we ought to be aware of that.  And then at the bottom of the page 422 

 (reading), and I asked, what are the ballpark tasks for surveys and mitigation bank credits 423 

 that might be needed?  And it turns out that the answer is that further studies are not 424 

 anticipated despite that concern.      425 

 426 

 Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said that is because we are crossing in a 427 

 stream right now.  We are in the stream.   428 

 429 

 Councilman Clay said my next question I got a satisfactory answer to, so no point going 430 

 through that.   431 

 432 

 Councilman Clay said the one thing I didn’t get an answer to is packet page 93.  I got an 433 

 answer, but it didn’t seem to quite answer the question.  The chart in the middle where we 434 

 talk about the cost, the cost of the first 5 items are $261,000.00, if I add them up.  How 435 

 much could this cost be expected to increase based on adverse findings that require 436 

 additional study?  And the answer to that question was $8,000.00 for the coordination with 437 

 FEMA.  And then another study would be the environmental study that would be about 438 

 $10,000.00.  But is it likely that there will be an environmental study?  Can Mike answer 439 

 that? 440 

 441 

 Mr. Lobdell said we don’t anticipate it.  That was something we did look at as part of the 442 

 Economic Development Grants this summer.  They don’t foresee any protected species 443 

 being in there or anything out of the ordinary, other than what is already included in this 444 

 proposal. 445 

 446 

 Councilman Clay said okay.  Good.   447 

 448 

 Councilman Clay said on packet page 96, item 4 at the bottom (reading), my question, 449 

 and maybe it is for the City Attorney, will sales tax be required?  And the answer that I got 450 

 from Kimley-Horn was no sales tax will be on the invoice.  But when we were building the 451 

 Arena, we had issues with sales tax.  So, do we have to pay the sales tax regardless of 452 

 whether it is on the invoice?       453 

       Mayor Motley Broom asked, wasn’t that in regard to materials? 454 

 455 

 Councilman Clay said with the Arena it was materials.   456 

 457 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we are paying for a service here.    458 

 459 

        City Manager Terrence Moore said is there tax on materials for services, no. 460 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 15



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 11 of 20  

 Councilman Clay said on packet page 97 (reading), my question was:  Do we get the 461 

 electronic files in?  Are we going to be charged for the files, or can we just get them and 462 

 replicate them as we need to do?  And the answer was that they would be included at no 463 

 additional cost.  So, those are my questions.            464 

 465 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, anyone else have any other questions or comments? 466 

 467 

 There were no further questions or comments made.   468 

 469 
ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Economic 470 

Development Artie Jones III on a contract for services for the design of the bridge to 471 

cross Camp Creek tributary between Yale and Columbia Avenue within the Six West 472 

development, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 473 

 474 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a one (1) year extension of the 475 

current annual contract agreement with Utility Services Incorporated for the City of 476 

College Park’s two (2) elevated water tanks located at W. Fayetteville Road and 477 

Charlestown Drive.  Wards 2 and 3. 478 

 479 

 Councilman Allen asked, was the amount the same last year, or less this year? 480 

 481 

 Director of Public Works Mike Mason said it is less this year.    482 

 483 

Councilman Allen asked, did they have any concerns last year? 484 

 485 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said no, sir. 486 

 487 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Public Works Mike 488 

Mason on a one (1) year extension of the current annual contract agreement with 489 

Utility Services Incorporated for the City of College Park’s two (2) elevated water 490 

tanks located at W. Fayetteville Road and Charlestown Drive, seconded by 491 

Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 492 

 493 

9. Unfinished (Old) Business.  None.   494 

 495 

10. New Business. 496 

 497 

A. Consideration of and action on revisions to the City Ordinance - Post-Development 498 

Stormwater Management for New Development and Redevelopment to improve the City’s 499 

ability to control the quality and quantity of stormwater runoff discharged from development.   500 

 501 

City Engineer Loretta Washington explained the revisions to the City Ordinance related to 502 

stormwater runoff discharged from developments. 503 

 504 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions for Ms. Washington? 505 

 506 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 16



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 12 of 20  

 Councilman Allen asked, does it include Six West? 507 

 508 

 City Engineer Loretta Washington said it does include Six West.  It does offer feasibility 509 

 and opportunities. 510 

 511 

 Councilman Gay said Ms. Washington, we went on a site visit with Public Works and the 512 

 Stormwater Director a couple of weeks ago.  We visited 4 tributaries in our city in Ward 4.  513 

 Will this study by any chance address all the water tributaries or creeks in the city?  Because 514 

 the biggest issue is that all the residents were told we have to go back and check to see if we 515 

 are responsible for this body of water. 516 

 517 

 City Engineer Loretta Washington said the City is responsible for the runoff for the quality 518 

 and quantity.  So, it depends on the actual creek or whatever that we could take a look at.   519 

 520 

 Councilman Gay said so this revision to redevelop will address all the creeks where 521 

 stormwater is channeled. 522 

   523 

     City Engineer Loretta Washington said yes.  All stormwater is to be addressed, the runoff 524 

 and the water quality.   525 

 526 

 Councilman Gay asked Mike Mason, can you help me with my question? 527 

 528 

 Director of Public Works Mike Mason said this ordinance is related to the development.  If I 529 

 build an office building, parking lots and shopping malls, for the stormwater runoff you 530 

 have to put in reservoirs to improve the quality.  They can’t have cars parked on the lot 531 

 where oil and antifreeze can mix with the local streams.  It requires that surface runoff 532 

 measures are taken to provide the quality of the stormwater runoff.      533 

   534 

 Councilman Gay said okay.  535 

 536 

 Director of Public Works Mike Mason said this is totally different from what we looked at. 537 

 538 

 Councilman Gay said thank you.  539 

 540 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, is there a motion? 541 

 542 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Engineer Loretta 543 

Washington on revisions to the City Ordinance - Post-Development Stormwater 544 

Management for New Development and Redevelopment to improve the City’s ability 545 

to control the quality and quantity of stormwater runoff discharged from 546 

development, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 547 

 548 

B. Consideration of and action on a request to approve City Holidays for Calendar Year 2021. 549 

 550 

ACTION:  Councilman Allen moved to approve a request from City Manager Terrence R. 551 

Moore on the City Holidays for Calendar Year 2021.  See memorandum dated 552 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 17



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 13 of 20  

November 9, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore, seconded by Councilman 553 

Clay and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 554 

 555 

C. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the City of College Park Mayor 556 

and City Council Meetings schedule for calendar year 2021. 557 

 558 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions? 559 

 560 

 Councilman Clay said it looks good to me. 561 

 562 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Manager Terrence R. Moore 563 

on the City of College Park Mayor and City Council Meetings schedule for calendar 564 

year 2021, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 565 

 566 

11. City Attorney’s Report. 567 

 568 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said at the last meeting, we were looking at the City 569 

 Charter.  We talked about it in the context of term limits.  I am preparing something to 570 

 deliver to the Mayor & Council.  As you may recall, I suggested that while we were “under 571 

 the hood,” so to speak, of doing a Charter amendment as it relates to term limits that we pick 572 

 some other things that needed to be fixed.  Danielle Matricardi and I were looking at things 573 

 that are clearly problematic that need to be addressed while we are addressing this issue as 574 

 it relates to term limits.  I can just do a report that says, we think A, B, C and D needs to be 575 

 fixed, or I can talk about it at a workshop session.  Whatever your pleasure.  When we 576 

 looked up under the hood, there was more than we recommend be fixed than we initially 577 

 thought.        578 

 579 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, when would you anticipate that you would be able to have it to 580 

 us? 581 

 582 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said before the next meeting.   583 

 584 

 Mayor Motley Broom said if we could get that as far ahead of time as possible, then we may 585 

 be able to make the determination whether or not it needs to be on the agenda for the next 586 

 meeting.  Is it possible to get it at the end of the week?     587 

 588 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said yes.   589 

 590 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we will look for that.       591 

 592 

12. City Manager’s Report. 593 

 594 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said above and beyond A and B, consideration for the 595 

 Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee appointments as reported this past Friday in the 596 

 information letter.  We are involved in a time frame to take the City of College Park into 597 

 early fall of 2021 for the necessary fund Comprehensive Plan Update.    598 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 18



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 14 of 20  

A.  Consideration of appointments for the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee.  599 

  600 

 Councilman Clay said if we are going to have appointees from each member of Mayor & 601 

 Council, when would you like to have those names? 602 

 603 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said by the December 7, 2020 meeting.  This evening is an 604 

 introductory commentary about the prospect.  605 

  606 

  Councilman Clay said if you are talking about appointees, in addition to the Planning 607 

 Commission, I can give you a name tonight.   608 

 609 

 Mayor Motley Broom said the way I see it is someone on the Planning Commission Chair 610 

 would serve, correct?     611 

 612 

       City Planner Michelle Alexander said it is proposed to have the Chair, then representatives 613 

 from other key organizations, and then each of you identify who you wish.   And the thought 614 

 is that the Chair would come to each of the committee meetings, but then report back 615 

 regularly to the Planning Commission and solicit from their membership.   616 

 617 

 Councilman Clay asked, do we have a consensus or approval of the list of representatives 618 

 that are on the Planning Commission as Chair, someone from BIDA and Main Street, Chair 619 

 or representative, et cetera, et cetera? 620 

 621 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said correct.  And each of your individual appointees, and 622 

 consider all the names in the hat for approval of the whole list.      623 

 624 

 Councilman Clay said I think the list looks good to me, the various representatives.  I don’t 625 

 know about anybody else. 626 

 627 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we have time to think about it.  If no one has anything else to 628 

 say, we will keep on moving with the City Manager’s report. 629 

  630 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said above and beyond what we have asked, I would like to 631 

 briefly mention the fact that normally the City of College Park would have a traditional 632 

 holiday lighting which would occur 2 weeks from today, November 30, 2020.  Michelle 633 

 Johnson and I were discussing a couple of ways to host that event safely.  So, that’s the 634 

 other activity that would involve a public gathering of sorts here at City Hall.  So, my 635 

 interest this evening is to ascertain any thoughts, interests or concerns that you may have as 636 

 a Body.  So, if you would, please.        637 

 638 

     Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said we are looking for a virtual 639 

 light-up, some entertainment prior, and then have Mayor & Council be there for the light-640 

 up, but not have our typical gathering.  Or, look at canceling like what we had done for the 641 

 parade.  So, those are some of the options we were looking at for guidance on how 642 

 everybody feels on that.   643 

 644 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 19



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 15 of 20  

       Councilman Allen asked, how many people normally show up for this event? 645 

 646 

 Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said lots of children show up, and  647 

 they are  close together.   648 

 649 

 Councilman Allen said I would be inclined to cancel it for this year.     650 

 651 

    Councilman Clay said if there is a large gathering, just like I wasn’t at the Rekindle Main 652 

 Street Concert the other night, I won’t be at this one.  It will be the first one I have missed.  653 

 I’m just not going to take the risk of getting into a large gathering.   654 

 655 

 Mayor Motley Broom said that is 2 no’s.  Councilmen Taylor and Gay? 656 

 657 

 Councilman Taylor said we need to do something, but with all the cases going on we should 658 

 cancel it also. 659 

 660 

 Councilman Gay said my answer is a little bit going away from the real question.  Michelle, 661 

 I would like to see us invest in better Christmas decorations.   Maybe in the next year. 662 

  663 

 Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said I had a discussion with City 664 

 Manager.  I picked out a beautiful tree and working with Councilman Allen’s wife to get 665 

 new decorations, but I think that is going to have to be put off until a better time. 666 

 667 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked Councilman Gay, what do you think about the actual lighting?    668 

 669 

 Councilman Gay said I’m on the fence for the lighting.  I’m going to a lot of events that are 670 

 less safe than this event.  I don’t know.  Ms. Claus, maybe we can do something with her 671 

 and broadcast it on the City’s website and on the Tron-Board.  Maybe she can do a robocall 672 

 where we can wish everybody a Merry Christmas.  We still need to honor the holiday season 673 

 in some way.                                  674 

 675 

 Councilman Clay said what if we filmed Santa and Ms. Claus coming in on the truck.  676 

 Wouldn’t have anybody there.  We could film that and have a virtual meeting, and we could 677 

 have the actual turning on of the lights at the virtual meeting.  So, it is partly pre-recorded 678 

 and partly virtual meeting, and the Mayor flips the switch during the virtual meeting.  679 

 680 

 Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said that was our plan, if we were 681 

 not going to have it in person.      682 

 683 

 Councilman Allen said I have no problem with that. 684 

 685 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, will that work for everyone?  I’m seeing head nods.  That 686 

 seems to be the consensus.  Let’s go in that direction.  We will have a modified celebration, 687 

 but still find a way to usher in the season.  Thank you.     688 

        689 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said I yield.  690 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 20



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 16 of 20  

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property taxpayers.   691 

 692 

 There was no discussion on this item.  693 

 694 

C. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.   695 

 696 

 There was no discussion on this item.  697 

 698 

13. Report Of Mayor And Council. 699 

 700 

 Councilman Allen – said I want to wish everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 701 

 702 

 Councilman Allen said our businesses are really trying hard.  Get out and shop our local 703 

 businesses.  They are all in need.  704 

 705 

 Councilman Allen said we’ve talked about budgets and reducing spending, and I just 706 

 wonder what it would take if the Mayor & Council took a slight cut in pay.  Winston, what 707 

 would be entailed if we did that?  Or, do we need to do it voluntarily, or just a little bit, or 708 

 how does that work?  Do we have to change the By-laws?     709 

 710 

 Mayor Motley Broom said our salary is set by the Ordinance, correct? 711 

 712 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said yes, ma’am.  You could, by Ordinance, adjust that.  713 

 State Law relates to how you increase the salary of a councilperson.  There is a whole 714 

 complicated process for doing that.  To reduce your salary for 6 months or whatever the case 715 

 might be, I think you can do an amendment to the Ordinance.         716 

 717 

 Councilman Allen asked, what if I wanted to reduce my salary just a little bit, would I have 718 

 to go through that, or could I just go to Althea and have them change mine for the next 6 719 

 months or whatever?   720 

 721 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said I think it would be a simple matter.  There would not 722 

 be a legal problem with an individual councilmember electing to have his or her salary 723 

 reduced for a period of time.  And I don’t think it requires action of the Mayor & Council on 724 

 an individual basis.  You could do that at your leisure. 725 

 726 

 Mayor Motley Broom said just an administrative matter. 727 

 728 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said yes, ma’am. 729 

 730 

 Councilman Gay – said I have 7 things, and I don’t want to kill the mood.  It’s been a very 731 

 good night for all.  Can I get an update on the speed humps Chief?     732 

 733 

       Police Chief Ferman Williford said it’s a process.   734 

            735 

 Councilman Gay asked, can you be more specific? 736 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 21



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 17 of 20  

       Police Chief Ferman Williford said we are waiting for them to be produced.  They are 737 

 manufactured in New York.   738 

 739 

 Councilman Gay said thank you.   740 

            741 

    Councilman Gay said the BIDA Agenda, this is not for tonight, but I would like to discuss 742 

 how that agenda could be more in line with the City Council’s agenda.  The reason is, when 743 

 I went on the website, on the public part of the agenda, it wasn’t on the website.  I called the 744 

 communications director and he felt that that is provided by Economic Development, but it 745 

 wasn’t on the agenda.  And I wish there could be a public comment just so it may make 746 

 BIDA more transparent to mimic the council meeting, especially now that we are on Zoom. 747 

 748 

 Director of Economic Development Artie Jones said I can speak with the BIDA 749 

 Chairperson.  In the BIDA By-laws we have an agenda format.  It does not have a section 750 

 that provides audience to the public.  The BIDA Chairperson can elect to have a portion of 751 

 the agenda set aside for public comment, but that is still at the leadership of the BIDA 752 

 Chairperson.               753 

 754 

 Councilman Gay said okay.  Third thing, tractor-trailers, if you go to Washington Road 755 

 tomorrow and Camp Creek, which is East Point, you can see 7 tractor-trailers parked in a 756 

 parking lot.  But the point I am making is they are now starting to park there for overnight 757 

 stay.  And I have asked already to look at it from an ordinance standpoint.  If you go on Old 758 

 National, you will see tractor-trailers parked in the Service Merchandise plaza.  They are 759 

 parked on a stopover. 760 

 761 

 Councilman Gay said to the 18 acres, we are in close proximity to the airport.  This is 762 

 something we have to live with, but we have to put in measures or a balance because they 763 

 come down White City Road.  I have gotten calls from residents that say the trucks are out 764 

 here.  Roosevelt Highway is a 2-lane highway, and now with Amazon trucks, we allow them 765 

 to park on Sullivan Road.  There are almost 2,000 Amazon trucks.  We have to be mindful 766 

 of the communities in Wards 2 and 4.  And then you will see them coming up Main Street.  767 

 We have to make that a part of our Strategic Plan.            768 

  769 

 Councilman Gay said my next comment is on Director Search.  I would like for us to move 770 

 forward as a city as we develop our Strategic Plan, that we have great new leadership.  We 771 

 need people that are ambitious.  I would like for us to look at using a search for all of our 772 

 directors.  I ran an Occupational Health Care practice for 15 years, and I hired medical 773 

 doctors, health care administrators, you name it.  So my point is:  It makes a difference when 774 

 you bring people to your organization that has skill sets that can bring perspectives because 775 

 they have been in other cities.  I love the fact that we are comfortable with our coworkers 776 

 who have been here for some time and put them in these positions, but I don’t want us to 777 

 lose the opportunity to seek other talent that is out there to bring new skills and leadership 778 

 and ideas to our organization.  So, I’m asking that before any other directors are hired, or 779 

 chiefs, or what have you; that we do our best to give other well-qualified individuals the 780 

 opportunity to show what value they can bring to our city.                 781 

 782 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 22



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 18 of 20  

 Councilman Gay said the city has turned purple.  Can you explain what is going on with the 783 

 purple lights? 784 

 785 

  Director of Power Hugh Richardson said that is a good question.  These lights are defective, 786 

 and they are going to be replaced.  The phosphorous is breaking down after 2 years.  The 787 

 company is going to pay for them to be replaced.  Hopefully, in the next few weeks we will 788 

 have them replaced, about 50 of them.   789 

 790 

 Councilman Gay said that’s all I have.   791 

 792 

 Councilman Clay – said our mail service is terrible on my side of Lyle Avenue.  I can’t 793 

 speak for other parts of the city.  Because we are on the even side of the street, the mail 794 

 truck goes out to the west, and then comes back to the east on the even side of the street.  795 

 But there are nights that the truck never comes back.  There are nights we don’t get our mail 796 

 until 10:30 p.m.  Last week, in particular, November 6th and 7th, we got no mail.  As far as I 797 

 know, the other people on the other side of the street did get their mail.  Last week there 798 

 were a couple of nights that we didn’t get mail again.  On the Monday following the 6th and 799 

 7th, I went out and found mail in our box.  And I thought, well, that is unusual because the 800 

 mail truck doesn’t get here until 7:30 or 8:00 at night.  I brought the mail in and guess what, 801 

 the mail truck came by later that night.  I don’t know how that mail got into our box.  I’m 802 

 just giving you that as an example.  We have had the Postmaster come to our council 803 

 meeting in the past to explain. 804 

 805 

 Councilman Allen said it is happening over here as well.  We have gotten mail as late as 806 

 7:00, 8:00 at night.  I know my in-laws that live in your ward this side of Mercer have had 807 

 the same problem.       808 

 809 

 Councilman Clay said it’s good to hear that it is not just our problem.  It’s a problem with 810 

 the system.  That might be something we can bring to the attention of the postal authority.      811 

               812 

     Mayor Motley Broom said I’m happy to do that on behalf of everyone, if you like.     813 

 814 

 Councilman Gay asked, is your mail out of the Godby Road Station? 815 

   816 

 Councilman Clay said I don’t know.   817 

 818 

 Councilman Allen said our guy that delivers comes out of Godby. 819 

 820 

 Councilman Gay said I stood in line on Godby Road to get in there about 30 minutes.  I 821 

 called one of my  buddies that works on Crown Road (Atlanta).  He said they don’t have 822 

 enough drivers due to COVID-19.  It’s a low staff situation. 823 

 824 

 Councilman Clay said that is good to know.  We had problems long before COVID.  I think 825 

 COVID made it worse.  Would it be beneficial to write a letter to our Senator? 826 

 827 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 23



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 19 of 20  

 Councilman Clay said I received a couple of messages from people who want to pay their 828 

 bills on-line, and I know we have a technical issue.  I see Althea on the call.  Do we have 829 

 any idea when they are going to get the technical issue resolved? 830 

 831 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said I’m not sure.  I receive bi-832 

 weekly updates from the IT Department.  Customers can still pay their bill on-line; however, 833 

 they cannot view their billing history.   834 

 835 

 Councilman Clay said I will have to go back and check the messages I received.  I was 836 

 under the impression that they could not do anything.  It may have just been the billing 837 

 history.   838 

 839 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said the gentleman said he was 840 

 trying to see his billing history.  It wasn’t about making a payment.   841 

 842 

 Councilman Clay said I got another one today.  843 

   844 

 Councilman Clay said the purple lights, Power said we are going to replace those lights, 845 

 right? 846 

 847 

 Director of Power Hugh Richardson said that is the plan.   848 

 849 

 Councilman Clay said it’s not going to get better with time.   850 

 851 

 Director of Power Hugh Richardson said out of the 2,400 lights we had, we have 650 that 852 

 were from that company. 853 

 854 

 Councilman Clay said this is for Michael Hicks.  We need to be able to add categories to the 855 

 I-Notify application.  It’s a great app.  I have launched about 6 or 7 issues.  Now you have 856 

 one for traffic lights.  You need one for reporting street lights that are out.  But more than 857 

 that, we need a mechanism for supporting new categories, or adding new categories.  And I 858 

 know Councilman Gay is big on this issue as well.  I am sure we can suggest some new 859 

 categories as time goes.  So, is there a mechanism for doing that?      860 

 861 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said yes, sir, we can create those.  I just haven’t 862 

 done them yet.  863 

 864 

 Councilman Taylor – said I want to thank Councilman Allen for the coat that he donated.  865 

 And I want to try to do a Coat Drive.  There are a lot of people that are in need of coats.    866 

    867 

   Councilman Taylor said get out and vote in January.  That’s all I have.    868 

  869 

 Mayor Motley Broom – said get out and vote in December.  For parts of our city that are in 870 

 Senate District 39 and the 5th Congressional District, the runoff for the remaining time in the 871 

 Late Congressman Lewis’ term, those 2 races are happening on December 1, 2020.  Just 872 

 keep that in mind.                   873 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 24



Regular Session 11/16/20 Page 20 of 20  

       Mayor Motley Broom said I wanted to thank the Main Street Merchants, Renee Coakley, 874 

 Grace McPhillips, and the Recreation & Cultural Arts Department for all their hard work on 875 

 the Rekindle College Park Program this past weekend.   It was a lovely event that spanned the 876 

 entire weekend, and just a great opportunity for people to get out and safely distance and 877 

 have the opportunity to see each other and enjoy some lovely music and art.  Thank 878 

 everyone for all their efforts they put towards that.   879 

 880 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we restarted our Neighborhood Watch in a more robust way.  881 

 Keep an eye out later on this week.  We have a place on the website if you are interested in 882 

 participating.  It is starting back up in the beginning of 2021.  Sign up if you are interested.  883 

 That is all I have.       884 

 885 

14. Executive Session.   886 

 887 

15. Approval of Executive Session Minutes. 888 

 889 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Executive Session Minutes dated November 16, 890 

2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted 891 

Yes). 892 

 893 

16. Adjournment. 894 

 895 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the Regular Session adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 896 

 897 

 898 

 899 

 900 

 901 

 902 

 903 

 904 

 905 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 906 

                     907 

              908 

_________________________ 909 

             Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 910 

 911 

 912 

 913 

 914 

ATTEST:   915 

 916 

 917 

________________________ 918 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 919 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 25



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8410  

Updated: 11/25/2020 1:51 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 25, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Workshop Session Minutes dated November 16, 2020 

 

 

See attached Workshop Session Minutes dated November 16, 2020. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 WSS111620 (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 11/25/2020 9:42 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:51 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/01/2020 11:52 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

3.B

Packet Pg. 26



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 1 of 7 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

WORKSHOP SESSION 3 

NOVEMBER 16, 2020 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

  7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick 8 

Taylor, Ken Allen, and Roderick Gay; City Manager Terrence Moore; 9 

City Clerk Shavala Moore; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 10 

 11 

Absent: None.  12 

 13 

Mayor Motley Broom called the workshop session to order at 5:01 p.m. 14 

 15 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to take up executive session to discuss personnel, 16 

pending litigation, and the potential purchase of real estate, seconded by 17 

Councilman Allen and motion carried.  Councilman Taylor not present for 18 

the vote.     19 

 20 

(Councilman Taylor joined in via Zoom after the vote for executive session) 21 

 22 

Mayor & Council entered into executive session at 5:02 p.m. 23 

 24 

The workshop session reconvened at 6:00 p.m.  25 

 26 

   1. Direction to proceed with ancillary interdepartmental expenditure budget 27 

adjustments.  28 

 29 
City Manager Terrence Moore said this is a fairly brief update in response to a 30 

substantive dialogue we had during the workshop session on November 2, 2020 relative 31 

to budget financial issues and challenges, whereas Enterprise Funds are moving in a 32 

fairly decent direction.  We can’t say the same for the General Fund and all other 33 

considerations relative to finance and budget for the City of College Park.   34 

 35 

City Manager Terrence Moore said my interest tonight is to advise Mayor & Council that 36 

arrangements are currently being executed to review each department, particularly each 37 

department that is very much dependent on General Fund revenues to support their 38 

operations, to essentially begin the process of making reductions administratively.  This 39 

will culminate in a mid-year budget adjustment consideration, in which Mayor & Council 40 

will be able to receive a comprehensive summary relative to adjustments that have been 41 

made administratively, as well as additional adjustments you all would be able to 42 

authorize via the aforementioned mid-year budget adjustment process.  So, essentially a 43 

number of decreases, if you will, to help us do the absolute best we can to manage the 44 

current state of affairs.   45 

 46 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 27



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 2 of 7 

City Manager Terrence Moore said additionally, we look forward to working with Ed 47 

Wall relative to the possibility of refinancing existing debt to work to achieve cost 48 

savings in that regard as well.  That is a separate transaction from the aforementioned 49 

budget adjustment process or expenditure budget adjustment process.  My interest was to 50 

provide you all with a public update in terms of the efforts we are making to be in the 51 

absolute best place possible.  This is the process in the next few weeks culminated with a 52 

natural series of recommended adjustments thereafter.   53 

 54 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you.  Any questions? 55 

 56 

There were no questions or comments made. 57 

 58 

  2. Considerations regarding street paving criteria recommendations and 59 

protocol.  60 

 61 
Director of Public Works Mike Mason said this is a follow up to our discussion that we 62 

had in regard to the criteria that is used in Public Works/Highway Street Division for 63 

selecting streets.  There are two sets of funds that we combine; one is City Funds that are 64 

budgeted, and the second one is the Local Maintenance Improvement Grant (LMIG) that 65 

the department applies for with the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT).  66 

How much money we have dictates how many roads we will be able to pave.   67 

 68 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said so, with that being said, we come up with a 69 

list of our worst roads within the city.  Since we have limited funds, we try to spread 70 

projects around between the 4 wards.  It usually consists of a large project, or several 71 

smaller projects.    Any questions? 72 

 73 

Councilman Gay said thank you City Manager for putting the item on the agenda.  What 74 

got a lot of calls to me was East Point paved a considerable amount of their roads.   75 

Maybe down the road we need to look at allocating more transportation tax money for 76 

streets.  How do you figure we can get more roads paved given our budget Mike?        77 
 78 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said it will take additional funding.  There was 79 

some money based on TSPLOST that we can look at and select roads to be put on that list 80 

for future projects.  I’m not sure what funding East Point had, or if they put more towards 81 

the General Fund.  I can’t speak to that, but I can inquire and find out what funding 82 

sources they used to pave the number of roads that you mentioned.   83 

 84 

Councilman Gay asked, has our Mayor & Council done our selection of the lottery of 85 

streets for the upcoming TSPLOST?   86 

  87 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said I’m not certain about the TSPLOST.   88 

 89 

Mayor Motley Broom said I think the answer is no on that one because the TSPLOST 90 

conversations are starting next year.  I think the renewal is either in 2021 or 2022. 91 

 92 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 28



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 3 of 7 

Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said it starts between January and April.  93 

Then we do a referendum, and it is voted on in December and goes to the following year. 94 

 95 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, what is the level of specificity that we have to achieve, in 96 

terms of that list?  I know we are locked into that list, once the voters hopefully would 97 

approve it.  Does it benefit us, or is it a detriment to talk about - - How specific should we 98 

get with those projects when we are talking about the list?       99 

   100 

Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said after going through it the first time, 101 

we should utilize more of a quick response, then we are not locked into a specific street.  102 

Doing it this way we are more open to being able to move the funds to where we need to 103 

concentrate on.   104 

 105 

Mayor Motley Broom said I know that there are companies that do it that will actually 106 

evaluate all of the roadways within a certain area and grade those roads in terms of their 107 

ability to be viable for how many ever years going forward.  I thought I read that in the 108 

workshop packet that that might be a consideration. 109 

 110 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said that is one of the things that we have 111 

discussed is hiring an independent engineering firm to come in the city and evaluate all 112 

the roads and give us a list.   113 

 114 

Councilman Clay said that’s an excellent idea.   115 

 116 

Councilman Allen asked, do they give you the cost to repair that road? 117 

 118 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said we can include that in our RFP.   119 

 120 

Mayor Motley Broom said we have anecdotal evidence.  We all get feedback about the 121 

problems people have on their street, but we don’t really have a sense of where the 122 

biggest problems are and how they relate to all the other issues within the city.  So, I 123 

think that would be a good starting point, if the Body is so inclined, at least to explore 124 

how much it would be.  Is it possible to use LMIG funds or some other funds for that?       125 

 126 

Director of Public Works Mike Mason said no, ma’am. 127 

 128 

Mayor Motley Broom said I thought I’d try. 129 

 130 

Councilman Allen said I think it’s a good idea depending on how much it costs us to do 131 

that because it has an independent person coming and looking at all the streets. 132 

 133 

Councilman Gay agreed.   134 

 135 

Councilman Taylor said I agree. 136 

 137 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any other questions in that regard? 138 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 29



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 4 of 7 

There were no further comments made.  139 

 140 

   3. Monthly progress report regarding Strategic Planning activities. 141 

 142 

City Manager Terrence Moore said this is the beginning of the practice to offer monthly 143 

updates in terms of progress and any other ideas and suggestions to be offered, 144 

respectively. 145 

 146 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said as a committee, we are excited to give you 147 

all the progress on what we have been doing, in terms of goals and objectives on our 148 

Strategic Plan.  You all should have a copy of the committee chairs, each charge for each 149 

committee, and an activity.  (Sharing Screen). 150 

 151 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks discussed the team’s composition of the 152 

committee, to include co-chairs. 153 

 154 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks gave an overview of the activities and tasks of 155 

the committee.  This is a breakdown of the silos.  Mr. Adam Saslow is on the line with 156 

us.           157 

 158 

Mr. Adam Saslow said we are starting our fourth cycle tomorrow.  My task is to give 159 

them a rhythm and cadence and set them on the path to greater interdepartmental 160 

coordination.  We have set the goals, put the objectives within the goals, and developed a 161 

longer list of activities and tasks.  As they move into the fifth round, how are you going 162 

to create a system of accountability?  How will the check-ins be made?  How will the 163 

progress be measured?  That will take us to the end into the new calendar year.  164 

 165 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, how can we support you?  Let’s set money aside.  How can 166 

we as a Body support the work of these committees? 167 

 168 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said we would like for you all to buy into these 169 

goals and objectives.   Stay in tune with us.  Keep up with our progress.  But most 170 

importantly, buy into what we are doing.  Buy into these goals and objectives.  Give us 171 

the opportunity to post them around the city.  We want your input.  It starts with the 172 

leadership.   173 

 174 

Mr. Saslow said from the outside looking in, not only by interest, but hold these teams 175 

accountable for progress.  This is the first time that they are coming in and reporting in on 176 

a monthly basis.  I hope you demand a report from them, not only from Michael, but the 177 

chairs independently.    178 

      179 

Councilman Allen asked, how often do we expect to get updates? 180 

 181 

Mayor Motley Broom said I think it will be monthly; is that right? 182 

 183 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 30



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 5 of 7 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said yes.  Today, Councilman Allen, we just 184 

want to lay the groundwork to show you what we are doing.   I would like for Michelle 185 

Alexander and Mercedes to say a few words.  Kudos to Mercedes for suggesting T-shirts 186 

to wear, advertising on the marquis and placards all around the city.       187 

   188 

City Planner Michelle Alexander said I will defer to Mercedes and the other members, if 189 

that’s okay.   190 

 191 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said the Strategic Plan has bonded the 192 

department heads.  It has also made us think outside of the box.  I think it will take 193 

College Park to another level.  During this downtime of COVID, it gives us a chance to 194 

get the groundwork done.  Once we come out of COVID, it will be full speed ahead.  A 195 

lot of the department heads that are not usually up front, they stepped up to meet the 196 

charge in taking on some of these committees.  I think we are on the right track to our 197 

Strategic Plan and moving it forward and not letting it sit on a shelf and become a piece 198 

of paper.  So, kudos to all the department heads.     199 

 200 

City Planner Michelle Alexander said since this is going to guide our decisions and the 201 

way we put in our priorities and expand your resources and the citizens’ resources, keep 202 

in mind as new demands come up, we will need to come back to you to juggle those new 203 

demands with this set list right here.  Thank you.   204 

 205 

Mayor Motley Broom asked,  does anyone else want to add anything? 206 

 207 

Councilman Clay said I have a comment.  One of the things in the cover letter was 208 

addressing our moving forward and also to start looking at the core values upon which 209 

the Strategic Plan are based.  And I sent an email to everybody on Council, and I think I 210 

included Terrence and Mercedes, on the 14th, after I read through the packet and saw that 211 

that was a consideration for tonight.   212 

 213 

Councilman Clay said Dr. Chisulo and I have been working for the last 4 or 5 months 214 

ever since the Black Lives Matter movement became very evident.  I have seen a sea 215 

change in the attitude of the country with regard to this whole issue.  So, we have been 216 

working on how do we make a statement for the city as to what our position is on this.  It 217 

started out as a resolution and moved to a proclamation, and back to a resolution.  But I 218 

don’t know that a resolution is the important thing.  The important thing is that the 219 

concepts in it get tied to the Strategic Plan.   220 

 221 

Councilman Clay said so, I sent this to all of you on Mayor & Council, and I would like 222 

to propose that we take this draft resolution and refine it, whether it be as a formal              223 

resolution coming out of Council, or whether it become a statement in the Strategic Plan 224 

around the core value of equity and inclusion.  It impacts some of the other values as 225 

well, but it is focused on equity and inclusion.  That is my proposal that I would like you 226 

to have the team look at it, maybe refine it, and see if we can either make a statement on 227 

it formally on Council, or at least include it into the Strategic Plan.           228 

               229 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 31



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 6 of 7 

Mayor Motley Broom said the incorporation of it in the Strategic Plan is an interesting 230 

thought that I hadn’t considered before you said it.  I actually just sent it to Adam because 231 

I thought it might be interesting for him to take a look, as well, if there is space for that.  232 

I’m not expecting to get an answer for that on the spot, but just seeing how we weave that 233 

in in a way that is meaningful and impactful.            234 

   235 

Mr. Saslow said my initial reaction is very supportive.  I don’t know that I would put it in 236 

as a core value or value statement.  I think it is a stand alone that says a lot about who we 237 

are.  And if Mayor & Council after discussion and debate decides that it is reflective of 238 

some broader sense of community, then I don’t see why we couldn’t take a few minutes 239 

to draft it into the Strategic Plan and upload that revision.                 240 

  241 

Mayor Motley Broom said we haven’t had that opportunity to make any suggestions, and  242 

I don’t know that everyone else is prepared to make those, so perhaps that is a 243 

conversation at the next workshop meeting, and everybody comes with their edits and 244 

their considerations surrounding that draft.           245 

 246 

Mayor Motley Broom asked if anyone has any other questions or comments with regard 247 

to the Strategic Plan. 248 

 249 

City Manager Terrence Moore said we made a commitment to offer a monthly update to 250 

this effect.  It will be the second meeting of each month, or the third Monday of each 251 

month.  Likewise, the next presentation will take place on January 19, 2021, Tuesday, 252 

due to the MLK Holiday.  There is plenty of time and opportunity between now and then 253 

to get ourselves squared away.  Michael Hicks and the team members will be in position 254 

to offer an update, and this will become a cultural part of this coming executive team 255 

meeting this Wednesday morning.  Otherwise, ladies and gentlemen, all involved should 256 

move forward.   257 

 258 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said we would like to thank you for 259 

giving us the opportunity because there are some people that have never worked on a 260 

Strategic Plan.  Thank you for giving us the opportunity to work with Adam.  We are all 261 

learning a lot.  It is extremely valuable to new department heads that come into the city, 262 

and it pulls them in as part of the team.  You all should be commended for having the 263 

vision to see it.  Thank you.    264 

          265 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you for implementing the vision.   266 

   267 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the Workshop Session adjourned at 6:30 p.m.    268 

 269 

 270 

 271 

 272 

       273 

 274 

     275 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 32



Workshop Session 11/16/20 Page 7 of 7 

       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 276 

 277 

 278 

       _________________________ 279 

       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 280 

 281 

 282 

 283 

 284 

ATTEST:   285 

 286 

 287 

________________________ 288 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 289 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 33



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8483  

Updated: 11/25/2020 10:44 AM by Michelle Johnson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 25, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

RE:  Summer Dance Program - Mrs. Tia Singleton Taylor 

 

 

 

Plaques and Announcements 
 

 

Council Meeting Date:  December 7, 2020  

 

Presented by:  Mrs. Tia Singleton Taylor 

 

Summary:  Mrs. Tia Singleton Taylor would like to acknowledge the City of College Park for 

its support of Main Attraction Dance Studios & Dancing Towards Sisterhood Summer Dance 

Program held at the Conley Recreation Center. Mrs. Singleton Taylor would like to give special 

thanks to the Mayor and City Council, Director of Recreations & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson 

and the City Manager Terrence R. Moore for their overwhelming support for the young girls that 

participated in the Summer Dance Program. 

 

Supporting Documents:  None. 

 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Johnson Completed 11/25/2020 10:44 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:11 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/01/2020 11:52 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

4.A

Packet Pg. 34



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8467  

Updated: 12/2/2020 2:01 PM by Hugh Richardson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 2, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Hugh Richardson, Power Director 

 

RE:  AMI Update 

 

 

Access Point Performance - number of electric meters communicating: 

 

    10/21 10/28 11/4 11/11  

Charlestown   1911 2270 2540 2363  

W. Fayette   2958 2840 2220 2849 

Princeton   3427 3189 3523 3105  

Total    8296 8299 8283 8317 

 

Electric Meters::  8317 

Water Meters:   3068 

Total Meters & Endpoints: 11,385 

 

 

Requiring manual reads from communication issues= 38= .4% of total 

About 65 more water rereads were done to verify readings or usage but were reading in Badger. 

Electric = 4, Water = 34 

 

System is remotely reading about 99.6%. 

Electric = 99.9%; Water = 98.9% 

 

   3 water meters were replaced in November. 

 29 endpoints were replaced or reset 

  

 

Other Updates: 

1.  21 customers have been contacted about water leaks in November. 

2.  KWH sales difference during the pandemic: 

 March   -7.1% 

6.A

Packet Pg. 35



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8467)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/2/2020 2:01 PM by Hugh Richardson  Page 2 

 April -17.1% 

 May -21.8% 

 June -12.0% 

 July   -5.4% 

 Aug.   -7.9% 

 Sep. -16.1% 

 Oct.   -8.1% 

 Nov. -11.7% 

(Above as compared to the same month in 2019 and without Data Center sales.) 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 AMI Project Update December 2020 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Hugh Richardson Completed 11/23/2020 9:03 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/01/2020 2:07 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/02/2020 2:05 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

6.A

Packet Pg. 36









   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8412  

Updated: 12/3/2020 9:28 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Ordinances and Resolutions Update 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To provide Mayor and Council with updates on recently adopted ordinances and 

resolutions. 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council names of the adopted ordinances & resolutions on a 

monthly basis. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  None 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  None 

 

STAFF:  Office of the City Clerk 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2020 Resolutions (DOCX) 

 2020 ORDINANCES (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 12/02/2020 3:48 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/03/2020 9:28 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:52 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

6.B

Packet Pg. 40



2020 Resolutions 
 

  Number Name         Adopted 
 

2020-01 Mayor Longino – Years of Service Resolution   1/6/2020 

2020-02 NLC Service Line Warranty Agreement Resolution   1/6/2020 

2020-03 Execution of the MEAG Power Municipal Competitive Trust Fund 2/3/2020 

2020-04 MEAG Voting Delegate      2/3/2020 

2020-05 HB 309 - GA Local Gov’t Infrastructure Finance Authority Act PENDING 

2020-06 Roosevelt Hwy Renaming      2/17/2020 

2020-07 City of Ethics Resolution      4/20/2020 

2020-08 Aerotropolis CID REBC Resolution     4/20/2020 

2020-09 Fulton County CDBG Cooperation Agreement   5/18/2020 

2020-10 Budget Adoption Resolution      6/01/2020 

2020-11 Utility Credit Resolution      6/01/2020 

2020-12 Water, Sewer & Sanitation New Rates    7/20/2020 

2020-13 Georgia Greenspace Program      10/05/2020 

 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 41



  2020 ORDINANCES  

 

 

Ord. No. Ordinance       Adopted  

2020-01 120-Day Moratorium on Tire Shops    2-17-2020 

2020-02 State of Emergency Ordinance    3-19-2020 

2020-03 Emergency Coronavirus Ordinance – Shelter in Place 3-25-2020 

2020-04 Modify State of Emerg. Ord. add Virtual Meetings  4-06-2020 

2020-05 Ethics Ordinance      4-20-2020 

2020-06 Annexation of 5391 W. Fayetteville Road   4-20-2020 

2020-07 Rezoning of 5391 W. Fayetteville Road   4-20-2020 

2020-08 Multi-Family Maintenance Ordinance   5-18-2020 

2020-09 Fire Inspection Ordinance     6-01-2020 

2020-10 Facial Mask Mandate      7-10-2020 

2020-11 Fireworks Ordinance      7-10-2020 

2020-12 Amended Multi-Family Ordinance    8-03-2020 

2020-13 Conditional Use Permit – 1597 Virginia Ave   8-03-2020 

2020-14 Amended Ordinance to include Parklets   10-05-2020 

2020-15 3907 Main Street Rezoning     10-05-2020 

2020-16 Conditional Use Permit – 3907 Main Street   10-05-2020 

2020-17 Stormwater Ordinance Amendment    11-16-2020 

2020-18 2154 Rugby Avenue Rezoning    11-16-2020 

 

  

 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 42



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8454  

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:53 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 2, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Public Hearing for Consideration of a Zoning Modification by Folia Group 

 

 

PURPOSE: Public Hearing for consideration of a zoning modification by Folia Group for the 

development Hawthorne Station to remove the zoning conditions for lot width and lot coverage 

requirements due to a change of builder to Rocklyn Homes.  

 

REASON: Public Hearing for consideration of a zoning modification by Folia Group for the 

development Hawthorne Station to remove the zoning conditions for lot width and lot coverage 

requirements due to a change of builder to Rocklyn Homes.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: The City Planner recommends approval of the request to remove 

conditions 8 and 12 of the original zoning request given that all other conditions previously 

placed on the development still apply as well as adding the following conditions:  

 

1. Applicant shall provide the same amount of yard space for each dwelling unit, such that it 

yields the equivalent of 80% 50-foot width and 20% 60-foot width of frontage along the 

street for each dwelling unit, respectively.  The yard provision may be in either common 

ownership via an HOA or private ownership, via traditional lot which includes yards as 

part of property. 

 

2. The common area of the project shall be maintained by the builder and/or developer until 

such time that sales achieve 75% buildout so that the HOA may reasonably be established 

with enough fees to cover costs of common area and unsold properties on entire site. 

CO's shall not be released with continued documentation and demonstration of 

maintenance. 

 

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting a zoning modification to remove two conditions 

due to a change in builder. The new builder is Rocklyn Homes, and they are proposing a slightly 

different plat for the property. This property is located at 0 Karen Road and received zoning 

approval from Council in 2018 and then a zoning modification in 2019. The total number of 

7.A

Packet Pg. 43



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8454)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:53 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

proposed homes will stay the same at 300 and the design of the development is similar to the 

original plan.  

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

 

REVENUE TO CITY: Application Fee 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Approval of this 

request would result in approval of the presented zoning modifications.  

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF: Michelle Alexander 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 0 Karen Road Hawthorne Station Conditions Mod Staff Report (PDF) 

 ROCKLYN ZONING MODIFICATION PACKAGE (PDF) 

 Ordinance 2018-10, signed (PDF) 

 Agenda Item for First Zoning Mod 9.3.19 (PDF) 

 2019-24 Ordinance Modified (PDF) 

 Hawthorne Station Presentation 11-20-20 (PDF) 

 Hawthorne Station Presentation 11-20-20 (PPTX) 

 Amended Ordinance 0 Karen Road Folia Development Final 120220 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 11/25/2020 10:43 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:36 PM 

 Inspections Completed 11/30/2020 5:32 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 12/02/2020 1:03 PM 

7.A

Packet Pg. 44



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8454)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:53 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 3 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/02/2020 1:53 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

7.A

Packet Pg. 45





       College Park City Council  
                Folia Group Conditions Modification  

 

2 
 

would like to request to again modify the original conditions of the PDR Zoning to accommodate 

another builder, Rocklyn Homes.  The applicant’s revised request is as follows: 

 

1. Modify zoning condition 8 that limits lot coverage to 40%.  

a. The applicant is requesting the removal of this condition as it does not apply with 

the project layout because the yards of the homes will no longer be included in 

the sale of the house.  

 

2. Modify zoning condition 12 that requires 80% of the lots to have a minimum width of 

50 feet and 20% of the lots to have a minimum of 60 feet.  

a. Rocklyn homes requesting removal of the condition for lot width minimums 

because in their proposal only the land under actual home is owned by the 

resident (similar to a townhome).  

 

The applicant is requesting these changes because of the new builder that is being used, Rocklyn 

Homes. This builder constructs single family homes in a similar manner to townhomes. The layout 

indicates that all yards and exteriors of homes including siding and roofing are maintained by the 

HOA. The new builder has committed that the total number of units will remain unchanged at 300 

and the minimum distance between homes will remain the same at 12'. The applicant also states 

that Rocklyn's proposed homes are similar in size, finishes and quality to those presented by the 

previous builders, Pulte and Meritage. 

 

Criteria for Consideration of a Rezoning Request 

Article IX Section 14.11 (G ) provides decision criteria that Mayor and City council shall consider in 

reviewing rezoning petitions; these include among others consideration of the comprehensive plan 

and any other adopted studies and reasonable growth and development as indicated by one or more 

of the following facts as they may be relevant to the application: 

 

(a)  Would the zoning with the proposed modified condition be consistent and/or compatible with 

the city’s land use and development plans, goals and objectives? 

Yes, as approved, the project is compatible with the city’s development plans and goals. The 

proposed modification does not impact this criterion. Comparable builders using similar quality 

materials (hardi-plank and a minimum of 10% masonry such as brick or stone) will meet the city’s 

development goals. 

 

(b) Would the proposed modified condition tend to increase, to decrease or to have an impact on 

traffic safety and congestion in the streets? 

This criterion is not applicable to the request of modifying this particular zoning condition. 

 

(c) Would the proposed modified condition tend to increase, decrease or to have no relation to 

safety from fire, panic or other danger? 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 47



       College Park City Council  
                Folia Group Conditions Modification  

 

3 
 

There would be no impact on fire safety, panic, or other danger.  Construction standards and 

permitting will require that the building be designed to meet all necessary fire and safety codes.   

 

(d) Would the proposed modified condition tend to promote, to diminish or to have no influence 

on the public health and general welfare? 

The proposed modifications to the conditions would have no negative impacts on the public 

health and general welfare provided compliance with all other conditions and building code 

standards that will be enforced during the permitting process.  

 

(e) Would the proposed modified condition tend to increase, to decrease or to have no influence 

on the provision of adequate light and air? 

Zoning provisions regulating building setbacks, height of structures, and lot coverage are 

intended to maintain open space between buildings and provide adequate light and air to 

adjacent properties.  These modifications will not negatively impact these aspects.  

 

(f) Would the proposed modified condition tend to cause, prevent or to have no influence on the 

overcrowding of land? 

The proposed use and modifications to zoning conditions would not cause any overcrowding of 

land in the city. The addition of single-family homes is a desired use.  

 

(g) Would the proposed modified condition tend to cause, to prevent or to have no relation to the 

undue concentration or the undue scattering of population or development? 

This criterion is not applicable to the request of modifying the zoning conditions. 

 

(h) Would the proposed modified condition tend to impede, facilitate or have no impact on the 

adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, and/or public services or facilities? 

This criterion is not applicable to the request of modifying the zoning conditions. 

 

(i) Would the proposed modified condition tend to be compatible with or be incompatible with 

environmental conditions and/or with surrounding development?  If incompatible, what 

factors, if any, would diminish the value, use and enjoyment of the surrounding properties? 

 The proposed modification will maintain the compatibility of the original request as approved 

with high quality materials and product type that are compatible with surrounding and desired 

future development. 

 

(j) Would the proposed modified condition tend to require only reasonable expenditures of 

public funds, or would the modified condition tend to require an excessive or premature 

expenditure of public funds? 

This criterion is not applicable to the request of modifying this zoning condition. 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 48



       College Park City Council  
                Folia Group Conditions Modification  

 

4 
 

(k) Would the proposed modified condition tend to promote, to diminish or to have no influence 

upon the aesthetic effect of existing and future uses of the property and the surrounding area? 

The proposed modification as qualified as recommended should not impact the aesthetics of the 

development. 

 

(l) Would the proposed modified condition lead to development that is a deterrent to the value 

of adjacent property? 

The modified condition should support and positively impact the value of adjacent property. 

 

(m) Would the proposed amendment create an isolated district unrelated to adjacent and nearby 

districts? 

This criterion is not applicable to the request of modifying this zoning condition. 

 

Recommendation: The City Planner recommends approval of the request to remove conditions 8 

and 12 given that all other conditions previously placed on the development still apply as well as 

adding the following conditions:  

 

1. Applicant shall provide the same amount of yard space for each dwelling unit, such 

that it yields the equivalent of 80% 50-foot width and 20% 60-foot width of frontage 

along the street for each dwelling unit, respectively.  The yard provision may be in 

either common ownership via an HOA or private ownership, via traditional lot which 

includes yards as part of property. 

 

2. The common area of the project shall be maintained by the builder and/or developer 

until such time that sales achieve 75% buildout so that the HOA may reasonably be 

established with enough fees to cover costs of common area and unsold properties 

on entire site. CO's shall not be released with continued documentation and 

demonstration of maintenance. 

 

 

Attachments: 

• Application Package 

• Original rezoning Ordinance 2018-10 showing original 12 conditions 

• Agenda Item from 9.3.19 for Zoning Modification  

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 49







Zoning Modification 
Hawthorne Station Subdivision 
 

Mayor and City Council 

We are requesting a Zoning Modification for the Hawthorne Station project located on Herschel Road. 

The project has been slow to start due to contract issues with previous builders, but Rocklyn Homes has stepped 
up and they are ready and committed to start and finish Hawthorne Station. Rocklyn Homes is an Atlanta based 
company with strong financial capabilities and an excellent record for building quality homes.  Furthermore, 
Rocklyn Homes is a privately held company. Issues with previous builders stemmed primarily for “board” oversight, 
and we are thrilled to have Mr. David Jenkins, owner of Rocklyn Homes, on board to make Hawthorne Station a 
reality. Mr. Jenkins is personally involved with this project and will move forward as soon as all requirements are 
met. 

HAWTHORNE STATION ZONING MODIFICATION REQUEST 

1. CURRENT ZONING ORDINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIRE LOT WIDTH MINIMUM OF 50' (80%) 
AND 60' (20%). 

2. ROCKLYN HOMES REQUESTING REMOVAL OF LOT WIDTH MINIMUMS - ONLY LAND UNDER ACTUAL HOME IS 
INCLUDED WITH SALE (SIMILAR TO A TOWNHOME). ZONING CONDITION SECTION 2:12 

3. ZONING CONDITION 2:8 LIMITS LOT COVERAGE TO 40%. WE ARE REQUESTING THE REMOVAL OF THIS 
CONDITION AS IT DOES NOT APPLY WITH THE PROJECT LAYOUT WE ARE REQUESTING. 

4. SAME BENEFITS AS TOWNHOME OWNERSHIP: 

a. ALL YARDS ARE MAINTAINED BY HOA PREVENTING ANY SINGLE HOMEOWNER FROM ADVERSLY AFFECTING 
VALUE. 

b. ALL EXTERIORS OF HOMES INCLUDING SIDING AND ROOFING ARE MAINTAINED BY HOA PROTECTING THE 
BEAUTY OF THE COMMUNITY AND PROPERTY VALUES. 

c. PROVIDES HOMEOWNERS THE CARE- FREE LIFESTYLE OF A TOWNHOME WITH THE PRIVACY OF A SINGLE-FAMILY 
HOME. 

5. TOTAL NUMBER OF UNITS TO REMAIN UNCHANGED AT 300. 

6. MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN HOMES WILL REMAIN THE SAME AT 12'. 

7. ROCKLYN'S PROPOSED HOMES ARE SIMILAR IN SIZE, FINISHES AND QUALITY TO THOSE PRESENTED BY PULTE 
AND MERITAGE. 

8. THE PROJECT WILL ESSENTIALLY LOOK THE SAME. 

9. ROCKLYN HAS COMMITTED TO RAISE THE MINIMUM PRICING FROM $220,000 TO $250,000. 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely 

 
Rob Beecham 
Representing Rocklyn Homes 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 52











































   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 7529  

Updated: 8/27/2019 5:05 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: August 27, 2019 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Zoning Condition Modification request by Folia Group, LLC 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To consider a request to modify a Zoning Condition for property located north of 

the terminus of Karen Rd. and west of Brandon Park, related to a Planned Development-

Residential (PD-R) zoning district as approved by Ordinance 2018-10. 

 

REASON:  The applicant and property owner, Folia Group, has requested modifying Zoning 

Condition #6 from the approved rezoning Ordinance 2018-10.  Condition #6 identifies a specific 

builder for construction of the residential units. The developer has revised the application to 

maintain Meritage as builder but adds to the proposed builder Pulte Group.  Additionally the 

proposed project increases the minimum lot size from 50 to 55 for 80% of the units.    

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Condition Modification based 

upon the proposed replacement and specific elevations provided with the application (see 

attachments). The Planning Commission considered this item and staff report at its regular 

meeting on July 29, 2019 and recommended "Approval" but with an amendment to strike "or 

similar builder". City Planner recommends approval with the following additional conditions and 

modifications, as follows: 

 

Recommended Modified Condition #4: residential units shall be cement fiber lap siding (“hardi-

plank”) and  incorporate masonry elements as evidenced in updated Exhibit “C”, though the 

builder may have the flexibility to substitute stone for brick and vice versa, as long as the 

architectural elements are appropriately incorporated and masonry elements comprise a 

minimum of 10% of the building front facades but will vary such that at least 30% of all units 

will have 30% or more masonry material. 

 

Recommended Condition 14 (new).  Prior to Certification of Occupation (CO), builder shall 

provide certification to the City of College Park building official that Condition #3 requirements 

regarding sound level are met. 

 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 73



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 7529)  Meeting of September 3, 2019 

Updated: 8/27/2019 5:05 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

BACKGROUND:  In 2018, the subject property was rezoned to PD-R with 12 conditions via 

Ordinance 2018-10 to allow a mixture of single family residential products. The Developer has 

since entered into a Developer's Agreement with the City providing for additional commitments 

related to improvements on the site. The Developer has further secured an alternate, additional 

builder and seeks to finalize financial partnership with the builder in July 2019 and seeks Mayor 

and Council approval for Pulte Group, Inc., in addition to Meritage. The attached elevations 

provide grounds for supporting approval of the request, provided the additional recommended 

conditions and amendments are made. 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:   
 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  September 3, 2019. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:   

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:   
 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  2018-10 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:   
 

STAFF:   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 HAWTHORNE STATION ZONING CHANGE REQUEST (PDF) 

 Hawthorne Station_Modification_Application_1 (PDF) 

 Folia Council_2019-09-03 Z Conditions Mod Staff Report (PDF) 

 Hawthorne Presentation 8-22-19 (3) (PDF) 

 Ordinance 2018-10, signed (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 08/26/2019 5:26 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 08/27/2019 5:05 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 08/28/2019 2:11 PM 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 74



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 7529)  Meeting of September 3, 2019 

Updated: 8/27/2019 5:05 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 3 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 09/03/2019 7:30 PM 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 75



















Hawthorne Station

College Park, GA

7.A.f

Packet Pg. 84













Hawthorne Station

College Park, GA

7.A.g

Packet Pg. 90





7.A.g

Packet Pg. 92



• Detached Single Family Homes 
from the $250’s- Up from $220K

• Exterior of homes and grounds 
maintained by HOA

• Town Home lifestyle/ 
convenience with Single Family 
privacy.

• Protects home values and 
ensures a well-kept community.

• Maximum 300 Units

• 12’ between Units

• Increased Green Space

• Construction to begin as soon as 
LDP Revisions are approved

7.A.g

Packet Pg. 93







STATE OF GEORGIA 1 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 2 

ORDINANCE 2020-____ 3 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CONDITIONS IMPOSED ON THE 4 

DEVELOPMENT AND USE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY THAT IS LOCATED ON 0 5 

KAREN LANE AND THAT IS SUBJECT TO THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF PD-R 6 

(PLANNED DEVELOPMENT RESIDENTIAL); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO 7 

REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 8 

OTHER PURPOSES. 9 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of College Park, Georgia (the “City”) is 10 

the Mayor and Council thereof; 11 

WHEREAS, on October 01, 2018, the governing authority modified the zoning 12 

designation of a certain parcel of real property commonly known as 0 Karen Road according to 13 

the present system of numbering lots in the City (Fulton County Tax Parcel Identification Number 14 

13 0003 LL0563) to PD-R (Planned Development Residential) and imposed certain conditions on 15 

the use of said parcel under said zoning designation via Ordinance 2018-10;  16 

WHEREAS, on September 03, 2019, the governing authority further modified the zoning 17 

conditions on the use of said parcel under said zoning designation, as more fully described in 18 

Ordinance 2019-24; 19 

WHEREAS, the governing authority has received a request from the developer to further 20 

amend the final development plan and zoning conditions numbered 8 and 12 in Ordinance 2019-21 

24; 22 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 96



WHEREAS, condition number 8 in Ordinance 2019-24 states, “Lot coverage shall not 23 

exceed 40%”;  24 

WHEREAS, condition number 12 in Ordinance 2019-24 states, “A minimum of 20% of 25 

the single-family lots shall be 60 feet wide, and a maximum of 80% of the single-family lots shall 26 

be 50 feet wide.”;  27 

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to retain the current zoning designation of 28 

said parcel but to modify certain conditions imposed on the development and use of said parcel 29 

under that designation;  30 

WHEREAS, the governing authority has considered the criteria of a rezoning request, 31 

provided in Section 14.11 (“Zoning Amendment Process (ZA)”) of Article 14 (“Processes, 32 

Permits, and Fees”) in Appendix A (“Zoning”) of the Code of Ordinances, City of College Park, 33 

Georgia; and 34 

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the final development plan in 35 

accordance with Section 4.36 (“Planned Development Amendments”) of Article 4 (“Planned 36 

Development”) in Appendix A (“Zoning”) of the Code of Ordinances, City of College Park, 37 

Georgia; 38 

WHEREAS, the governing authority conducted a public hearing on December 06, 2020 39 

to consider zoning modification requested by Folia Development Group (the “Developer”); 40 

WHEREAS, the governing authority approves the modification to conditions 8 and 12 41 

described in detail below, and subjects the Developer to comply with all conditions stated herein; 42 

and 43 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City will be positively 44 

impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance. 45 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 97



 BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 46 

THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  47 

 Section 1.  The parcel of real property that is commonly known as 0 Karen Road according 48 

to the present system of numbering lots in the City and bears Fulton County Tax Parcel 49 

Identification Number: 13 0003 LL0563, said property being further shown on the map attached 50 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, shall retain the zoning designation of 51 

PD-R (Planned Development Residential).  52 

Section 2. Condition number 8 (line 68) and condition number 12 (lines 80-81) in City of 53 

College Park Ordinance 2019-24 executed on September 03, 2019 are hereby repealed in their 54 

entirety and the following conditions shall be inserted in lieu thereof: 55 

“Condition 8:   Developer shall provide yard space for each dwelling unit such that 80% of 56 

the single-family lots are 50 feet wide and 20% of the single family lots are 57 
60 feet wide, respectively. The yard space may be held by occupants as a 58 

part of common ownership via a Home Owners Association (“HOA”) or as 59 
private ownership, via a traditional lot which includes yards as part of 60 
property.”  61 

 62 
“Condition 12: The common area of the project shall be maintained by the builder and/or 63 

Developer until such time that sales achieve a 75% buildout such that HOA 64 
may reasonably be established with sufficient fees to cover any and all costs 65 
associated with common areas and unsold properties on the entire site. 66 

Certificate of Occupancy shall only be released with continued 67 

documentation and demonstration of maintenance.” 68 
 69 
Section 3.  The development and use of the property identified in Section 1 is subject to 70 

the amended Site Plan attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B,” and all applicable 71 

restrictions, limitations, and requirements of the Code of Ordinances, City of College Park, 72 

Georgia. In addition, the development and use of said parcel shall be subject to the conditions 73 

previously imposed in Ordinance 2019-24 and as amended in Section 2 herein. 74 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 98



 Section 4.  To the extent necessary and required, the zoning designation and conditions 75 

imposed herein shall be noted on the official City of College Park Zoning Map approved by the 76 

City’s Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following adoption of this Ordinance, 77 

along with an editorial note on the official City of College Park Zoning Map specifying the parcel 78 

affected by this Ordinance and the date of adoption of this Ordinance. 79 

 Section 5.  The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 80 

incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 81 

 Section 6. (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all 82 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, upon their 83 

enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 84 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest 85 

extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 86 

Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 87 

Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 88 

greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 89 

is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 90 

Ordinance. 91 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance 92 

shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 93 

by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 94 

the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 95 

greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any 96 

of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to 97 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 99



the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 98 

sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable and of full force and 99 

effect. 100 

 Section 7.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly 101 

repealed. 102 

 Section 8.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of College 103 

Park, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 104 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect.  105 

 Section 9.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless 106 

otherwise specified herein. 107 

ORDAINED, this ____ day of _____________, 2020. 108 

 109 

       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 110 
 111 
 112 
 113 

       ____________________________________                                                                   114 
       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 115 

 116 
 117 

ATTEST:                                                               118 
 119 

 120 
       121 
Shavala Moore, City Clerk 122 

 123 
 124 
APPROVED BY: 125 
 126 
 127 

       128 
City Attorney 129 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 100



EXHIBIT A 

ZONING MAP 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 101



EXHIBIT B 

SITE PLAN 

 

 

7.A.h

Packet Pg. 102



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8469  

Updated: 11/18/2020 2:34 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 18, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  FAA - 7.5 Ton Air Handling Unit (AHU-6) Replacement 

 

 

PURPOSE:  City Council approval of the replacement of the 7.5 Ton Air Handling Unit (AHU-

6) located in the UPS Room in the basement of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 

Regional Headquarters. 

 

REASON:  The original piece of equipment was installed 28 years ago and is in need of 

replacement due to age. 

 

See attached letter dated November 10, 2020 from Colliers International Property Manager Ron 

Wilkerson requesting approval and proposal from Batchelor & Kimball. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Council approval of the request to replace the 7.5 Ton Air 

Handling Unit (AHU-6) by Batchelor & Kimball, Inc. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The 7.5 Ton Air Handling Unit was originally installed 28 years ago. 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE:  N/A. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $27,284.00. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes.  This capital item was approved in the FY2020-2021 budget 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATON BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  Federal Aviation 

Administration 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  None. 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 103



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8469)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 11/18/2020 2:34 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION: None. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  None. 

 

STAFF:  Office of the City Manager 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 FAA Request to Replace 7.5 Ton AHU-6 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/18/2020 2:36 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/18/2020 2:37 PM 

 Purchasing Completed 11/18/2020 2:53 PM 

 Finance Completed 12/01/2020 10:06 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/01/2020 11:51 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.A

Packet Pg. 104































   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8468  

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:55 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 2, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Hugh Richardson, Power Director 

 

RE:  Solar Power Purchase Contract 

 

 

PURPOSE:  The Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia (MEAG Power) is requesting 

interested participants to execute a solar initiative power purchase contract. 

 

REASON:  MEAG Power is in the final stages of negotiating the purchase of solar power from a 

developer.  This will add photovoltaic solar power to our resource portfolio starting in 2023. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the power purchase contract, in substantial form, to 

purchase 2 MW of solar power for 20 years. 

 

BACKGROUND:  In the integrated resource plan, College Park is requiring some replacement 

of the Wansley coal capacity that is going away in 2021.  The replacement can be via market 

priced energy or a power purchase contact.  This solar contract provides a fixed cost in the range 

of $24.95 to $25.75 per MWH, which is equal or better than market price.  The energy price will 

be fixed for 20 years.   

 

Once all participants send their approval to MEAG Power, the contracts that include the solar 

power company name will be sent for signatures before Dec. 31, 2020. 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE: N/A. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $24.95 to $25.75 per MWH. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Yes, as a part of MEAG Power's cost. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020. 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 119



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8468)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:55 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF:  Power Department 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 MEAG Power Memo - Nov. 8, 2020 (PDF) 

 MEAG Power Memo - Nov. 30, 2020 (PDF) 

 MEAG - Solar Participants Power Purchase Contract with revisions (PDF) 

 MEAG - Solar Participants Compiled PPC with Resolution & Opinion of Counsel (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Hugh Richardson Completed 11/23/2020 2:02 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 11/23/2020 6:07 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:41 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/02/2020 1:55 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.B

Packet Pg. 120





MP 
To:  MEAG Power Participants 

From:  Steve Jackson, Sr. VP and COO    

Date:  November 30, 2020 

Subject: Solar Initiative – Power Purchase Contract Update  

As MEAG Power staff has neared completion of the Solar Power Purchase Agreement 
(SPPA) between MEAG Power and the solar developer, it was recognized that the test 
energy provided under the SPPA would be available to the Solar Participants earlier 
than anticipated. In order to ensure that the Solar Participants receive the benefit of this 
energy from the facility, the Power Purchase Contract (PPC) between MEAG Power and 
the Solar Participants has been updated. 
 
The following changes were made to the PPC to address this earlier timeline and are 
reflected in the attached redline of the agreement. 
 

1) The billing date for funding the escrow account was moved to 90 days prior to the 
scheduled date for receipt of the test energy (Start Date). 

 
2) The monthly billing for energy will begin 30 days prior to the Start Date. 

 
The Start Date is anticipated to be June 1, 2023 and the amount of test energy is 
expected to increase over the period prior to the commercial operation date. This energy 
will be priced at a discount to the contract price due to its inconsistent delivery. 

 
In addition to these changes to the PPC, the attached version also provides the draft 
resolution and draft legal opinion to support your commitment to the project. This version 
of the agreement is being provided in an editable format to allow the addition of your 
community specific information. 
 
Please contact your Regional Manager with any questions or requests. 
 
cc: Jim Fuller 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 122



MEAG Draft: 1011/2025/20

POWER PURCHASE CONTRACT 
BETWEEN MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AUTHORITY OF 
GEORGIA AND THE UNDERSIGNED PARTICIPANT

This Power Purchase Contract (this “Contract”), made and entered into as of

______________________, 2020, by and between the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia

(the “Authority” or “MEAG Power”), a public body corporate and politic and a public

corporation and an instrumentality of the State of Georgia, created by the provisions of the

Municipal Electric Authority Act, Ga. L. 1976, p. 107, as amended (the “Act”), and

_______________________, (the “Solar Participant”), a political subdivision of the State of

Georgia.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority has previously entered into one or more

Power Sales Contracts (each, as amended, a “Power Sales Contract”) with eligible political

subdivisions, including the Solar Participant (each, a “Participant”) to provide, from defined

production projects and sources, for the Participants’ bulk electric power supply needs;

WHEREAS, one such Power Sales Contract, the Project One Power Sales Contract (the

“Project One Power Sales Contract”), further provides in Section 401 thereof that the

Authority will provide or cause to be provided to each of the participants thereto, including the

Solar Participant, (the “Project One Participants”) its supplemental bulk power supply

(“Supplemental Power”) (i.e., that portion of the Solar Participant’s bulk power supply in

excess of its entitlement to power, energy, output and services from any MEAG Power project)

during each month of each Power Supply Year (therein defined);

WHEREAS, Section 404 of the Project One Power Sales Contract provides that a Project

One Participant may elect to procure an alternate source of Supplemental Power other than that

64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 123



provided by the Authority, subject to providing notice to the Authority in accordance with

subpart (c) of that Section;

WHEREAS, the Authority adopted a Supplemental Power Supply Policy in March of

1999, as amended (the “Supplemental Power Policy”), which, in part, waived the notice

requirements provided for in Section 404(c) of the Project One Power Sales Contract;

WHEREAS, the Authority has an opportunity to procure a substantial amount of

Supplemental Power for a multi-year term through a Power Purchase Agreement with

____________________ (the “Company”) for the output and services of approximately [___]

MWac from a photovoltaic solar energy generation facility located in [__________] County,

Georgia (the “Facility”) to be constructed, owned, operated, and maintained by the Company

(hereinafter the “SPPA”);

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Supplemental Power Policy, the Solar Participant

and certain Project One Participants have requested that the Authority purchase from the

Company power, output and services of the Facility to provide for their Supplemental Power;

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Solar Participant agree that this Contract is

supplemental to and authorized by the Project One Power Sales Contract;

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Solar Participant agree that the payment obligations

under this Contract shall constitute the general obligations of the Solar Participant for the

payment of which the full faith and credit of the Solar Participant is pledged, obligating the Solar

Participant to provide for the assessment and collection of an annual tax sufficient in amount to

provide funds annually to make all payments due hereunder;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and

agreements hereinafter set forth, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:

 2
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 124



1.

1.1. SPPA. The SPPA, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, describes

the terms under which the Products (as defined therein) of the Facility shall be made available to

the Authority for the provision of solar power to the Solar Participant.

1.2 Entitlement Share.  The Solar Participant’s “Entitlement Share” shall be [___%]

(the “Entitlement Share Percentage”) of the Products.

1.3 Initial Payment Obligation.  The Authority shall deliver to the Solar Participant an

initial billing statement up to ninety (90) days prior to the Facility’s anticipated commercial

operation date (as determinedcommencement of the delivery of Test Energy pursuant to the

SPPA) (the “Commercial Operation (such anticipated date of delivery referred to as the

“Start Date”).  The initial billing statement shall set forth the Solar Participant’s Entitlement

Share Percentage of the sum of the estimated Solar Costs and estimated MEAG Costs (both

terms, as defined in Section 1.4 below) for the month the Authority anticipates will generate the

highest aggregate amount of Solar Costs and MEAG Costs (the “Maximum Monthly Amount”)

during the year subsequent to the year of the Commercial OperationStart Date.  Amounts

collected pursuant to this Section 1.3 (the “Escrow Amount”) shall be held in escrow by the

Authority, subject to use by the Authority pursuant to the terms hereof.  At the end of each

calendar year commencing the year after the year of the Commercial OperationStart Date the

Authority shall recalculate the Solar Participant’s Maximum Monthly Amount for such year and,

(i) if the Maximum Monthly Amount exceeds the Escrow Amount, the Authority shall include an

amount equal to such deficit on the Solar Participant’s next Billing Statement (as defined in

Section 1.4) and (ii) if the Maximum Monthly Amount is less than the Escrow Amount, the

Authority shall, at the Authority’s election, either (A) refund to the Solar Participant an amount

 3
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 125



from the Escrow Amount equal to such excess or (B) credit such excess to the Solar Participant’s

next succeeding Billing Statement(s).

 4
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 126



1.4  Ongoing Payment Obligations.

The Authority shall deliver to the Solar Participant a monthly Billing Statement(a)

commencing within the thirty (30) days preceding the anticipated Commercial OperationStart

Date and continuing through the Term.  For purposes of this Contract, a “Billing Statement”

shall be a written statement prepared or caused to be prepared monthly in advance by the

Authority that shall set forth the Solar Participant’s estimated payment obligations pursuant to

the terms hereof.

The Solar Participant shall remit payment monthly in advance.  The Solar(b)

Participant’s payment obligations hereunder for a particular month shall be an amount equal to

the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share Percentage of the sum of the estimated Solar Costs and

the estimated MEAG Costs.  To the extent the amount paid by the Solar Participant pursuant to

the preceding sentence is either greater or less than the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share

Percentage of the sum of  the actual Solar Costs and the actual MEAG Costs for a particular

month, the Authority: (i) shall credit any excess payment to the Solar Participant’s next Billing

Statement and (ii) may satisfy any deficit from the Solar Participant’s Escrow Amount and

include a corresponding charge on the Solar Participant’s next Billing Statement (so as to restore

the Solar Participant’s Escrow Amount).

For purposes of this Contract, (i) “Solar Costs” for a particular month shall mean the

gross amount due to the Company or any other person for the month by the Authority pursuant to

the terms of the SPPA, but excluding any interest charged by the Company to the Authority

pursuant to Section 10.3 of the SPPA and (ii) “MEAG Costs” for a particular month shall mean

all costs incurred by the Authority during the month in connection with the purchase from the

Company and delivery to the Solar Participant of the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share,

 5
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 127



including, but not limited to, (A) costs of (I) scheduling the delivery of solar energy, (II) energy

imbalance penalties and (III) all other charges imposed on the Authority and associated with the

transmission and delivery of solar energy to the Solar Participants, and (B) a share determined by

the Authority to be allocable to this Contract, of all (I) administrative and general costs and (II)

operation and maintenance costs, in each case related to the operation and conducting the

business of the Authority, including salaries, fees for legal, engineering, and other services and

all other expenses properly related to the conduct of the affairs of the Authority.

The Solar Participant’s payment obligations to the Authority arising under this(c)

Contract shall constitute general obligations of the Solar Participant for the payment of which the

full faith and credit of the Solar Participant shall be and the same hereby is pledged to provide

the funds required to fulfill all obligations arising under this Contract. Unless such payments or

provisions for such payments have been made from the revenues of the Solar Participant’s

electric system or from other available funds, the Solar Participant will annually in each and

every fiscal year during the term of this Contract include in its general revenue or appropriation

measure sums sufficient to satisfy the payments required to be made in each year by this Contract

until all payments hereunder have been made in full.

Except as specifically provided herein, any payment due under this Contract shall(d)

be paid within ten (10) calendar days of the Solar Participant’s receipt of the Billing Statement.

The Parties agree to work in good faith to resolve any disputed amounts prior to the due date for

such amount, and agree that any resolution of such disputed amount may, if necessary be

addressed by appropriate adjustment to subsequent Billing Statements.

1.5 Rate Covenant.  The Solar Participant will establish, maintain, and collect rates

and charges for the electric service of its electric system so as to provide revenues sufficient to

 6
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 128



enable the Solar Participant to pay to the Authority all amounts payable under this Contract and

to pay all other amounts payable from and all lawful charges against or liens on the revenues of

its electric system.

2.

2.1. Term.  The term of this Contract shall commence on the Commercial Operationdate

that is ninety (90) days prior to the Start Date and shall continue through and include the end

of the twentieth (20th) Contract Year (each, as defined in the SPPA), unless the SPPA, is

terminated prior to such date, at which point this Contract will terminate upon the Solar

Participant’s full and complete satisfaction of its duties and obligations hereunder.

3.

Products Constitute Supplemental Bulk Power.  The Solar Participant acknowledges that

all Products contemplated in the proposed SPPA, if implemented, will constitute Supplemental

Power, provided, however, that the Solar Participant agrees that it will not exercise its rights

under the Supplemental Power Supply Policy or Section 404(c) of the Project One Power Sales

Contract to opt-out of its payment obligations under this Contract at any time prior to the

expiration of the term of the SPPA.

4.

Pledge of Payments.  All payments in respect of Solar Costs required to be made by the

Solar Participant pursuant to this Contract, and any or all rights to collection or enforcement of

such payments, may be pledged to secure the payment of the Authority’s obligations under the

SPPA.

 7
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 129



5.

Governing Law; Venue.  This Contract shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance

with the laws of the State of Georgia, excluding any choice of law rules that may direct the

application of the laws of another jurisdiction. The Parties agree that the venue for any action

arising out of, or in regard to, this Contract shall be in the Superior Court of Fulton County,

Georgia and each Party hereby consents to jurisdiction over it in Fulton County, Georgia.

6.

Mutual Representations and Warranties.  Each Party represents and warrants to the other

that, as of the Effective Date:

Organization.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State(a)

of Georgia.

Authority.  It (a) has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Contract(b)

and (b) has, or as of the requisite time will have, all regulatory and other authority necessary to

perform hereunder.

Corporate Actions.  It has taken all corporate or other applicable actions,(c)

including provision of notice, required to be taken by it to authorize the execution, delivery and

performance hereof and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

No Contravention.  The execution, delivery and performance and observance(d)

hereof by it of its obligations hereunder do not (a) contravene any provision of, or constitute a

default under, (i) any indenture, mortgage, security instrument or undertaking, or other material

agreement to which it is a party or by which it is bound, (ii) any valid order of any court, or any

regulatory agency or other body having authority to which it is subject, or (iii) any material

 8
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 130



Applicable Law presently in effect having applicability to it, or (b) require the consent or

approval of, or material filing or registration with, any Governmental Authority or other Person

other than such consents or approvals that are not yet required but expected to be obtained in due

course.

Valid and Enforceable Agreement.  This Contract is a valid and legally binding(e)

obligation of it, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as the enforceability

hereof may be limited by Georgia law, including the Act, and general principles of equity or

bankruptcy, insolvency, bank moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally,

laws restricting the availability of equitable remedies, and limitations on legal remedies against

public bodies corporate and politic of the State of Georgia

Litigation. No litigation, arbitration, investigation or other proceeding is pending(f)

or, to the best of such Party’s knowledge, threatened against such Party with respect to this

Contract or the transactions contemplated hereunder, in each case, that if it were decided against

such Party would materially and adversely affect such Party’s ability to perform its obligations

hereunder.

Legal Opinions.  The Solar Participant shall authorize the execution and delivery(g)

of this Contract by resolution of its governing body in substantially the form attached hereto as

Exhibit B.  Further, the Solar Participant shall deliver to the Authority an opinion of counsel

(such counsel to be reasonably acceptable to the Authority) as to the due authorization, execution

and delivery and the enforceability of this Contract, in substantially the form attached hereto as

Exhibit C.

7.

Default; Remedies for Default.

 9
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 131



Default.  Failure of the Solar Participant to timely make to the Authority any of(a)

the payments for which provision is made in this Contract shall constitute a default on the part of

the Solar Participant (a “Default”).  A Default may be cured by the Solar Participant’s (i) full

payment of any past due amounts owed by the Solar Participant to the Authority pursuant to the

terms hereof (the “Primary Cure Payments”), (ii) full payment of any interest which has

accrued thereon (as referenced in Section 7(c), below) (the “Interest Cure Payments”), and (iii)

with reference to paragraph (h)(i) of this Section 7, full restoration of the Escrow Amount, unless

and until the Authority exercises its rights pursuant to Section 7(h)(iv), below (at which point the

Default may no longer be cured).

Continuing Obligation, Right to Discontinue Service.  In the event of a Default,(b)

the Solar Participant shall not be relieved of its liability for payment of the amounts in default

(including interest accrued thereon pursuant to Section 7(c), below), and the Authority shall have

the right to recover from the Solar Participant any amount in default (including interest accrued

thereon pursuant to Section 7(c), below).  In enforcement of any such right of recovery, the

Authority may bring any suit, action, or proceeding in law or in equity, including mandamus and

action for specific performance as may be necessary or appropriate to enforce any covenant,

agreement or obligation to make any payment for which provision is made in this Contract

against the Solar Participant, and the Authority may, upon the occurrence of a Default and at the

Authority’s discretion, cease and discontinue providing all or any portion of the Solar

Participant’s Entitlement Share.

Interest on Late Payments.  Any amounts that are not paid when due hereunder(c)

shall bear interest at the Contract Interest Rate from the date due until paid, which rate shall not

exceed the maximum permissible under Georgia law.  The defaulting Solar Participant shall be

10
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 132



and shall remain solely liable for the payment of any interest arising under this Section 7(c).  For

purposes of this Contract, the “Contract Interest Rate” shall mean one hundred (100) basis

points per annum plus the rate per annum equal to the prime lending rate as may from time to

time be published in The Wall Street Journal under “Money Rates” on such day (or if not

published on such day on the most recent preceding day on which published); provided that if at

any time during the Term, the Wall Street Journal no longer publishes a prime lending rate, the

prime lending rate for purposes of the calculation of the Contract Interest Rate will be average of

the prime interest rates which are announced, from time to time, by the three (3) largest banks (by

assets) headquartered in the United States which publish a prime, base or reference rate.

Levy of Tax for Payment.  In the event of a Default, the Solar Participant shall(d)

provide for the assessment and collection of an annual tax sufficient in amount to provide funds

annually to make all payments due under the provisions of this Contract in each year over the

remainder of the life of this Contract and the Authority shall have the right to bring any suit,

action or proceeding in law or in equity, including mandamus and action for specific

performance, to enforce the assessment and collection of a continuing direct annual tax upon all

the taxable property within the boundaries of the Solar Participant sufficient in amount to provide

such funds annually in each year of the remainder of the life of this Contract.

Other Default by Solar Participant.  In the event of a failure of the Solar(e)

Participant to establish, maintain, or collect rates or charges adequate to provide revenue

sufficient to enable the Solar Participant to pay all amounts due to the Authority under this

Contract or in the event of a failure of the Solar Participant to take from the Authority its

Supplemental Power in accordance with the provisions of this Contract, or in the event of any

default by the Solar Participant under any other covenant, agreement or obligation of this

11
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 133



Contract, the Authority may bring any suit, action, or proceeding in law or in equity, including

mandamus, injunction and action for specific performance as may be necessary or appropriate to

enforce any covenant, agreement or obligation of this Contract against the Solar Participant.

Default by The Authority.  In the event of any default by the Authority under any(f)

covenant, agreement or obligation of this Contract, the Solar Participant may bring any suit,

action, or proceeding in law or in equity, including mandamus, injunction and action for specific

performance as may be necessary or appropriate to enforce any covenant, agreement, or

obligation of this Contract against the Authority.

Abandonment of Remedy.  In case any proceeding taken on account of any default(g)

shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, the parties to such proceedings shall

be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies,

owes, and duties of the Authority and the Solar Participant shall continue as though no such

proceeding had been taken.

Default of Other Solar Participant.(h)

In the event of a Default by a Solar Participant pursuant to Section 7(b)(i)
hereof, the Authority shall:

Apply the Escrow Amount (as collected from the Solar Participant(1)
pursuant to Section 1.3, above) to the defaulting Solar Participant’s unpaid obligations
hereunder;

Transfer all or any part of the energy generated by the Facility and(2)
attributable to the defaulting Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share to other Participants or any
other person, firm, association or corporation, public or private (such transferee to be determined
at the Authority’s discretion), for the fair market value of such energy (a “Default Sale”); and

Use the proceeds of such Default Sale (net of the Authority’s(3)
expenses incurred to facilitate such Default Sale) to (A) satisfy the balance of the defaulting
Solar Participant’s unpaid obligations hereunder and/or (B) to the extent such payment
obligations have been fully satisfied pursuant to Section 7(h)(i)(1) and/or this Section 7(h)(i)(3),
fully or partially restore the defaulting Solar Participant’s Escrow Amount.

12
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 134



The difference, if any, between the defaulting Solar Participant’s unpaid(ii)
payment obligations for a particular month (calculated pursuant to Section 1.4 and without
inclusion of any interest amount accrued pursuant to Section 7(c), above) and the sum of (i) the
defaulting Solar Participant’s Escrow Amount (to the extent the Escrow Amount has not been
previously applied  to an unpaid obligation of the Solar Participant pursuant to Section 7(h)(i)(1))
and (ii) the proceeds of the applicable Default Sale (net of the Authority’s expenses incurred to
facilitate such Default Sale) shall be referred to as the “Special Cost Increase.”  The Special
Cost Increase shall be allocated among the non-defaulting Solar Participants pro rata based on
their Entitlement Share Percentages and each non-defaulting Solar Participant shall be obligated
to satisfy their allocable share of the Special Cost Increase; provided that a non-defaulting Solar
Participant’s share of a Special Cost Increase shall not exceed 25% of the amount otherwise
reflected on the Solar Participant’s Billing Statement for the month to which the Special Cost
Increase is attributable.

The excess, if any, between the defaulting Solar Participant’s unpaid(iii)
payment obligations for a particular month (calculated pursuant to Section 1.4 and inclusive of
any interest amount accrued pursuant to Section 7(c), above) and the proceeds of the applicable
Default Sale (net of the Authority’s expenses incurred to facilitate such Default Sale) shall be for
the benefit of the non-defaulting Solar Participants.

Primary Cure Payments received by the Authority from a defaulting Solar(iv)
Participant shall be distributed on a ratable basis to the Solar Participants who were obligated to,
and did, pay to the Authority their ratable share of the corresponding Special Cost Increase.
Interest Cure Payments attributable to Solar Costs shall be paid by the Authority to the Company
in satisfaction of the Authority’s obligations under the SPPA and Interest Cure Payments
attributable to MEAG costs shall be distributed to the non-defaulting Solar Participants ratably
based on their Entitlement Share Percentages.

Notwithstanding any Default Sale, a defaulting Solar Participant shall(v)
remain liable to the Authority for the full payment of the amount reflected on its Billing
Statements plus any interest accrued thereon as if such Default Sale had not been made; except
that such liability shall be discharged by an amount equal to the proceeds of the applicable
Default Sale (net of the Authority’s expenses incurred to facilitate such Default Sale).  In the
event a Solar Participant’s Default continues uncured for ninety (90) calendar days or the Solar
Participant fails to timely satisfy its payment obligations hereunder for either three (3)
consecutive months or five (5) out of eight (8) months, the Authority may sell the defaulting
Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share to the other Participants or any other person, firm,
association or corporation, public or private (such transferee to be determined at the Authority’s
discretion); provided that, if such a transfer occurs, the defaulting Solar Participant shall remain
liable to the Authority for the full payment of the amount attributable to its Entitlement Share
plus any interest accrued thereon as if such transfer had not been made; except that such liability
shall be discharged to the extent that the Authority receives payment (net of the Authority’s
expenses incurred in facilitating such transfer) from the transferee.

8.

13
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 135



In witness whereof, the Authority has caused this Contract to be executed in its corporate

name by its duly authorized officers and the Authority has caused its corporate seal to be

hereunto impressed and attested; the Solar Participant has caused this Contract to be executed in

its corporate name by its duly authorized officers and its corporate seal to be hereunto impressed

and attested, and delivery hereof by the Authority to the Solar Participant is hereby

acknowledged, all as of the day and year first above written.

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AUTHORITY OF
GEORGIA

By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST:

By:
Name:
Title:

(SEAL)

[Solar Participant Signature is on the next page]

14
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 136



SOLAR PARTICIPANT

By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST:

By:
Name:
Title:

15
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 137



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF SPPA

[to be inserted]

16
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 138



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION OF SOLAR PARTICIPANT

[to be inserted]

17
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 139



EXHIBIT C

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO PARTICIPANT

[to be inserted]

18
64762374v.2224

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 140



MEAG Draft - 11.25.20 

66949202v.1 

POWER PURCHASE CONTRACT  

BETWEEN MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AUTHORITY OF  

GEORGIA AND THE UNDERSIGNED PARTICIPANT 

This Power Purchase Contract (this “Contract”), made and entered into as of 

______________________, 2020, by and between the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia (the 

“Authority” or “MEAG Power”), a public body corporate and politic and a public corporation and an 

instrumentality of the State of Georgia, created by the provisions of the Municipal Electric Authority 

Act, Ga. L. 1976, p. 107, as amended (the “Act”), and City of College Park, (the “Solar Participant”), 

a political subdivision of the State of Georgia. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority has previously entered into one or more Power 

Sales Contracts (each, as amended, a “Power Sales Contract”) with eligible political subdivisions, 

including the Solar Participant (each, a “Participant”) to provide, from defined production projects and 

sources, for the Participants’ bulk electric power supply needs; 

WHEREAS, one such Power Sales Contract, the Project One Power Sales Contract (the “Project 

One Power Sales Contract”), further provides in Section 401 thereof that the Authority will provide or 

cause to be provided to each of the participants thereto, including the Solar Participant, (the “Project 

One Participants”) its supplemental bulk power supply (“Supplemental Power”) (i.e., that portion of 

the Solar Participant’s bulk power supply in excess of its entitlement to power, energy, output and 

services from any MEAG Power project) during each month of each Power Supply Year (therein 

defined); 

WHEREAS, Section 404 of the Project One Power Sales Contract provides that a Project One 

Participant may elect to procure an alternate source of Supplemental Power other than that provided by 

the Authority, subject to providing notice to the Authority in accordance with subpart (c) of that Section; 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 141



2 

66949202v.1 

WHEREAS, the Authority adopted a Supplemental Power Supply Policy in March of 1999, as 

amended (the “Supplemental Power Policy”), which, in part, waived the notice requirements provided 

for in Section 404(c) of the Project One Power Sales Contract; 

WHEREAS, the Authority has an opportunity to procure a substantial amount of Supplemental 

Power for a multi-year term through a Power Purchase Agreement with ____________________ (the 

“Company”) for the output and services of approximately 2.0 MWac from a photovoltaic solar energy 

generation facility located in [__________] County, Georgia (the “Facility”) to be constructed, owned, 

operated, and maintained by the Company (hereinafter the “SPPA”); 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Supplemental Power Policy, the Solar Participant and certain 

Project One Participants have requested that the Authority purchase from the Company power, output 

and services of the Facility to provide for their Supplemental Power; 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Solar Participant agree that this Contract is supplemental to 

and authorized by the Project One Power Sales Contract; 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Solar Participant agree that the payment obligations under 

this Contract shall constitute the general obligations of the Solar Participant for the payment of which 

the full faith and credit of the Solar Participant is pledged, obligating the Solar Participant to provide for 

the assessment and collection of an annual tax sufficient in amount to provide funds annually to make 

all payments due hereunder; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and 

agreements hereinafter set forth, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows: 

1. 

1.1.  SPPA. The SPPA, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, describes the terms 

under which the Products (as defined therein) of the Facility shall be made available to the Authority for 

the provision of solar power to the Solar Participant.   

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 142



3 

66949202v.1 

1.2  Entitlement Share.  The Solar Participant’s “Entitlement Share” shall be [___%] (the 

“Entitlement Share Percentage”) of the Products.   

1.3  Initial Payment Obligation.  The Authority shall deliver to the Solar Participant an initial 

billing statement up to ninety (90) days prior to the Facility’s anticipated commencement of the delivery 

of Test Energy pursuant to the SPPA (such anticipated date of delivery referred to as the “Start Date”).  

The initial billing statement shall set forth the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share Percentage of the 

sum of the estimated Solar Costs and estimated MEAG Costs (both terms, as defined in Section 1.4 

below) for the month the Authority anticipates will generate the highest aggregate amount of Solar Costs 

and MEAG Costs (the “Maximum Monthly Amount”) during the year subsequent to the year of the 

Start Date.  Amounts collected pursuant to this Section 1.3 (the “Escrow Amount”) shall be held in 

escrow by the Authority, subject to use by the Authority pursuant to the terms hereof.  At the end of each 

calendar year commencing the year after the year of the Start Date the Authority shall recalculate the 

Solar Participant’s Maximum Monthly Amount for such year and, (i) if the Maximum Monthly Amount 

exceeds the Escrow Amount, the Authority shall include an amount equal to such deficit on the Solar 

Participant’s next Billing Statement (as defined in Section 1.4) and (ii) if the Maximum Monthly Amount 

is less than the Escrow Amount, the Authority shall, at the Authority’s election, either (A) refund to the 

Solar Participant an amount from the Escrow Amount equal to such excess or (B) credit such excess to 

the Solar Participant’s next succeeding Billing Statement(s).   

1.4  Ongoing Payment Obligations. 

(a) The Authority shall deliver to the Solar Participant a monthly Billing Statement 

commencing within the thirty (30) days preceding the anticipated Start Date and continuing through the 

Term.  For purposes of this Contract, a “Billing Statement” shall be a written statement prepared or 

caused to be prepared monthly in advance by the Authority that shall set forth the Solar Participant’s 

estimated payment obligations pursuant to the terms hereof.   

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 143



4 

66949202v.1 

(b) The Solar Participant shall remit payment monthly in advance.  The Solar Participant’s 

payment obligations hereunder for a particular month shall be an amount equal to the Solar Participant’s 

Entitlement Share Percentage of the sum of the estimated Solar Costs and the estimated MEAG Costs.  

To the extent the amount paid by the Solar Participant pursuant to the preceding sentence is either greater 

or less than the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share Percentage of the sum of  the actual Solar Costs 

and the actual MEAG Costs for a particular month, the Authority: (i) shall credit any excess payment to 

the Solar Participant’s next Billing Statement and (ii) may satisfy any deficit from the Solar Participant’s 

Escrow Amount and include a corresponding charge on the Solar Participant’s next Billing Statement 

(so as to restore the Solar Participant’s Escrow Amount).     

For purposes of this Contract, (i) “Solar Costs” for a particular month shall mean the gross 

amount due to the Company or any other person for the month by the Authority pursuant to the terms of 

the SPPA, but excluding any interest charged by the Company to the Authority pursuant to Section 10.3 

of the SPPA and (ii) “MEAG Costs” for a particular month shall mean all costs incurred by the Authority 

during the month in connection with the purchase from the Company and delivery to the Solar Participant 

of the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share, including, but not limited to, (A) costs of (I) scheduling the 

delivery of solar energy, (II) energy imbalance penalties and (III) all other charges imposed on the 

Authority and associated with the transmission and delivery of solar energy to the Solar Participants, and 

(B) a share determined by the Authority to be allocable to this Contract, of all (I) administrative and 

general costs and (II) operation and maintenance costs, in each case related to the operation and 

conducting the business of the Authority, including salaries, fees for legal, engineering, and other 

services and all other expenses properly related to the conduct of the affairs of the Authority.   

(c) The Solar Participant’s payment obligations to the Authority arising under this Contract 

shall constitute general obligations of the Solar Participant for the payment of which the full faith and 

credit of the Solar Participant shall be and the same hereby is pledged to provide the funds required to 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 144



5 

66949202v.1 

fulfill all obligations arising under this Contract. Unless such payments or provisions for such payments 

have been made from the revenues of the Solar Participant’s electric system or from other available 

funds, the Solar Participant will annually in each and every fiscal year during the term of this Contract 

include in its general revenue or appropriation measure sums sufficient to satisfy the payments required 

to be made in each year by this Contract until all payments hereunder have been made in full. 

(d) Except as specifically provided herein, any payment due under this Contract shall be paid 

within ten (10) calendar days of the Solar Participant’s receipt of the Billing Statement. The Parties agree 

to work in good faith to resolve any disputed amounts prior to the due date for such amount, and agree 

that any resolution of such disputed amount may, if necessary be addressed by appropriate adjustment 

to subsequent Billing Statements.   

1.5 Rate Covenant.  The Solar Participant will establish, maintain, and collect rates and 

charges for the electric service of its electric system so as to provide revenues sufficient to enable the 

Solar Participant to pay to the Authority all amounts payable under this Contract and to pay all other 

amounts payable from and all lawful charges against or liens on the revenues of its electric system.   

2. 

2.1.  Term.  The term of this Contract shall commence on the date that is ninety (90) days prior 

to the Start Date and shall continue through and include the end of the twentieth (20th) Contract Year 

(as defined in the SPPA), unless the SPPA, is terminated prior to such date, at which point this Contract 

will terminate upon the Solar Participant’s full and complete satisfaction of its duties and obligations 

hereunder. 

3. 

Products Constitute Supplemental Bulk Power.  The Solar Participant acknowledges that all 

Products contemplated in the proposed SPPA, if implemented, will constitute Supplemental Power, 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 145



6 

66949202v.1 

provided, however, that the Solar Participant agrees that it will not exercise its rights under the 

Supplemental Power Supply Policy or Section 404(c) of the Project One Power Sales Contract to opt-

out of its payment obligations under this Contract at any time prior to the expiration of the term of the 

SPPA. 

4. 

Pledge of Payments.  All payments in respect of Solar Costs required to be made by the Solar 

Participant pursuant to this Contract, and any or all rights to collection or enforcement of such payments, 

may be pledged to secure the payment of the Authority’s obligations under the SPPA.   

5. 

Governing Law; Venue.  This Contract shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Georgia, excluding any choice of law rules that may direct the application of the 

laws of another jurisdiction. The Parties agree that the venue for any action arising out of, or in regard 

to, this Contract shall be in the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia and each Party hereby consents 

to jurisdiction over it in Fulton County, Georgia. 

6.  

Mutual Representations and Warranties.  Each Party represents and warrants to the other that, as 

of the Effective Date: 

(a) Organization.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 

Georgia.  

(b) Authority.  It (a) has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Contract and (b) 

has, or as of the requisite time will have, all regulatory and other authority necessary to perform 

hereunder. 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 146



7 

66949202v.1 

(c) Corporate Actions.  It has taken all corporate or other applicable actions, including 

provision of notice, required to be taken by it to authorize the execution, delivery and performance hereof 

and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

(d) No Contravention.  The execution, delivery and performance and observance hereof by 

it of its obligations hereunder do not (a) contravene any provision of, or constitute a default under, (i) 

any indenture, mortgage, security instrument or undertaking, or other material agreement to which it is 

a party or by which it is bound, (ii) any valid order of any court, or any regulatory agency or other body 

having authority to which it is subject, or (iii) any material Applicable Law presently in effect having 

applicability to it, or (b) require the consent or approval of, or material filing or registration with, any 

Governmental Authority or other Person other than such consents or approvals that are not yet required 

but expected to be obtained in due course.  

(e) Valid and Enforceable Agreement.  This Contract is a valid and legally binding obligation 

of it, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as the enforceability hereof may be 

limited by Georgia law, including the Act, and general principles of equity or bankruptcy, insolvency, 

bank moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally, laws restricting the availability of 

equitable remedies, and limitations on legal remedies against public bodies corporate and politic of the 

State of Georgia 

(f) Litigation. No litigation, arbitration, investigation or other proceeding is pending or, to 

the best of such Party’s knowledge, threatened against such Party with respect to this Contract or the 

transactions contemplated hereunder, in each case, that if it were decided against such Party would 

materially and adversely affect such Party’s ability to perform its obligations hereunder. 

(g) Legal Opinions.  The Solar Participant shall authorize the execution and delivery of this 

Contract by resolution of its governing body in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.  

Further, the Solar Participant shall deliver to the Authority an opinion of counsel (such counsel to be 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 147



8 

66949202v.1 

reasonably acceptable to the Authority) as to the due authorization, execution and delivery and the 

enforceability of this Contract, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

7. 

Default; Remedies for Default. 

(a)  Default.  Failure of the Solar Participant to timely make to the Authority any of the 

payments for which provision is made in this Contract shall constitute a default on the part of the Solar 

Participant (a “Default”).  A Default may be cured by the Solar Participant’s (i) full payment of any past 

due amounts owed by the Solar Participant to the Authority pursuant to the terms hereof (the “Primary 

Cure Payments”), (ii) full payment of any interest which has accrued thereon (as referenced in Section 

7(c), below) (the “Interest Cure Payments”), and (iii) with reference to paragraph (h)(i) of this Section 

7, full restoration of the Escrow Amount, unless and until the Authority exercises its rights pursuant to 

Section 7(h)(iv), below (at which point the Default may no longer be cured).   

(b) Continuing Obligation, Right to Discontinue Service.  In the event of a Default, the Solar 

Participant shall not be relieved of its liability for payment of the amounts in default (including interest 

accrued thereon pursuant to Section 7(c), below), and the Authority shall have the right to recover from 

the Solar Participant any amount in default (including interest accrued thereon pursuant to Section 7(c), 

below).  In enforcement of any such right of recovery, the Authority may bring any suit, action, or 

proceeding in law or in equity, including mandamus and action for specific performance as may be 

necessary or appropriate to enforce any covenant, agreement or obligation to make any payment for 

which provision is made in this Contract against the Solar Participant, and the Authority may, upon the 

occurrence of a Default and at the Authority’s discretion, cease and discontinue providing all or any 

portion of the Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share. 

(c) Interest on Late Payments.  Any amounts that are not paid when due hereunder shall bear 

interest at the Contract Interest Rate from the date due until paid, which rate shall not exceed the 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 148



9 

66949202v.1 

maximum permissible under Georgia law.  The defaulting Solar Participant shall be and shall remain 

solely liable for the payment of any interest arising under this Section 7(c).  For purposes of this Contract, 

the “Contract Interest Rate” shall mean one hundred (100) basis points per annum plus the rate per 

annum equal to the prime lending rate as may from time to time be published in The Wall Street Journal 

under “Money Rates” on such day (or if not published on such day on the most recent preceding day on 

which published); provided that if at any time during the Term, the Wall Street Journal no longer 

publishes a prime lending rate, the prime lending rate for purposes of the calculation of the Contract 

Interest Rate will be average of the prime interest rates which are announced, from time to time, by the 

three (3) largest banks (by assets) headquartered in the United States which publish a prime, base or 

reference rate. 

(d) Levy of Tax for Payment.  In the event of a Default, the Solar Participant shall provide 

for the assessment and collection of an annual tax sufficient in amount to provide funds annually to make 

all payments due under the provisions of this Contract in each year over the remainder of the life of this 

Contract and the Authority shall have the right to bring any suit, action or proceeding in law or in equity, 

including mandamus and action for specific performance, to enforce the assessment and collection of a 

continuing direct annual tax upon all the taxable property within the boundaries of the Solar Participant 

sufficient in amount to provide such funds annually in each year of the remainder of the life of this 

Contract.   

(e) Other Default by Solar Participant.  In the event of a failure of the Solar Participant to 

establish, maintain, or collect rates or charges adequate to provide revenue sufficient to enable the Solar 

Participant to pay all amounts due to the Authority under this Contract or in the event of a failure of the 

Solar Participant to take from the Authority its Supplemental Power in accordance with the provisions 

of this Contract, or in the event of any default by the Solar Participant under any other covenant, 

agreement or obligation of this Contract, the Authority may bring any suit, action, or proceeding in law 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 149



10 

66949202v.1 

or in equity, including mandamus, injunction and action for specific performance as may be necessary 

or appropriate to enforce any covenant, agreement or obligation of this Contract against the Solar 

Participant.   

(f) Default by The Authority.  In the event of any default by the Authority under any 

covenant, agreement or obligation of this Contract, the Solar Participant may bring any suit, action, or 

proceeding in law or in equity, including mandamus, injunction and action for specific performance as 

may be necessary or appropriate to enforce any covenant, agreement, or obligation of this Contract 

against the Authority. 

(g) Abandonment of Remedy.  In case any proceeding taken on account of any default shall 

have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, the parties to such proceedings shall be restored to 

their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, owes, and duties of 

the Authority and the Solar Participant shall continue as though no such proceeding had been taken.   

(h) Default of Other Solar Participant.   

(i) In the event of a Default by a Solar Participant pursuant to Section 7(b) hereof, 

the Authority shall:  

(1) Apply the Escrow Amount (as collected from the Solar Participant 

pursuant to Section 1.3, above) to the defaulting Solar Participant’s unpaid obligations hereunder;  

(2) Transfer all or any part of the energy generated by the Facility and 

attributable to the defaulting Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share to other Participants or any other 

person, firm, association or corporation, public or private (such transferee to be determined at the 

Authority’s discretion), for the fair market value of such energy (a “Default Sale”); and  

(3) Use the proceeds of such Default Sale (net of the Authority’s expenses 

incurred to facilitate such Default Sale) to (A) satisfy the balance of the defaulting Solar Participant’s 

unpaid obligations hereunder and/or (B) to the extent such payment obligations have been fully 

satisfied pursuant to Section 7(h)(i)(1) and/or this Section 7(h)(i)(3), fully or partially restore the 

defaulting Solar Participant’s Escrow Amount.   

(ii) The difference, if any, between the defaulting Solar Participant’s unpaid payment 

obligations for a particular month (calculated pursuant to Section 1.4 and without inclusion of any 

interest amount accrued pursuant to Section 7(c), above) and the sum of (i) the defaulting Solar 

Participant’s Escrow Amount (to the extent the Escrow Amount has not been previously applied  to an 

unpaid obligation of the Solar Participant pursuant to Section 7(h)(i)(1)) and (ii) the proceeds of the 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 150



11 

66949202v.1 

applicable Default Sale (net of the Authority’s expenses incurred to facilitate such Default Sale) shall be 

referred to as the “Special Cost Increase.”  The Special Cost Increase shall be allocated among the non-

defaulting Solar Participants pro rata based on their Entitlement Share Percentages and each non-

defaulting Solar Participant shall be obligated to satisfy their allocable share of the Special Cost Increase; 

provided that a non-defaulting Solar Participant’s share of a Special Cost Increase shall not exceed 25% 

of the amount otherwise reflected on the Solar Participant’s Billing Statement for the month to which 

the Special Cost Increase is attributable.  

(iii) The excess, if any, between the defaulting Solar Participant’s unpaid payment 

obligations for a particular month (calculated pursuant to Section 1.4 and inclusive of any interest amount 

accrued pursuant to Section 7(c), above) and the proceeds of the applicable Default Sale (net of the 

Authority’s expenses incurred to facilitate such Default Sale) shall be for the benefit of the non-

defaulting Solar Participants.  

(iv) Primary Cure Payments received by the Authority from a defaulting Solar 

Participant shall be distributed on a ratable basis to the Solar Participants who were obligated to, and 

did, pay to the Authority their ratable share of the corresponding Special Cost Increase.  Interest Cure 

Payments attributable to Solar Costs shall be paid by the Authority to the Company in satisfaction of the 

Authority’s obligations under the SPPA and Interest Cure Payments attributable to MEAG costs shall 

be distributed to the non-defaulting Solar Participants ratably based on their Entitlement Share 

Percentages.   

(v) Notwithstanding any Default Sale, a defaulting Solar Participant shall remain 

liable to the Authority for the full payment of the amount reflected on its Billing Statements plus any 

interest accrued thereon as if such Default Sale had not been made; except that such liability shall be 

discharged by an amount equal to the proceeds of the applicable Default Sale (net of the Authority’s 

expenses incurred to facilitate such Default Sale).  In the event a Solar Participant’s Default continues 

uncured for ninety (90) calendar days or the Solar Participant fails to timely satisfy its payment 

obligations hereunder for either three (3) consecutive months or five (5) out of eight (8) months, the 

Authority may sell the defaulting Solar Participant’s Entitlement Share to the other Participants or any 

other person, firm, association or corporation, public or private (such transferee to be determined at the 

Authority’s discretion); provided that, if such a transfer occurs, the defaulting Solar Participant shall 

remain liable to the Authority for the full payment of the amount attributable to its Entitlement Share 

plus any interest accrued thereon as if such transfer had not been made; except that such liability shall 

be discharged to the extent that the Authority receives payment (net of the Authority’s expenses incurred 

in facilitating such transfer) from the transferee.   

8. 

In witness whereof, the Authority has caused this Contract to be executed in its corporate name 

by its duly authorized officers and the Authority has caused its corporate seal to be hereunto impressed 

and attested; the Solar Participant has caused this Contract to be executed in its corporate name by its 

duly authorized officers and its corporate seal to be hereunto impressed and attested, and delivery hereof 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 151



12 

66949202v.1 

by the Authority to the Solar Participant is hereby acknowledged, all as of the day and year first above 

written. 

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AUTHORITY OF 

GEORGIA 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       
 

ATTEST: 

By:      
Name:      
Title:      

(SEAL) 

 

[Solar Participant Signature is on the next page] 

 

  

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 152



13 

66949202v.1 

SOLAR PARTICIPANT 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       
 

ATTEST: 

By:      
Name:      
Title:      

 

  

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 153



14 

66949202v.1 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF SPPA 

[**PLEASE NOTE THAT THE SPPA REMAINS UNDER FURTHER NEGOTIATION AND 

WILL BE PROVIDED AS NEGOTIATIONS COMPLETE**] 

 

  

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 154



15 

66949202v.1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION OF SOLAR PARTICIPANT 

RESOLUTION OF THE [GOVERNING BODY] OF THE [SOLAR 

PARTICIPANT] APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 

POWER PURCHASE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE SOLAR PARTICIPANT 

AND THE MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AUTHORITY OF GEORGIA, THE 

PLEDGE OF THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE SOLAR PARTICIPANT 

TO SECURE ITS PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS THEREUNDER, AND FOR SUCH 

OTHER PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Electric Authority Act (the “Act”), the [Solar 

Participant] (the “Solar Participant”) has previously entered into one or more Power Sales Contracts 

(each, as amended, a “Power Sales Contract”) with the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia (the 

“Authority”) for provision of the Solar Participant’s bulk electric power supply needs by the Authority 

from defined projection projects and sources; and 

WHEREAS, under one such Power Sales Contract, the Project One Power Sales Contract (the 

“Project One Power Sales Contract”), the Authority further agreed to provide or cause to be provided 

additional power needs of the Solar Participant in excess of its entitlement to power supplied under the 

Project One Power Sales Contract (“Supplemental Power”); and  

WHEREAS, the Project One Power Sales Contract provides that the Solar Participant may elect 

to procure an alternate source of Supplemental Power other than that provided by the Authority from the 

output of an Authority project; and   

WHEREAS, the Authority adopted a Supplemental Power Policy (the “Supplemental Power 

Policy”) under which the Solar Participant and the Authority may make elections regarding provision 

and procurement of Supplemental Power; and 

WHEREAS, the Solar Participant has determined that, in order to meet the growing and diverse 

energy needs of its customers, it has need for an additional type of economical, reliable source of electric 

power and energy beyond that provided from the sources available resources of the Authority under the 

Project One Power Sales Contract and other contracts between the City and the Authority; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has informed the Solar Participant that the Authority has an 

opportunity to procure a substantial amount of Supplemental Power for a multi-year term through a 

Power Purchase Agreement with ____________________ (the “Company”) for the output and services 

of approximately [___] MWac from a photovoltaic solar energy generation facility located in 

[__________] County, Georgia (the “Facility”) to be constructed, owned, operated, and maintained by 

the Company (such agreement, the “Supplemental Power Purchase Agreement” or “SPPA”); and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Supplemental Power Policy, the Solar Participant has 

requested that the Authority purchase from the Company power, output and services of the Facility to 

cause to be provided to the City its Supplemental Power; and   

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 155



16 

66949202v.1 

WHEREAS, the Authority has agreed to cause to be provided the Solar Participant’s 

Supplemental Power from the power, output and services of the Facility pursuant to the terms of a Power 

Purchase Contract (the “PPC”) in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A hereto; and  

WHEREAS, the Solar Participant finds, and the Solar Participant and the Authority agree that 

the PPC is supplemental to, and is authorized by, the Project One Power Sales Contract and that the 

Products (as defined in the SPPA) constitute Supplemental Power as defined in the Supplemental Power 

Policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Solar Participant determines that the Solar Participant’s payment obligations 

for Supplemental Power under the PPC authorized thereby shall constitute the general obligations of the 

Solar Participant for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the Solar Participant is pledged, 

obligating the Solar Participant to provide for the assessment and collection of an annual tax sufficient 

in amount to provide funds annually to make all payments due thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, the [Governing Body] desires to approve the PPC; to authorize the execution and 

delivery of the PPC and other such documents, certificates, and opinions described therein; and authorize 

such further actions as necessary for the Solar Participant to procure Supplemental Power as provided 

thereby. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant 

as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated in the body 

of this Resolution. 

2. Findings and Determinations. All findings and determinations contained in the PPC, 

including the recitals thereto, are hereby incorporated herein by reference, and are hereby adopted as 

findings and determinations of the [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant.  

3. Defined Terms. All capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined herein shall 

have the meanings set forth in the PPC. 

4. Supplemental Power Purchase Agreement. The [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant 

acknowledges receipt of the form of the SPPA to be executed by the Authority and Company. 

5. Authorization to Execute PPC. The [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant hereby 

authorizes the Solar Participant to enter, as a Solar Participant (defined therein) into the PPC in 

substantially the form attached as Exhibit A hereto, and to perform the same, and the [Title of Officer] 

of the Solar Participant is hereby authorized on behalf of the Solar Participant to execute and deliver the 

PPC. The [Title of Officer], with the advice of Counsel to the Solar Participant, is authorized to agree to 

such changes to the PPC as may be necessary prior to execution thereof, and the execution and delivery 

of the PPC shall be conclusive evidence of such approval. The [Title of Officer] of the Solar Participant 

is authorized to attest the execution by the [Title of Officer] of the PPC and to affix the seal of the Solar 

Participant to such documents.  

6. Further Authority. The [Governing Body] hereby authorizes, empowers and directs the 

[_____________] and any necessary representatives of the Solar Participant to do all such acts and things 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 156



17 

66949202v.1 

and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions and 

intent of this Resolution and the PPC. 

7. Authorized Representative. The [Title of Officer] and [Title of Officer] of the Solar 

Participant are each hereby each designated as Authorized Representatives of the Solar Participant, and 

may execute notices, certificates, requests, estimates and other documents contemplated by the PPC, 

subject to the limitations contained herein. 

8. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions. All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with 

this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

9. Effective Date. This Resolution (including the recitals first above written, which are 

hereby incorporated into this Resolution) shall take effect immediately upon its adoption; a copy of this 

Resolution may be filed in such offices as the undersigned or such development authority may elect to 

file this Resolution. All resolutions, or parts of resolutions, in conflict herewith are repealed. 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 157



 

B-18 

66949202v.1 

DULY ADOPTED at a meeting of the [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant, held 

this _____ day of ___________ 2020. 

Solar Participant  
 

By:____________________________________ 

Name:__________________________________ 

Title:___________________________________ 

 

ATTEST: 

  

By:____________________________________ 

Name:__________________________________ 

Title:___________________________________ 

 

[SEAL] 

 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 158



 

B-19 

66877706v.4 

EXHIBIT A 

 

FORM OF PPC 

[FORM ATTACHED] 

 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 159



 

64762374v.24 

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 

The undersigned, being the duly appointed, qualified, and acting Clerk of the [Governing 

Body] of the Solar Participant, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing pages of 

typewritten matter constitute a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted on 

__________________, 2020, by the [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant in a meeting duly 

called and assembled, after due and reasonable public notice was given in accordance with the 

procedures of the Solar Participant and with the applicable provisions of law, which was open to 

the public and at which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and that the original of such 

resolution appears of public record in the minute books of the [Governing Body] of the Solar 

Participant, which are in my custody and control. 

I do hereby further certify that all members of the [Governing Body] were present at said 

meeting except the following members who were absent: 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

and that the resolution was duly adopted by the following vote: 

The following voted “Aye”: ________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________; 

The following voted “Nay”: ________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________; 

The following Did Not Vote: ________________________________________________ 

 _______________________________________________. 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of the [Solar Participant], this ____ day of 

___________, 2020. 

________________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 160



 

21 

 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO SOLAR PARTICIPANT 

[TO BE REPRINTED ON LETTERHEAD OF SOLAR PARTICIPANT’S COUNSEL] 

 ____________, 2020 

Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia  

Atlanta, Georgia 

[Solar Participant] 

[Address], Georgia 

Seyfarth Shaw LLP 

Atlanta, Georgia 

RE:  Power Purchase Contract between the Municipal Electric 

Authority of Georgia and [Solar Participant] 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

[I/We] have acted as Counsel to [Solar Participant] (the “Solar Participant”) preliminary 

to and in connection with the authorization and execution of the above-captioned Power Purchase 

Contract, dated as of ____________, 2020 (the “PPC”), between the Municipal Electric Authority 

of Georgia (the “Authority”) and the Solar Participant. In so acting, we have examined such 

documents and matters of law as we have considered desirable to render the opinions hereinafter 

expressed, including but not limited to the following: 

(a) The Constitution of the State of Georgia of 1983, particularly Article IX, 

Section III, Paragraph I(a) thereof and various acts of the General Assembly of Georgia 

relating to the Solar Participant; 

(b) The PPC; 

(c) The Project One Power Sales Contract; 

(d) The validation certificate provided pursuant to the order issued by the 

Superior Court of Fulton County in State of Georgia v. Municipal Elec. Auth. of Georgia 

et al. Civil Action File No. 2018CV37032 (Fulton Co. Sup. Ct. July 17, 2018);  

(e) Minutes of the meeting of the [Governing Body] of the Solar Participant 

held on ____________, 2020, authorizing at such meeting the execution of the PPC by the 

Solar Participant; and 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 161



 

22 

 

(f) Such other documentation and matters of law as [I/we] have deemed 

necessary. 

Whenever [I/we] have stated that [I/we] have assumed any matter, it is intended to indicate 

that we have assumed such matter without making any factual, legal or other inquiry or 

investigation, and without expressing any opinion or conclusion of any kind, concerning such 

matter. [I/we] assume no issue of unconstitutionality or invalidity of a relevant law unless a 

reported case has so held.  

Reference is made to the opinion dated the date hereof of Seyfarth Shaw LLP, Atlanta, 

Georgia, as counsel to the Authority, upon which [I/we] have relied, with your permission, with 

respect to all matters related to the validity and enforceability of the Supplemental Power Purchase 

Agreement (the “SPPA”) between the Authority and RE Sumter LLC and the security pledged 

thereunder. [I/we] have reviewed sufficient information to assume that the Project One Power 

Sales Contract between the Solar Participant and the Authority has been judicially confirmed and 

validated by order of the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia. [I/we] have further assumed, 

in reliance upon the opinion of Seyfarth Shaw LLP, that the Authority has all requisite power and 

authority to enter into and perform its obligations under the SPPA, and that the SPPA is a valid 

and binding agreement, enforceable against the Authority in accordance with its terms.  

Based upon the foregoing, it is [my/our] opinion that: 

1. The PPC has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by the Solar 

Participant and the provisions thereof which obligate the Solar Participant are legal, valid and 

binding obligations of the Solar Participant enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

Under the terms of the PPC, the Solar Participant is obligated to levy a tax, at a rate sufficient, as 

described in the PPC, on all property in the Solar Participant’s jurisdiction subject to such tax, to 

the extent necessary to generate sufficient revenue to pay its obligations under the PPC.  

2. To the best of [my/our] knowledge and belief after reasonable inquiry, the PPC and 

the performance of the Solar Participant’s obligations thereunder will not conflict with or be in 

violation of any applicable federal, state, or local law or ordinance or, to the best of [my/our] 

knowledge and belief, be in violation of, or constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument 

to which the Solar Participant is party or by which the Solar Participant is bound. 

3. Each [officer/official] of the Solar Participant who executed the PPC was on the 

date of the execution thereof, and is on the date hereof, the duly, elected or appointed qualified 

incumbent of his or her office. 

4. The notices given prior to each meeting of the Solar Participant at which any action 

was taken relating to the PPC and the security therefor comply with the applicable notice 

requirements of Georgia law, and said meetings were conducted in accordance with all other 

applicable requirements of Georgia law. 

5. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or equity, by or 

before any court or public board or body pending or, to the best of [my/our] knowledge and belief, 

after making due inquiry with respect thereto, threatened against or affecting the Solar Participant, 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 162



 

23 

 

nor to [my/our] knowledge is there any basis therefore, which in any way questions the creation 

or existence of the Solar Participant or the powers of the Solar Participant, or which might result 

in a material adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise), business or affairs of the 

Solar Participant or wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect the 

validity or enforceability of the PPC or any other agreement or instrument to which the Solar 

Participant is a party and which is used or contemplated for use in connection with the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated by the PPC or which in any way would adversely 

affect the levy or collection of taxes by the Solar Participant to fulfill its obligations pursuant to 

the PPC. 

6. All consents, approvals or authorizations, if any, of any governmental authority or 

agency or other person required on the part of the Solar Participant in connection with the approval 

of the PPC, the execution and delivery of the same and the consummation of the transactions 

contemplated thereby have been obtained, and the Solar Participant has complied with any 

applicable provisions of law requiring any designation, declaration, filing, registration and/or 

qualification of the Solar Participant with any governmental authority or agency or other person 

in connection with such execution, delivery and consummation. 

The foregoing opinions are qualified to the extent that the enforceability of the PPC might 

be limited by (i) bankruptcy, fraudulent transfer, moratorium, insolvency, reorganization, or other 

laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights, (ii) limitations imposed by general principles 

of equity upon specific enforcement, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies, (iii) the exercise 

of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and (iv) to the following qualifications: 

(a) [I/We] express no opinion as to the validity or enforceability of any of the 

following provisions that may be contained therein: (i) any provisions which purport to 

waive any defense, counterclaim, set off or deduction arising from any violation of 

applicable federal or state securities or usury laws, any fraud on the part of any other party, 

any failure to give notice of a disposition of collateral to the extent required under 

applicable law, any disposition of collateral other than in a commercially reasonable 

manner, or the effect of any applicable statute of limitation, (ii) any choice of law 

provisions therein, (iii) any provisions which purport to waive the right to trial by jury or 

purport to consent to or waive any objection to the jurisdiction or venue of any particular 

court, and (iv) any provisions which provide for payment of interest on unpaid interest or 

which, due to prepayment, acceleration, or otherwise, would cause the rate of interest to 

exceed five percent (5.0%) per month. [I/We] also note that any provisions requiring any 

party to pay the attorneys’ fees of any other party may be subject to compliance with 

applicable legal requirements and limitations and that the provisions thereof may be subject 

to the effect of the provisions of law regarding mutual departures from strict contractual 

terms. Nothing in this paragraph (a) is intended to limit any of the other qualifications or 

exceptions to [my/our] opinions set forth in this letter. 

(b) Enforcement of any warranties and indemnities contained therein may be 

limited by applicable federal or state securities laws as violations of public policy and may 

be limited to the extent such indemnities would require any party to indemnify another 

party for costs, losses, liabilities, claims, damages or expenses incurred by or asserted 

against such party as a result of action or inaction of such party constituting negligence. In 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 163



 

24 

 

addition, it is possible that a court would not enforce any warranties or indemnities with 

respect to environmental matters contained therein. 

(c) With respect to the enforceability thereof, [I/we] have assumed that, to the 

extent that applicable law would require the rights and remedies set forth therein to be 

exercised in good faith or in a reasonable or commercially reasonable manner as a condition 

to the enforceability thereof, the persons having remedial rights thereunder will observe 

and satisfy such legal requirements. 

The undersigned’s engagement as Counsel to the Solar Participant imposed no duty upon 

the undersigned to undertake any due diligence investigation as to either: (i) the adequacy of the 

security for the PPC, (ii) the business or financial condition of the Solar Participant, or (iii) the 

veracity of any representations or certification made by the [Solar Participant] on which [I/we] 

have relied. No opinion is expressed as to the federal or state tax-exempt status of the obligations 

or the interest thereon, or the applicability of the federal securities laws or the Blue Sky laws of 

any state with respect to the PPC.  

The opinions set forth herein are limited to the laws of the State of Georgia and applicable 

federal laws. The opinions represent [my/our] legal judgment based upon our review of the law 

and the facts that we deem relevant to render such opinion and is not a guarantee of a result.  

This opinion letter is rendered as of its date, and [I/we] express no opinion as to 

circumstances or events that may occur subsequent to such date. Further [I/we] undertake no, and 

hereby disclaim any, obligation to advise you, or any other person permitted to rely hereon, of any 

change in applicable law or relevant facts or any new development which might affect any matters 

or opinions set forth herein. 

This opinion letter is given solely for the benefit of the addressees and their successors and 

assigns. This opinion letter is not intended to be employed in any transaction other than the one 

described above and is being delivered to the addressees with the understanding that it may not be 

published, quoted, relied on or referred to by, and copies may not be delivered or made available 

to, in whole in or part, any other person or entity (other than the addressees’ counsel or any 

applicable rating agency) or used for any other purpose with the express prior written consent of 

this firm in each instance. 

Very truly yours, 

 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 164



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8470  

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:56 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Artie Jones, Director of Economic Development 

 

RE:  Tax Allocation District Advisory Committee  Project Approval 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Mayor and Councils consideration in approving a tax allocation district project 

within the Six West Development.   

 

REASON:  On Tuesday, November 18, 2020 the Tax Allocation District Advisory Committee 

(TADAC) voted unanimously to approve a project within the Six West Development.  Similar, 

the same process should take place with the City Council approving or disapproving the TAD 

projects within the Six West Development. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution to approve 

a project(s) recommended by the Tax Allocation District Advisory Council.  The project is 

requesting the use of TAD funds to develop infrastructure situated along Rhodes Street and 

Columbia Avenue within the Six West Development, as well as develop the 6-acre stormwater 

park, and acquire two properties owned by the Fulton County Board of Education. 

 

BACKGROUND:   

 

Process to approve public projects within TAD #1 in the Tax Allocation District #1 Downtown 

and Airport Gateways: 

 

1. PUBLIC SECTOR APPLICATIONS 

The City of College Park and its Business and Industrial Development Authority (BIDA) have 

already assembled significant property holdings within TAD #1 (and may assemble additional 

property in the future) for the intended purpose of eventually conveying real estate for private 

sector redevelopment.  In addition to unsolicited requests for TAD assistance which may be 

submitted by the private sector, the College Park City Council and/or its BIDA may make 

proposals to use future tax increments from private development on TAD parcels that are 

8.C

Packet Pg. 165



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8470)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:56 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

currently publicly owned.  The City Council could also request TAD proceeds to reimburse the 

City for public investments made to assemble that property or to fund additional public 

improvements which may be needed to enhance the value of proposed private development.   

In such cases where the City may be “the Applicant” the TAD Advisory Committee will review 

the request, in a similar manner than would be required for any private sector applicant.  The 

Committee must similarly vote to approve the project and submit its report before the City 

Council can take relevant action.  However, in such cases where TAD proceeds accrue to and are 

invested by the City, certain financial criteria required of developers would no longer be relevant 

and may be waived.  Therefore, specific contents of a “TAD application” submitted by the City 

will be different than content required of private sector applicants.  Contents of an Application 

sponsored by the City may differ on a case by case basis and shall be determined by appropriate 

City Staff.  The Advisory Committee will review and may request additional information as 

needed, prior to voting.   

Apart from this procedure, the City has developed general policy guidelines to define desired 

project qualifications, public objectives, and priorities for investing TAD funds. These criteria 

serve as a consistent standard for evaluating project proposals, both within the existing TAD and 

for any new districts that may be created in the future.  These guidelines are provided in 

Attachment A and are an integral part of the procedures outlined above. 

2. FULTON COUNTY SCHOOL SYSTEM, BOARD OF EDUCATION APPROVAL 

The Fulton County School System, Board of Education (BOE) and the City Council have agreed 

to a separate procedure whereby the BOE has waived representation on the TADAC and has 

instead retained authority to approve contributions of school tax increment to City-approved 

projects.  The BOE accepts the City’s TAD Policies, adopted procedures and application form as 

the applicant form to be submitted when requesting “BOE Project Approval” of projects 

requesting school district tax allocation increments.  Having provided information requested in 

the TAD Application Form (Attachment B) to the satisfaction of the TADAC and having 

received project approval from the TADAC, the application will be forwarded to the BOE to 

begin the process of requesting the project’s approval by the BOE.  

BOE will base its review and consideration of the project on information and documentation 

supplied to the BOE by the City or TADAC as part of the City’s TAD application process.  The 

BOE may request additional detail regarding information supplied with or omitted from the 

applicant’s TAD application but may not impose additional application requirements which are 

not part of in the City’s procedure; or require the applicant to submit a separate application form 

specifically for BOE consent. If the project is approved by majority vote of the BOE, then the 

project will receive “BOE Project Approval” and will be eligible to receive future school district 

tax allocation increments as specified and outlined in the BOE IGA.  

As noted in Section 2(k) the City has agreed to limit the number of requests of FCSS Staff to 

8.C

Packet Pg. 166



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8470)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:56 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 3 

present TAD Project(s) to the BOE for approval, to once every six (6) months. FCSS Staff shall 

make a good faith effort to expedite the BOE’s review and presentation of project(s) and to 

obtain a vote within 90 days after receiving the City's submission of the TAD application(s) with 

supporting documentation.  In the event the BOE chooses not to consent to a project that has 

received support from both the TADAC and the City Council, the applicant may choose to 

proceed with City and County tax increments only, or can resume negotiations with the City to 

offset the financial impact of losing of school tax increment.  While this separate BOE procedure 

lengthens and introduces uncertainty to the review process, the City is committed to working 

with applicants and FCSS staff to ensure that terms and conditions associated with the 

commitment of TAD proceeds by the City and County are also consistent with BOE policy.  The 

goal will be to address likely school district concerns during negotiations with the City Council, 

so that once submitted to the BOE, applicants will face minimal hurdles.  

Please see the attached presentation and the Airport City Master Plan 

 

COST TO CITY:  None 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  City, Fulton County, and Fulton County Board of Education Additional 

Tax Revenue due to the development of the Six West Development.  The TADAC application 

request $30.4 million of TAD funds. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  Fulton County Board of 

Education 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  None 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  None 

 

STAFF:   Edmund Wall, BIDA Financial Advisor 

 

Artie Jones, III, Economic Development Director 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 TADAC Resolution 11182020 (DOCX) 

 TADAC Draft MINUTES 11182020 (DOCX) 

 College Park TAD Application Part 1 of 2 (PDF) 

 College Park TAD Application Part 2 of 2 (PDF) 

8.C

Packet Pg. 167



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8470)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:56 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 4 

 

Review: 

 Artie Jones Completed 11/18/2020 6:34 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/20/2020 1:08 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 12/02/2020 2:25 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:56 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.C

Packet Pg. 168



STATE OF GEORGIA 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 

RESOLUTION 2020-XX 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA TO APPROVE A 1 

PROJECT WITHIN ITS TAX ALLOCATION DISTRICT #1 TO USE FUTURE TAX 2 

ALLOCATION INCREMENTS TO ENHANCE THE VALUE OF SAID PROJECT; TO 3 

REPEAL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND POLICIES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 4 

DATE; AND FOR OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES. 5 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of College Park, Georgia (“City”) is the 6 

Mayor and Council thereof;  7 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Powers Law (O.C.G.A. §36-44-1, et seq.) provides for 8 

the exercise of redevelopment powers, the adoption of redevelopment plans, and the creation tax 9 

allocation districts by counties and municipalities in the State of Georgia; and  10 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Redevelopment Powers Law is to improve economic and 11 

social conditions within substantially underutilized, as well as economically and socially depressed 12 

urban areas that contribute to or cause unemployment, limit the tax resources of counties, 13 

municipalities and consolidated governments while creating a greater demand for governmental 14 

services, have a deleterious effect upon the public health, safety, morals and welfare, and impair 15 

or arrest the sound growth of the community; and 16 

WHEREAS, pursuant to House Bill 773 (2006 GA. LAWS p. 4507, et seq.) as approved by 17 

a majority of the voters in a referendum held on May 7, 1990, College Park is authorized to exercise 18 

the redevelopment powers as delineated by the Redevelopment Powers Law; and 19 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 169



WHEREAS, in accordance with its redevelopment powers, the City approved the creation 20 

of Tax Allocation District (“TAD”) #1 Downtown and Airport Gateways in 2015; and 21 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain intergovernmental agreement between the City and 22 

the Fulton County Board of Education (“BOE”), the City is permitted propose TAD projects to the 23 

BOE to use future tax increments from private development on TAD parcels that are currently 24 

publicly owned, and request TAD proceeds to reimburse the City for public investments made to 25 

assemble said property or fund additional public improvements which may be needed to enhance 26 

the value of the proposed private development; and   27 

WHEREAS, the City and its Business and Industrial Development Authority (“BIDA”) 28 

have assembled significant property holdings within TAD #1 (and may assemble additional 29 

property in the future) for the intended purpose of eventually conveying real estate for private 30 

sector redevelopment (“Six West Development”); and 31 

WHEREAS, the City’s Tax Allocation District Advisory Committee (“TADAC”) voted 32 

unanimously to approve a TAD #1 project within the Six West Development; and  33 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the best interest of College Park and its 34 

citizens, to approve the TAD #1 project within the Six West Development and request the BOE’s 35 

approval of said project.  36 

BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 37 

THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof that: 38 

Section 1.  The City hereby approves the proposed TAD #1 project within the Six West 39 

Development and shall submit its request for approval of said project to the BOE. The proposed 40 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 170



project is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference herein. 41 

Section 2.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all 42 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Resolution are or were, upon their 43 

enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 44 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest 45 

extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 46 

Resolution is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 47 

Resolution.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 48 

greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution 49 

is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 50 

Resolution. 51 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Resolution 52 

shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 53 

by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 54 

the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 55 

greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any 56 

of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Resolution and that, to 57 

the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 58 

sections of the Resolution shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and 59 

effect. 60 

 Section 3.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby expressly 61 

repealed. 62 

Section 4.  The Preamble of this Resolution shall be considered to be and is fully 63 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 171



incorporated by reference herein. 64 

Section 5. The effective date of this Resolution shall be the date of adoption unless 65 

otherwise specified herein. 66 

 67 

SO RESOLVED this ___7th ___day of ___December___, 2020. 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 

 

      ________________________________                                                                  

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________                                                                   

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

                                                                   

City Attorney 

 

  

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 172



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 173

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8475  

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:51 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Mercedes Miller, Convention Center Executive Director 

 

RE:  Contracted Landscape Maintenance Services Consideration 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To seek the approval to proceed by Mayor and Council in the selection of a vendor 

for a one-year commercial landscape maintenance contract for the Georgia International 

Convention Center, The Arena, Main Street and Detention Ponds. 

 

REASON:  To maintain the consistent quality of lawn care and maintenance services for the 

City has been historically established by the selection of the best candidate that can fulfill the 

expectations for the City of College Park's Main Street, GICC, the Arena and the Detention 

Ponds. This year the account was put out for bids and the costs comparisons are presented for 

your review. See the Executive Directors memorandum recommending the selection by Mayor 

and Council of Russell Landscape and the attached comparative RFP's for further reference. This 

is a budgeted item. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval by Mayor and City Council. 

 

BACKGROUND:  See attached contract detail. 

 

COST TO CITY: Landmark  Russell   Yellowstone 

 

GICC   $98,948.00  $115,240.00  $124,100.00 

      $1,650.00 (one time charge) 

Arena   $21,230.00  $ 18,280.00  $47,400.00 

Main St.  $43,118.00  $ 32,090.00  $106,700.00 

Detention Ponds $50,720.00  $34,340.00  $66,320.00 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes  GICC Account # 555-4970-52-5780 

    Yes Arena Account # 556-4969-52-5780 

    Yes  Main St. Account # 309-7340-52-6130 

    Yes  Public Works Account # 100-5195-52-6170 

8.D

Packet Pg. 425



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8475)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:51 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:    N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:    N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:    N/A 

 

STAFF:   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Director's Memo for Landscape Services.11.23.20 (DOCX) 

 Agenda Memo ID #2020-8475 - RFP - CITY LANDSCAPING SVC - 101320 (PDF) 

 RFP - CITY LANDSCAPING SVC (revised) - Specs (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 11/25/2020 1:56 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:58 PM 

 Willis Moody Completed 11/25/2020 2:16 PM 

 Artie Jones Completed 11/30/2020 10:21 AM 

 Mike Mason Completed 11/30/2020 11:39 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 12/02/2020 3:08 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:51 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.D

Packet Pg. 426



 
 

                  CONVENTION CENTER MEMORANDUM  2020-23  

        

 
DATE:   November 23, 2020  

    

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Council  

 

THROUGH: Terrence Moore, City Manager    

     

FROM:   Mercedes Miller, Executive Director 

   

SUBJECT:     Recommendation of Landscaping Vendor for GICC, Gateway Arena, Main Street 

and 9 Detention Ponds 

 

In October of 2020, the City of College submitted a request for proposal (RFP) for City 

landscaping services that would encompass four areas: GICC, Gateway Arena, Main Street and 9 

Detention Ponds. Three companies qualified for review, Yellowstone, Russell Landscape and 

Landmark Landscape. 

  

Upon further investigation it was decided that the overall bid which best serves the City’s needs 

of all four areas and is fiscally responsible is Russell Landscape. The incumbent vendor, Landmark 

Landscape, submitted prices which were higher in three of the four areas being considered. Please 

see attached tabulation sheet created by Willis Moody, Purchasing Manager.  

 

It is our recommendation to select Russell Landscape for the upcoming calendar year of 2021. 

This is a budgeted item. 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 427



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM  
NO. 2020-8475 

DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2020 

TO: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

FROM: WILLIS MOODY, PURCHASING & FLEEET ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: RFP – CITY LANDSCAPING SERVICES - 101320 
SEALED BID OPENING 

The purpose of this communication is to secure the approval to purchase the following item(s). 
Please include the following item(s) on the upcoming Mayor/Council agenda. 

Item Description: City Landscaping Services 

Budgeted item(s): This project budgeted for the current fiscal 

Recommendations: Russell Landscape is recommended at $201,600.00 as most responsive to 
the City this project 

Explanation of recommendation in full: 

This solicitation was advertised in the South Fulton Neighbor beginning September 21, 2020. The 
bid was published on the City of College Park website under the Bids/RFPs location, Vendor 
Registry.com, DOAS GPR (Georgia Procurement Registry) and the National Association of 
Minority Contractors - Georgia Chapter.  The advertisement publish from September 21, 2020 thru 
the close on October 13, 2020. 

A (mandatory) pre-proposal meeting will be held at the Georgia International Convention Center 
(GICC) 2200 Convention Center Concourse | College Park, GA | 30337 in Salon 4 on Thursday, 
September 24, 2020 at 10:00 am.  

All Social Distancing measures will be in place during the (mandatory) pre-proposal meeting and 
mask are required for entry to the building. 

There was an official Zoom (virtual) bid opening Tuesday, October 13, 2020 at 10:00 am with 
three vendors (Russell Landscape Group, Landmark Landscape, Yellowstone Landscape) logged 
into the meeting.  

Andrea Small represented the GICC and Jason Edwards represented Main Street and Public Works 
for the bid open. 

8.D.b

Packet Pg. 428



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
 

Zoom meeting link: 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/74591088335?pwd=SUpjWWdVNm9ydUNEbVNIc0pkdElKUT09  

Meeting ID: 745 9108 8335 - Passcode: 8HH5Ag  

There was an interview phase with each (responsive) company to finalize on the decision, held at 
the GICC on Tuesday, November 10, 2020 beginning at 9:00 am. 

1. Yellowstone Landscape @ 9:00 am 
2. Russell Landscape @ 10:00 am 
3. Landmark Landscape @ 11:00 am 

After completing the interview phase, a decision was made to revisit the proposal cost in order to 
make a decision, in hopes of lowering the proposed cost. With approval from Mercedes Miller, 
Executive Director of the GICC and Arena to change the landscape on the campus from flowers 
to mulch. There will not be any changes made to the scope for the Main Street / Route 29 corridor. 

Upon receiving all revised cost myself, Andreas Smalls and Jason Edwards noted a cost reduction 
of roughly $30,000.00, from all three vendors, removing the flowers from the GICC and Arena 
campus. 

  

8.D.b

Packet Pg. 429



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
Tabulation Matrix 

RFP – CITY LANDSCAPING SERVICES (revised) – 101320 

 

See the Bid Tabulation Sheet for results of opening. The original proposals are available for review 
in the Purchasing Department, schedule a time in advance. 

  

 Company Name Lump Sum 
Bid Amount 

Minority 
Y/N 

Class 

Is company 
located 

within the 
City Limits 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 Laury & Green Enterprises 
(non-responsive) $125,000.00 Y N N 

2 Russell Landscape $201,600.00 N N N 

3 Landmark Landscapes $214,016.00 N N Y 

4 Yellowstone Landscape $344,520.00 N N N 

 Company Name Department 
Bid Amount 

Minori
ty 

Y/N 
Class 

Is company 
located 

within the 
City Limits 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 Laury & Green Enterprises 
(non-responsive) 

Main Street / Route 29 = $25,000.00 
GICC = $45,000.00 
Arena = $40,000.00 
Public Works = $15,000.00 

Y N N 

2 Russell Landscape 

Main Street / Route 29 = $32,090.00 
GICC = $115,240.00 
Arena = $18,280.00 
Public Works = $34,340.00 

N N N 

3 Landmark Landscapes 

Main Street / Route 29 = $43,118.00 
GICC = $98,948.00 
Arena = $21,230.00 
Public Works = $50,720.00 

N N Y 

4 Yellowstone Landscape 

Main Street / Route 29 = $106,700.00 
GICC = $124,100.00 
Arena = $47,400.00 
Public Works = $66,320.00 

N N N 

8.D.b

Packet Pg. 430



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
Minority Status Legend: 

(1) African American Business Enterprise (AABE) (2) Hispanic Business Enterprise (HBE)  
(3) Female Business Enterprise (FBE) (4) Asian Business Enterprise (ABE)  
(5) Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) 
 
City of College Park 
Willis Moody, Purchasing/Fleet Administrator 
College Park, GA  30337 

 

8.D.b

Packet Pg. 431

































   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8484  

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:49 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

RE:  CDBG Professional (Engineering) Services 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To approve the bid award for RFP - CDBG PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - 

111720. 

 

REASON:  To approve a bid proposal for professional and engineering services for CDBG 

funded City of College Park Capital Improvement Projects programming and implementation. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve bid proposal and award a contract to Metrocorp 

Development Enterprise, Inc. for CDBG Professional (Engineering) Services. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Fulton County CDBG Program makes funding available to local 

governments like College Park for planning and implementation of community development 

projects in non-entitlement localities, which are those localities not receiving CDBG assistance 

directly from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Each project and 

activity utilizing CDBG funding must meet a national objective and established regulatory 

compliance guidelines for project implementation. 

 

The following professional services maybe provided as required: 

 

GRANT PREREQUISITE ADMINISTRATION ACTIVITIES 

 

 Grant Application preparation 

 CDBG grant/agreement coordination 

 Preparation of signature authorization form for grant funds 

 Project milestones document (schedule) development 

 Local match funding arrangements/Procurement documentation 

 Environmental Review Record documentation Preparation 

 Capital Project Concept and Preliminary Design Document preparation 

8.E

Packet Pg. 447



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8484)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:49 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

 

GRANT POST AWARD ADMINISTRATION ACTIVITIES 

 

 Capital Project Final Design and Construction Specification Document preparation 

 Coordinate with City to develop bid documents Review procurement policy  

 Monitor project milestones and budget  

 Ensure project milestones and budget comply  

 Develop grant amendments to revise project scope Order Wage Decision  

 Conduct preconstruction conference  

 Prepare quarterly reports and financial projection reports Ensure compliance with MBE 

procurement requirements  

 Conduct Davis Bacon labor interviews.  

 Review/approve contractor change orders   

 

MONITORING SITE VISITS AND REPORTS  

 

 Organize files, prepare for monitoring visits  

 Represent County during monitoring visits  

 Provide information as requested at monitoring visit  

 Prepare monitoring response letters for County 

 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION- BIDDING ASSISTANCE 

 

 Assist the City with the bidding process and providing the following support for the 

following tasks:  

 Compilation of final bid documents and project manual including specifications and bid 

form.  

 Pre-bid meeting attendance.  

 Written response to questions from bidders and the City.  

 Review of bids for compliance with requirements, check bidder references and make 

recommendation of award.  

 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION- POST CONTRACTOR SELECTION 

 

 Conduct Pre-construction meeting(s). 

 On-site construction meetings of appropriate design personnel and at critical points 

during construction to assure compliance with plans and specifications.  

 Provide observation of contractor’s operations and work to determine compliance with 

plans and specifications,  

 Quality of workmanship and progress including a written report to the Program Manager 

for all site visits until final acceptance of work.  

8.E

Packet Pg. 448



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8484)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:49 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 3 

 NPDES permit, compliance review (Review Notice of Intent) 

 perform initial inspection of the erosion control BMP’s, final inspection of the site and 

 preparation of the Notice of Termination. 

 Clarification of Requests for Information from the Contractor. 

 Conflict resolution to make recommendations to resolve conflicts and problems that may 

arise during the project. 

  Review shop drawings and other submittals. 

  Respond to contractor request for change orders and assist in evaluation of need and 

cost.  

 Make recommendations to the City for acceptance or rejection of the change order. 

 Coordinated building system inspection, testing and reporting. 

  Provide revised plans to compensate for construction issues that arise due to an 

insufficiency of information on the construction documents or unforeseen conditions. 

  Review and approve Contractor’s applications for payment. 

  Punch list inspection and preparation. 

  Final Inspection and approval of complete work. 

 After the first year of occupancy, a warranty inspection of all disciplines with the City 

and the Contractor. 

 

The staff recommends the award to Metrocorp Development Enterprises, Inc. a business located 

in College Park that has past experience working with the City of College Park on Capital 

Improvement projects that include CDBG funding. Metrocorp Development Enterprises, Inc. has 

provided the above listed professional design services and construction administration services 

for the Bill Badgett Stadium CDBG Improvements, Brady Recreation Facility CDBG 

Improvements and Godby Road Police Precinct. 

 

COST TO CITY:  The attached fee structure attached for Metrocorp Development Enterprise; 

Inc. will be used to establish cost of services based on the project professional service’s needs. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM: CDBG awarded contracts will include professional services and 

construction administration in the CDBG funding budget for reimbursement. 

 

City funded budget line items for professional services may be required to cover: 

 

 Grant prerequisite administration activities as required to determine CDBG project 

application consideration priorities and submittals for funding by City Council to Fulton 

Community Development Department. 

 City Council request for reallocation of CDBG funding to other projects. 

 Projects considered and not selected for CDBG grant funding. 

 CDBG new or additional funding application requests. 

 Project Audit Support. 

8.E

Packet Pg. 449



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8484)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:49 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 4 

 Project scope that incorporates both CDBG grant and non-grant capital project 

improvements funding to the facility or infrastructure. 

 Coordination of services provided by City Resources for facility and infrastructure 

related improvements to support project implementation 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Possible revenue generating for projects awarded. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF:  Staff would depend on the CDBG award for the projects. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Agenda Memo ID #2020-8484 - RFP – CDBG PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -111720

 (PDF) 

 CDBG Professional Services Contract _Metrocorp Development Enterprises Inc.  (1) (PDF) 

 RFP – CDBG PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -Specs (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Johnson Completed 11/25/2020 10:24 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:11 PM 

 Jackson Myers Completed 12/02/2020 8:27 AM 

 Danielle Matricardi Completed 12/02/2020 12:56 PM 

 Purchasing Completed 11/25/2020 2:06 PM 

 Finance Completed 12/03/2020 9:52 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:49 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.E

Packet Pg. 450



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM  
NO. 2020-8484 

DATE: NOVEMBER 25, 2020 

TO: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

FROM: WILLIS MOODY, PURCHASING & FLEEET ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: RFP – CDBG PROFESSIONAL (ENGINEERING) SERVICES - 111720 
SEALED BID OPENING 

The purpose of this communication is to secure the approval to purchase the following item(s). 
Please include the following item(s) on the upcoming Mayor/Council agenda. 

Item Description: CDBG Professional (Engineering) Services 

Budgeted item(s): This project is CDBG funded 

Recommendations: MetroCorp Development Enterprises, Inc. is recommended as the most 
responsive to the City for this project 

Explanation of recommendation in full: 

The bid was published on the City of College Park website under the Bids/RFPs location, Vendor 
Registry.com, DOAS GPR (Georgia Procurement Registry) and the National Association of 
Minority Contractors - Georgia Chapter. The advertisement was published from October 27, 2020 
thru November 17, 2020 at 9:30 am. 

No pre-bid conference was required for this project.  

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 at 10:00 am with one vendor (MetroCorp Development Enterprises, 
Inc) logged an official Zoom (virtual) bid opening into the meeting. 

Michelle Johnson, was in attendance for the Recreation Department 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/75187549983?pwd=RmY5VDByeHE0bVY3dWRjanZNZXFLUT09 

Meeting ID: 751 8754 9983 - Passcode: 6uy6U0 

8.E.a

Packet Pg. 451



 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PO BOX 87137 • COLLEGE PARK, GA  30337 • (404) 767-1537 

 
Tabulation Matrix 

RFP – CDBG PROFESSIONAL (ENGINEERING) SERVICES -111720 

See the Bid Tabulation Sheet for results of opening. The original proposals are available for review 
in the Purchasing Department, schedule a time in advance. 

Minority Status Legend: 

(1) African American Business Enterprise (AABE) (2) Hispanic Business Enterprise (HBE)  
(3) Female Business Enterprise (FBE) (4) Asian Business Enterprise (ABE)  
(5) Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) 
 
City of College Park 
Willis Moody 
Purchasing & Fleet Administrator 
College Park, GA  30337 

 

 Company Name Bid Amount 
Minority 

Y/N 
Class 

Is your 
compan

y 
located 

in CP 

Previous 
Work 
w/CP? 

1 MetroCorp Development Enterprises See Fee Chart Y Y Y 

2      

3      

4      

5      

8.E.a

Packet Pg. 452





































   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8489  

Updated: 12/1/2020 10:15 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 1, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Sharis McCrary, Deputy Chief of Police 

 

RE:  Motorola Solutions Service Agreement 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the Annual Service Agreement between College Park Police 

Department and Motorola Solutions. 

 

REASON:  College Park Police Department entered into an Annual Service Agreement with 

Motorola Solutions. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend approval of the Annual Service Agreement.  

 

BACKGROUND: This agreement is a yearly agreement for the monitoring and maintenance of 

the public safety radio system.  The 911 consoles are monitored remotely for disruptive issues 

and are generally repaired remotely, if issues cannot be repaired via network connection, 

technicians are dispatched to the 911 Center.  These Maintenance Service Terms and Conditions 

apply to service contracts whereby Motorola will provide to Customer either (1) maintenance, 

support, or other services under a Motorola Service Agreement, or (2) installation services under 

a Motorola Installation Agreement. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $174,036.81 

  

BUDGETED ITEM:  Yes, 100 3200 52 6170 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES: N/A. 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 470



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8489)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/1/2020 10:15 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A. 

 

STAFF: College Park Police Department 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Motorola Solutions Agreement (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 11/30/2020 2:53 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/01/2020 10:15 AM 

 Information Technology Pending  

 Purchasing Completed 12/01/2020 10:33 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Pending  

 Terrence R. Moore Pending  

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.F

Packet Pg. 471











   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8494  

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:59 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 2, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Danielle Matricardi, City Attorney 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Main Street College Parklets  - GDOT Maintenance Agreement 

 

 

In response to direction being authorized to collaborate with the College Park Main Street 

Association relative to the implementation of the Main Street College Parklets project, both the 

Office of the City Manager and that of City Engineer Loretta Washington are in receipt of the 

attached GDOT Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement and Right of Way Maintenance 

Agreement. 

 

Notably, the Indemnification Agreement requires the City to indemnify GDOT for actions in 

which GDOT may be partially responsible. Thus, if GDOT is 99% at fault for an incident and the 

City is 1% at fault, the City will be required to pay all costs and expenses to defend GDOT from 

any claims relating to the Parklets. As GDOT requires that both agreements be executed to 

receive approval for the Main Street College Parklets project, this leaves little room for 

negotiation.  

 

As such, we seek approval of the agreements in substantially the same form as attached hereto.  

 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT NEW BLANK (PDF) 

 GDOT Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/01/2020 11:51 AM 

8.G

Packet Pg. 476



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8494)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:59 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/01/2020 12:03 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 12/02/2020 12:19 PM 

 Loretta Washington Completed 12/01/2020 12:13 PM 

 Renee Coakley Completed 12/01/2020 12:12 PM 

 Artie Jones Completed 12/01/2020 12:45 PM 

 Jackson Myers Completed 12/02/2020 8:29 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/02/2020 2:00 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

8.G

Packet Pg. 477



Rev: March 2020 

RIGHT OF WAY MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

By and Between

THE 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

AND

____________________________________________________

____________________________________________

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _____ day of _____________, 20____  

by and between the DEPARTMENT of Transportation, an agency of the State of Georgia, 

hereinafter alternately referred to as “DEPARTMENT” or “LICENSOR”, and  the 

____________ hereinafter referred to as “LICENSEE”.

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT desires to enter into a public/private partnership to 

perform certain services relating to maintenance within DEPARTMENT’S right of way, 

hereinafter called the “PROJECT”, and

WHEREAS, the LICENSEE has represented to the DEPARTMENT that, if such 

permission is granted to the LICENSEE, LICENSEE shall bear all costs and liability associated 

with the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the LICENSEE has represented to the DEPARTMENT that they are 

qualified and experienced to provide such services and the DEPARTMENT has relied upon 

such representations;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants as 

herein contained, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto that:

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 478



ARTICLE I

SCOPE OF PROJECT

The DEPARTMENT shall permit the LICENSEE to perform or cause to be performed, 

the PROJECT consisting of certain services related to maintaining an identified section of the 

DEPARTMENT’S rights of way.

This permission shall be granted by the means of this Agreement for the entire scope of 

the PROJECT, as set forth herein.

The maintenance duties and responsibilities of the LICENSEE are defined and set forth 

in Article XI – MAINTENANCE WORK PLAN of this Agreement, and further enumerated 

and described in Exhibit ‘A’ – Application and Permit for Special Encroachment with approved 

drawings or final working drawings for a Department-approved construction PROJECT.  

Exhibit ‘A’ is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. The 

PROJECT location shall be defined or delineated as part of Exhibit ‘A’.  The required Special 

Encroachment Permit and/or the construction PROJECT final working drawings are to be 

approved or issued by the DEPARTMENT.

Should the LICENSEE desire that these maintenance services be performed by a third 

party, LICENSEE and the third party shall enter into subsequent agreement, whereby the 

LICENSEE shall assume all responsibility of repayment to the third party for those services to 

be rendered as set forth in Article XI - MAINTENANCE WORK PLAN.  The Agreement 

between LICENSEE and any third parties to this Agreement, shall meet all operational and 

administrative requirements, including the provisions of liability insurance, set forth by the 

DEPARTMENT, and all liability associated with the PROJECT shall be borne by LICENSEE 

and any third parties, as set forth in Article VIII, herein.

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 479



ARTICLE II

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZATION

TIME OF PERFORMANCE

Time is of the essence in this agreement.  The LICENSEE shall execute this Agreement 

and return it to the DEPARTMENT within thirty (30) days after receipt of contract forms from 

the DEPARTMENT.  

The LICENSEE shall begin work on the PROJECT under this Agreement immediately 

after receiving a signed and executed copy of the Agreement (unless noted otherwise in Exhibit 

A or upon PROJECT construction completion).

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, and upon execution of 

this Agreement, the DEPARTMENT grants the right to the LICENSEE to maintain, as set forth 

in Article XI- MAINTENANCE WORK PLAN, that specific section of right-of-way identified 

in this Agreement, and herein defined as the PROJECT.  

The duration of this Agreement shall be for fifty years from the date above first written 

unless terminated sooner by the DEPARTMENT or LICENSEE.

ARTICLE III

SUBSTANTIAL CHANGES

If, prior to the satisfactory completion of the services under this Agreement, any party 

materially alters the scope, character or complexity of the services from those required under the 

Agreement, a Supplemental Agreement shall be executed between the parties.  It is understood, 

however, that LICENSEE shall not engage in any activities or conduct any work which would 

be considered to be outside the scope of the permission granted to LICENSEE by the 

DEPARTMENT.  Minor changes in the work which do not involve increased compensation, 

extensions of time or changes in the goals and objectives of the work may be made by written 

notification of such change by any party with written approval by the other parties.

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 480



ARTICLE IV

ASSIGNMENT

It is understood by the LICENSEE that the work is considered personal and, except as 

provided for in Article I, LICENSEE agrees not to assign, sublet or transfer any or all of their 

interest in this Agreement without prior written approval of the DEPARTMENT.

ARTICLE V

CONTRACT DISPUTES

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been executed in ____  County, Georgia, 

without reference to its choice of law doctrine, and all questions of interpretation and 

construction shall be governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. Any litigation arising out of 

this contract shall be commenced within the State of Georgia. The foregoing provisions shall not 

be construed as waiving any immunity to suit or liability, including without limitation, sovereign 

immunity which may be available to the Department.

ARTICLE VI

INSURANCE

Prior to beginning work, the LICENSEE shall obtain and certify to the DEPARTMENT 

that it has the following minimum amounts of insurance coverage:

(a) Workmen’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Georgia.

(b) Public Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than one hundred thousand 

dollars ($100,000) for injuries, including those resulting in death to any one person, and in an 

amount of not less than three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) on an account of any one 

occurrence, or proof of self insurance.

(c) Property Damage Insurance in an amount of not less than fifty thousand dollars 

($50,000) from damages on account of any occurrence, with an aggregate limit of one hundred 

thousand dollars ($100,000), or proof of self insurance.

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 481



(d) Valuable Papers Insurance in an amount sufficient to assure the restoration of any 

plans, drawings, field notes, or other similar data relating to the work covered by the PROJECT.

(e) Insurance shall be maintained in full force and                 the life of the 

PROJECT. 

 The LICENSEE shall furnish upon request to the DEPARTMENT, certificates of 

insurance evidencing such coverage.  These certificates shall also provide that the insurance will 

not be modified or canceled without a 30 day prior written notice to the DEPARTMENT.  

Failure by the LICENSEE to procure and maintain the insurance as set forth above shall be 

considered a default and cause for termination of this Agreement and forfeiture of the 

Performance and Payment Bonds.  The LICENSEE shall, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the 

expiration date or dates of expiring policies, deposit certified copies of renewal, or new policies, 

or other acceptable evidence of insurance with the DEPARTMENT.

ARTICLE VII

COMPENSATION

It is agreed that LICENSEE shall conduct all work at no cost to the DEPARTMENT, 

and without compensation from the DEPARTMENT.  It is further agreed that any and all issues 

relating to compensation and payment shall be resolved by and between LICENSEE and any 

successors, subcontractors, or assigns thereto.

The DEPARTMENT and LICENSEE further agree that, should the DEPARTMENT 

be required to conduct any inspections and/or supervision of the PROJECT beyond that which 

would normally occur in the ordinary course of the DEPARTMENT’S maintenance activities, 

LICENSEE shall reimburse the DEPARTMENT for such inspection and supervision.  The rate 

of reimbursement for the DEPARTMENT’S inspection and supervision shall in no case exceed 

a rate determined to be reasonable by the parties.

Should LICENSEE and the DEPARTMENT desire to change this agreement at a later 

date to provide for compensation to LICENSEE, or any successors or assigns thereto, such 

change shall only be permitted by a supplemental agreement as set forth in Article III herein.  

Any supplemental agreements involving compensation shall be subject to the DEPARTMENT 

review and approval.  

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 482



ARTICLE VIII

RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY

LICENSEE NOT AGENT OF DEPARTMENT

LICENSEE, and all successors and assigns thereto, shall save harmless the 

DEPARTMENT, its officers, agents, and employees from all suits, claims, actions or damages 

of any nature whatsoever resulting from the performance of work assigned to LICENSEE under 

this Agreement.  LICENSEE further agrees that they shall be fully responsible for injury or 

damage to landscaping, landscape related items, and any other non-standard and decorative 

elements installed by or for the LICENSEE within the right of way, and for any damage to the 

DEPARTMENT’S signs, structures, or roadway fixtures, if LICENSEE causes the damage.  

These indemnities shall not be limited by reason of the listing of any insurance coverage.

It is further understood and agreed that LICENSEE, or any successor or assigns thereto, 

in the conduct of any work involved in the PROJECT, shall not be considered the agent of the 

DEPARTMENT or of the State of Georgia.

ARTICLE IX

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

The DEPARTMENT may terminate this contract for just cause at any time by giving of 

thirty (30) days written notice of such termination.  Upon receipt of such notice of termination, 

LICENSEE shall discontinue and cause all work under this contract to terminate upon the date 

specified in the said notice.  In the event of such termination, the DEPARTMENT shall be paid 

for any amounts as may be due it as specified in Article VII up to and including the specified 

date of termination.  LICENSEE shall have the right to terminate this contract at any time, 

provided that such termination is first approved by the DEPARTMENT, and that the 

DEPARTMENT is reimbursed in full for all services rendered pursuant to Article VII.

The DEPARTMENT and LICENSEE further agree that, should the DEPARTMENT 

allow the LICENSEE to terminate the agreement, the termination, unless determined otherwise 

in writing by the DEPARTMENT, shall be contingent upon the following:

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 483



A. The LICENSEE, at the discretion of the DEPARTMENT, removing the planted 

landscaping, landscape related items, and any other non-standard and decorative elements 

that were installed by or for the LICENSEE at no cost to the DEPARTMENT. 

B. The LICENSEE restoring the removed landscape areas to their original condition or a 

condition that meets federal standards and is acceptable to the DEPARTMENT. 

C. The LICENSEE restoring the removed non-standard and decorative elements with 

standard DEPARTMENT elements that meet federal and state requirements. 

D. The LICENSEE reimbursing the DEPARTMENT in full any state and/or federal funds 

used to purchase and install the landscaping, landscape related items, and other non-

standard and decorative elements that are no longer to be maintained by the LICENSEE.

The DEPARTMENT and the LICENSEE agree that, should the LICENSEE fail to 

perform the maintenance, as set forth in Article XI - MAINTENANCE WORK PLAN, the 

DEPARTMENT may require the LICENSEE to remove, restore, and reimburse according to 

items “A”, “B”, “C”, and “D” above, as applicable, and then terminate the agreement. 

ARTICLE X

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW

The undersigned certify that: 

A. This Agreement is subject to applicable state and federal laws, standards, and 

rules and regulations.

B. The provisions of Sections 45-10-20 through 45-10-28 of the Official Code of 

Georgia Annotated relating to Conflict of Interest and State Employees and Officials Trading 

with the State have been complied with in full.

C. The provisions of Section 50-24-1 through 50-24-6 of the Official Code of 

Georgia Annotated, relating to the “Drug-Free Workplace Act” have been complied with in full.

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 484







The covenants herein contained shall, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the benefit 

of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said parties have hereunto set their hand and affixed their seals the 

day and year above first written.

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

______________________________________
Commissioner or designee

ATTEST:

______________________________________

Treasurer

LICENSEE:

_______________________________________

(Title)

Sworn to before me this

_______day of _________________, 20____.

________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires _____________, ______.

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 487



EXHIBIT ‘A’

(Attach the Application and Permit for Special Encroachment with approved drawings or the final working 

drawings for a Department-approved construction)

8.G.a

Packet Pg. 488





   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8482  

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:48 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Appointments for The Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee 

 

 

PURPOSE:   To make appointments for the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee and to 

decide which elected official will serve as a part of the Committee.  

 

REASON:  The Comprehensive Plan update that was previously approved requires the 

appointment of a Steering Committee. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: City Planner recommends that Council appoint the following 

members to the Steering Committee: 

 

 One Elected Official  

 Planning Commission Chair 

 BIDA representative  

 Main Street Chair or representative  

 Council appointed members (5) (1 per district and from Mayor) 

 ARC staff assigned to the project 

 City Planners (staff) 

 Airport Affairs Manager (staff) 

 Economic Development representative (staff) 

 

BACKGROUND:  One elected official is required to serve on the Committee. The Planning 

Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals will receive consistent updates throughout the 

process from the City Planner and can review materials and provide input. The Steering 

Committee provides an opportunity to have additional members from the community participate 

in the process.  

 

The previous Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee: 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 490



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8482)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:48 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 2 

 Mari Early - Principal, College Park Elementary School 

 Dr. Lateshia Woodley - Principal, McClarin Success Academy  

 Nija Meyer - Vice President for Strategic Marketing & Communications, Woodward 

Academy  

 Tom Carpenter - College Park Main Street Association  

 Barbara McKee - LIFT Community Development Corporation  

 Don Winbush - Old National Merchants' Association  

 Rev. Vicki Smith - College Park First United Methodist Church 

 Pastor Marjorie Dent - Mercy Missionary Baptist Church  

 Richard Pfleger - St. John's Episcopal Church  

 Anthony Mitchell - Historic College Park Neighborhood Association  

 Rod Mullice - Air Realty, LLC/Colliers International/Development Community 

 Ambrose Clay - Ward 1 City Councilman  

 Eileen Murphy - Ward 1 Planning Commissioner  

 Andrea McDaniel - Ward 2 Board of Zoning Appeals Member 

 Charles McCall - Ward 3 Board of Zoning Appeals Member  

 Whitney Flemister - Ward 4 Planning Commissioner 

 Rhonda Brown - At-Large Planning Commissioner  

 Jeff Green - College Park Business & Industrial Development Authority (BIDA) 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  December 7, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF:  Planning  

 

 

Review: 

9.A

Packet Pg. 491



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8482)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:48 AM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 3 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 11/20/2020 9:14 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/25/2020 1:27 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 12/02/2020 3:03 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:48 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

9.A

Packet Pg. 492



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8502  

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:39 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Second Quarter Budget Adjustment Considerations 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Second Quarter Budget Considerations. 

 

In response to the budget and forecast update which was presented by the City's Financial 

Advisor, Ed Wall at the November 2, 2020 workshop meeting , the attached documents are being 

presented for direction and approval.  

 

The document includes recommendations to reduce cost and the opportunity to restructure debt 

to assist with the reduction of revenues as a direct result of COVID-19. 

 

A budget amendment will be presented at the January 4th meeting to incorporate adjustments 

approved at the December 7th, 2020 Council meeting.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 College Park Memo 12.1.20 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 12/03/2020 1:37 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/03/2020 10:39 AM 

 GICC Completed 12/03/2020 11:14 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 11:15 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

10.A

Packet Pg. 493





after Atlanta’s fiscal year 2020.  So that would be on or about 30 December 2022.  The Car Rental Fund 

had a cash fund balance to fund its obligations (Arena Debt Service) for FY 2021.  We will need to figure 

out FY 2022 when we prepare next year’s budget. 

Arena Fund – It has an operating budget of $3,200,000.  For the first 3 months, it had operating 

revenues of $69,000.  Mercedes has submitted a list of expense reductions in Exhibit B.  These 

recommended cuts total $984,000.  We are assuming the Arena has additional revenues for the 

remainder of FY 2021 of $350,000.  These adjustments are as follows: 

Original Budget  (3,200,000) 
Recommended cuts  984,000 
Actual Revenues  69,000 
Additional Expected Revenues  350,000 
Net to be funded from General Fund  (1,797,000) 

 

Convention Center Fund – It has an operating expense of $8,200,000.  For the first 3 months, it 

produced revenues of $255,000.  Mercedes has listed some recommended expense reductions in Exhibit 

C.  Those recommended cuts total $2,500,000.  Please note these recommendations necessitate closing 

the GICC completely for the months of January, February, March and April.  This assumes reopening the 

GICC for the months of May and June.  We expect revenues for those two months of $200,000.  These 

adjustments are as follows: 

Original Budget  (8,200,000) 
Recommended cuts  2,500,000 
Actual Revenues  255,000 
Revenue for May/June  200,000 
Net to be funded from General Fund  (5,245,000) 

 

College Park Debt – We have identified certain Bond issues that can be refinanced and save the City 

money on a cash flow basis.  We would take the principal that is due on certain bonds over the next 3 

years and finance that over the next 15 years with interest only on the new debt for the next 3 years.  

The savings from this would be as follows: 

FY 2021  $2,200,000 
FY 2022  8,556,000 
FY 2023  8,552,000 
FY 2024  6,659,000 

 

The extra interest costs to the City to do this is a present value ($1,224,000) over the 15 year period.  

(See Exhibit D). 

 

 

 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 495





Exhibit A – Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue Collections by Month 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 497



Hotel/Motel Receipts

FY2020

Collection Period  Collections/Bank Month Received

Jul‐19 953,308.56                

Aug‐19 926,920.32                

Check 39,156.80                  

Sep‐19 908,241.36                

Oct‐19 987,849.12                

Check 3,975.00                    

Nov‐19 755,418.41                

Check 34,759.88                  

Dec‐19 713,561.37                

Jan‐20 949,962.03                

Check 33,446.11                  

Feb‐20 929,180.19                

Mar‐20 445,028.62                

Apr‐20 292,575.71                

Check 22,988.84                  

May‐20 206,035.96                 Jul‐20

Jun‐20 282,067.16                 Aug‐20

Check 10,052.34                   Aug‐20

Check 6,681.73                     Sep‐20

Total 8,501,209.51            

FY2021

Collection Period  Collections/Bank Month Received

Check 16,487.06                   Aug‐20

Jul‐20 381,493.84                 Sep‐20

Refund  (20,786.90)                  Sep‐20

July Check 18,557.30                   Oct‐20

Aug‐20 384,234.15                 Oct‐20

Sep‐20 372,484.62                 Nov‐20

Total 1,152,470.07            

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 498



Exhibit B – Arena Fund Suggested Reductions in Expenses 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 499



Amended YTD Estimated Estimated Estimated Remaining 
Budget

Budget Transactions Nov and Dec thru 12/31/2020

612,290 00 195,131.70 97,565.85 292,697.55 319,592.45 89,200.80

5,000 00 00 .00 0.00 5,000.00 5000

42,600 00 00 .00 0.00 42,600.00 42600

5,800 00 1,821.13 .00 0.00 5,800.00 3000

5,000 00 00 .00 0.00 5,000.00 0

9,496 00 2,574 33 1,287.17 3,861.50 5,634.50 1608.96

2,663 00 00 .00 0.00 2,663.00 2663

$682,849 00 $199,527.16 $98,853.02 298,380.18 $386,289.95 144,072.76

125,581 00 42,779.71 21,389.86 64,169.57 61,411.43 17885.65

695 00 274 86 137.43 412.29 282.71 124.15

1,000 00 160 65 80.33 240.98 759.03 0

1,200 00 133.74 66.87 200.61 999.39 0

113,954 00 31,644.71 15,822.36 47,467.07 66,486.94 19666.45

2,716 00 1,094 67 547.34 1,642.01 1,074.00 306.8

15,000 00 00 .00 0.00 15,000.00 10000

$260,146 00 $76,088 34 $38,044.18 114,132.52 $146,013.49 47983.05

237,900 00 29,470 24 14,735.12 44,205.36 193,694.64 0

125,000 00 2,976 53 1,488.27 4,464.80 120,535.21 0

55,000 00 00 .00 0.00 55,000.00 0

18,000 00 00 .00 0.00 18,000.00 0

$435,900 00 $32,446.77 $16,223.39 48,670.16 $387,229.85 $0.00

20,000 00 00 .00 0.00 20,000.00 20000

$20,000 00 $0 00 $0.00 0.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

12,000 00 00 .00 0.00 12,000.00 6000

26,908 00 2,382 88 1,191.44 3,574.32 23,333.68 5000

10,000 00 5,792 00 2,896.00 8,688.00 1,312.00 0

$48,908 00 $8,174 88 $4,087.44 12,262.32 $36,645.68 $11,000.00

105,000 00 00 .00 0.00 105,000.00 0

$105,000 00 $0 00 $0.00 0.00 $105,000.00 0

6,300 00 00 .00 0.00 6,300.00 6300

2,485 00 495 00 .00 495.00 1,990.00 990

$8,785 00 $495 00 $0.00 495.00 $8,290.00 7290

400 00 00 .00 0.00 400.00 400

00 00 .00 0.00 .00 0

200,000 00 15,423 39 7,711.70 23,135.09 176,864.92 100000

5,000 00 144 06 72.03 216.09 4,783.91 3000

00 110,697 58 55,348.79 166,046.37 (166,046.37) 0

350,000 00 205 20 102.60 307.80 349,692.20 250000

250,000 00 57,178 55 28,589.28 85,767.83 164,232.18 40000

77,250 00 25,000 00 12,500.00 37,500.00 39,750.00 0

2,181 00 3,724 24 1,862.12 5,586.36 (3,405.36) 0

$884,831 00 $212,373 02 $106,186.51 318,559.53 $566,271.47 393400

Estimated 
Budget 

Reduction

Other Services & Charges Totals

52 6172 Contractual Services for Projects 

52 6560 Workers Comp/Administrati

52 6170 Contractual Services

52 6171 Security Services

52 6050 Bank Charges

52 6110 Other Insurance

52 5451 Audit Fees

52 6000 Advertising Expense

Other Services & Charges

52 3505 Mileage Reimbursement

52 6210 Dues

Training & Education Totals

Building Maintenance Totals

Training & Education

52 6200 Training

Repair & Maintenance Totals

Building Maintenance

52 5740 R&M-Buildings 

52 5730 R&M - D/P Equipment

52 5780 Grounds

Rentals Totals

Repair & Maintenance

52 5710 R&M Furn. & Equip.

Rentals

52 5360 Other Equipment Rental

52 5280 Other Communication/Util

Communications & Util  Totals

52 5260 Heat & Power

52 5270 Water

Employee Benefits Totals

Communications & Util

52 5240 Telephone

51 5166 Dental Insurance

51 5180 Uniforms

51 5164 LT Disability Insurance

51 5165 Health Insurance

51 5161 Life Insurance

51 5163 ST Disability Insurance

Personnel Services Totals

Employee Benefits

51 5150 City Pension Contribution

51 5190 Medicare

51 5200 Fica

51 5040 Shared Utility Payments

51 5041 Shared Personnel Costs

Gateway Center Arena Estimated Savings

Account Account Description

51 5020 Salary/Overtime

51 5030 Salary/Partime

Personnel Services
51 5010 Salary/Operating

EXPENSE

 Run by Lakisha Overton on 11/16/2020 11:53:05 AM    

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 500



Amended YTD Estimated Estimated Estimated Remaining 
Budget

Budget Transactions Nov and Dec thru 12/31/2020

Estimated 
Budget 

Reduction

Gateway Center Arena Estimated Savings

Account Account Description

200 00 00 .00 0.00 200.00 200

1,050 00 00 .00 0.00 1,050.00 550

5,000 00 932 83 466.42 1,399.25 3,600.76 2500

5,000 00 00 .00 0.00 5,000.00 2500

500 00 00 .00 0.00 500.00 250

60,000 00 343 20 171.60 514.80 59,485.20 30000

1,000 00 00 .00 0.00 1,000.00 600

36,500 00 00 .00 0.00 36,500.00 26500

9,239 00 838.99 419.50 1,258.49 7,980.52 5000

21,550 00 00 .00 0.00 21,550.00 15000

5,000 00 525 06 262.53 787.59 4,212.41 2500

$145,039 00 $2,640 08 $1,320.04 3,960.12 $141,078.88 85600

130,000 00 15,000 00 7,500.00 22,500.00 107,500.00 30000

125,000 00 3,083 58 1,541.79 4,625.37 120,374.63 60000

75,000 00 5,162.96 2,581.48 7,744.44 67,255.56 40000

20,000 00 00 .00 0.00 20,000.00 15000

30,000 00 00 .00 0.00 30,000.00 20000

10,000 00 924.40 462.20 1,386.60 8,613.40 4000

1,750 00 00 .00 0.00 1,750.00 1250

20,000 00 2,088 27 1,044.14 3,132.41 16,867.60 10000

186,600 00 (658.00) (329.00) (987 00) 187,587.00 90000

$598,350 00 $25,601 21 $12,800.61 38,401.82 $559,948.19 270250

00 105,548 00 .00 0.00 105,548.00 0

00 00 .00 0.00 .00 0

5,000 00 00 .00 0.00 5,000.00 5000

00 00 .00 0.00 .00 0

$5,000 00 $105,548 00 $0.00 105,548.00 $110,548.00 5000

1,735,000 00 1,735,000 00 867,500.00 2,602,500.00 (867,500.00) 0

1,134,819 00 581,506 25 290,753.13 872,259.38 262,559.63 0

$2,869,819 00 $2,316,506 25 $1,158,253.13 3,474,759.38 ($604,940.38) 0

$6,064,627 00 $2,979,400.71 $1,435,768.30 $4,415,169.01 $1,862,375.12 $984,595.81EXPENSE TOTALS

58 2000 Bond Interest

Debt Service Totals

Debt Service

58 1100 Bond Principal

54 7640 Other Equipment - Replace

Capital Outlay Totals

54 7550 Furniture/Fixtures New

54 7630 Other Equipment - New

Cost Of Sales Totals

Capital Outlay

54 7520 Buildings

53 6420 Concessions Purchased

53 7030 Food & Dietary Supplies

53 5963 Kitchen Equipment Reserve

53 5964 Bad Debt Reserve

53 5961 Expendable Reserve

53 5962 Marketing Reserve

52 6280 Contract Labor

52 6290 Contract Miscellaneous

Materials & Supplies Totals

Cost Of Sales

52 6260 Management Fee

53 7150 Other Operating Supplies

53 7310 Office Supplies

53 7121 Computer Hardware

53 7122 Computer Supplies

53 7020 Janitorial Supplies

53 7050 Medical Services/Supplies

53 7000 Gas & Oil

53 7010 Tools/Shop Supplies

52 7320 Stationery & Printing

52 7330 Copy Expense

Materials & Supplies

52 7300 Postage

 Run by Lakisha Overton on 11/16/2020 11:53:05 AM    

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 501



 

Exhibit C – GICC Recommended Expense Reductions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 502



Amended YTD Estimated  Estimated  Estimated  Estimated 

Account Description Budget Transactions NOV and Dec thru  12/31/2020 Remaining 
Budget

Budget 
Reduction

Salary/Operating 2,033,483.00 519,520.23 346,973.80 866,494.03 1,166,988.97 445,983.20
Salary/Overtime 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Salary/Partime 150,000.00 7,106.25 1,000.00 8,106.25 141,893.75 118,494.75
Shared Utility Payments 12,000.00 4,290.75 2,000.00 6,290.75 5,709.25 4,000.00
Shared Personnel Costs 25,000.00 6,514.63 2,000.00 8,514.63 16,485.37 7,000.00
Medicare 33,182.00 7,143.28 4,755.30 11,898.58 21,283.42 7,000.00
Fica 10,500.00 1,085.73 645.05 1,730.78 8,769.22 7,306.72

2,274,165.00 545,660.87 357,374.15 903,035.02 1,371,129.98 599,784.67

City Pension Contribution 386,831.00 111,131.11 69,870.00 181,001.11 205,829.89 89,424.09
Life Insurance 2,180.00 626.08 400.00 1,026.08 1,153.92 521.43
AD&D Insurance 46.00 0.00 0.00 46.00 0.00
ST Disability Insurance 4,115.00 785.19 488.15 1,273.34 2,841.66 1,000.00
LT Disability Insurance 3,652.00 685.67 426.60 1,112.27 2,539.73 500.00
Health Insurance 377,880.00 98,188.40 60,545.00 158,733.40 219,146.60 88,932.09
Dental Insurance 7,814.00 2,648.80 1,161.40 3,810.20 4,003.80 2,018.00
Uniforms 20,000.00 550.00 0.00 550.00 19,450.00 19,450.00

802,518.00 214,615.25 132,891.15 347,506.40 455,011.60 201,845.61

Position Consideration 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

Telephone 252,300.00 25,433.20 20,000.00 45,433.20 206,866.80 5,000.00
Heat & Power 1,000,000.00 413,805.54 206,902.50 620,708.04 379,291.96 0.00
Water 80,000.00 29,559.17 15,000.00 44,559.17 35,440.83 5,000.00
Other Communication/Util 24,900.00 8,016.10 4,000.00 12,016.10 12,883.90 0.00

1,357,200.00 476,814.01 245,902.50 722,716.51 634,483.49 10,000.00

Other Equipment Rental 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00
2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 6,000.00

R&M - Vehicles 3,016.00 151.33 1,000.00 1,151.33 1,864.67 500.00
R&M Furn. & Equip. 42,600.00 4,746.16 5,000.00 9,746.16 32,853.84 5,000.00
R&M - D/P Equipment 163,369.00 12,537.34 40,000.00 52,537.34 110,831.66 5,000.00
Grounds 152,000.00 33,927.83 16,000.00 49,927.83 102,072.17 2,500.00

360,985.00 51,362.66 62,000.00 113,362.66 247,622.34 13,000.00

R&M-Buildings 226,500.00 30,161.98 25,000.00 55,161.98 171,338.02 7,000.00
226,500.00 30,161.98 25,000.00 55,161.98 171,338.02 7,000.00

Training 4,875.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 4,755.00 3,000.00
Dues 14,178.00 5,016.17 4,000.00 9,016.17 5,161.83 1,000.00
Conventions/Meetings 3,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 500.00

Personnel Services
51 5010

EXPENSE

Account

GICC Estimated Savings

51 5190
51 5200

51 5040
51 5041

51 5020
51 5030

51 5163
51 5164

51 5161
51 5162

Personnel Services Totals
Employee Benefits

51 5150

New Personnel Costs
51 5210

51 5180
Employee Benefits Totals

51 5165
51 5166

52 5280
Communications & Util. Totals

52 5260
52 5270

New Personnel Costs Totals
Communications & Util.

52 5240

Rentals Totals
Repair & Maintenance

52 5700

Rentals
52 5360

Building Maintenance
52 5740

52 5780
Repair & Maintenance Totals

52 5710
52 5730

52 6210
52 6230

Building Maintenance Totals
Training & Education

52 6200

 Run by Jane Cox on 11/05/2020 11:01:31 AM    

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 503



Amended YTD Estimated  Estimated  Estimated  Estimated 

Account Description Budget Transactions NOV and Dec thru  12/31/2020 Remaining 
Budget

Budget 
Reduction

Account

GICC Estimated Savings

22,053.00 5,136.17 5,000.00 10,136.17 11,916.83 4,500.00

Mileage Reimbursement 200.00 82.44 10.00 92.44 107.56 75.00
Central Plant - Misc. 15,000.00 6,694.66 3,500.00 10,194.66 4,805.34 0.00
Legal Fees 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
Advertising Expense 11,000.00 1,669.71 3,000.00 4,669.71 6,330.29 3,000.00
Bank Charges 54,000.00 1,725.51 10,000.00 11,725.51 42,274.49 20,000.00
Auto Insurance 2,742.00 3,381.73 0.00 3,381.73 -639.73 0.00
Other Insurance 163,285.00 117,117.92 0.00 117,117.92 46,167.08 0.00
Miscellaneous Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Contractual Services 50,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 45,000.00 20,000.00
Security Services 345,000.00 40,339.77 17,000.00 57,339.77 287,660.23 60,000.00
City Wide Events 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Auto Allowance 6,000.00 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Workers Comp/Administrati 12,905.00 14,198.65 0.00 14,198.65 -1,293.65 0.00
Contingencies 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00
Claims Workers Comp. 0.00 1,445.59 0.00 1,445.59 -1,445.59 0.00

711,132.00 188,655.98 39,510.00 228,165.98 482,966.02 103,075.00

Postage 325.00 2.37 25.00 27.37 297.63 150.00
Stationery & Printing 3,600.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 3,100.00 1,500.00
Copy Expense 10,800.00 603.44 2,000.00 2,603.44 8,196.56 0.00
Gas & Oil 7,000.00 1,247.75 600.00 1,847.75 5,152.25 2,000.00
Tools/Shop Supplies 1,000.00 761.00 0.00 761.00 239.00
Janitorial Supplies 63,140.00 777.51 3,000.00 3,777.51 59,362.49 21,000.00
Medical Services/Supplies 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 400.00
Computer Hardware 40,700.00 599.00 15,000.00 15,599.00 25,101.00 5,000.00
Computer Supplies 12,500.00 1,516.07 2,000.00 3,516.07 8,983.93 2,500.00
Other Operating Supplies 10,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 9,000.00 7,000.00
Office Supplies 2,000.00 1,178.04 500.00 1,678.04 321.96 0.00

151,665.00 6,685.18 24,625.00 31,310.18 120,354.82 39,550.00

Management Fee 284,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 30,000.00 254,000.00 234,000.00
Contract Labor 750,000.00 165,723.97 140,000.00 305,723.97 444,276.03 340,000.00
Contract Miscellaneous 272,500.00 23,518.35 23,518.35 248,981.65 70,000.00
Expendable Reserve 30,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 27,000.00 20,000.00
Marketing Reserve 90,000.00 5,159.89 8,000.00 13,159.89 76,840.11 20,000.00
Kitchen Equipment Reserve 30,000.00 10,901.95 10,000.00 20,901.95 9,098.05 0.00
Bad Debt Reserve 14,000.00 0.00 0.00 14,000.00 0.00
Concessions Purchased 60,000.00 2,961.24 2,961.24 57,038.76 55,000.00
Food & Dietary Supplies 725,000.00 19,375.92 19,375.92 705,624.08 675,000.00

2,255,500.00 242,641.32 176,000.00 418,641.32 1,836,858.68 1,414,000.00

Furniture/Fixtures Replac 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

52 5290
52 5450

Training & Education Totals
Other Services & Charges

52 3505

52 6130
52 6170

52 6100
52 6110

52 6000
52 6050

52 6590
52 6600

52 6240
52 6560

52 6171
52 6193

53 7000
53 7010

52 7320
52 7330

Other Services & Charges Totals
Materials & Supplies

52 7300

53 7150
53 7310

53 7121
53 7122

53 7020
53 7050

52 6280
52 6290

Materials & Supplies Totals
Cost Of Sales

52 6260

53 6420
53 7030

53 5963
53 5964

53 5961
53 5962

Cost Of Sales Totals
Capital Outlay

54 7560

 Run by Jane Cox on 11/05/2020 11:01:31 AM    

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 504



Amended YTD Estimated  Estimated  Estimated  Estimated 

Account Description Budget Transactions NOV and Dec thru  12/31/2020 Remaining 
Budget

Budget 
Reduction

Account

GICC Estimated Savings

Other Equipment - Replace 201,475.00 22,747.22 0.00 22,747.22 178,727.78 100,000.00
201,475.00 22,747.22 0.00 22,747.22 178,727.78 100,000.00

Bond Principal 5,065,000.00 5,065,000.00 0.00 5,065,000.00 0.00 0.00
Bond Interest 810,957.00 434,421.50 0.00 434,421.50 376,535.50 0.00

5,875,957.00 5,499,421.50 0.00 5,499,421.50 376,535.50 0.00
14,244,150.00 7,283,902.14 1,070,302.80 8,354,204.94 5,893,945.06 2,501,755.28

54 7640
Capital Outlay Totals

EXPENSE TOTALS

58 2000
Debt Service Totals

Debt Service
58 1100

 Run by Jane Cox on 11/05/2020 11:01:31 AM    

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 505



 

 

Exhibit D – Debt Restructure Memo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 506



 
 

Piper Sandler & Co. Since 1895. Member SIPC and NYSE  

1442 Dresden Drive, Suite 257     Atlanta, Georgia 30319     (404) 846-9571     Fax: (404) 745-8098 

Memo 
 
To: Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Accounting and Finance  

From: Ed Wall & Whit Moloney 

Date: 18 November 2020 

Re:  Debt Restructuring 

 
Piper Sandler (“Piper”), in conjunction with the City of College Park (GA) (“City”), has been looking for 
alternatives methods to counter the budget and revenue pressure in this current fiscal year and 
anticipated pressures in the next two fiscal years because of the COVID19 Pandemic.   
 
Piper looked at several refunding and restructuring options to alleviate the short-term demands on 
the City’s debt service requirement.  Year-to-date, exlcuding the GEFA loans, the City has retired 
$9,035,000 in principal and paid $2,521,278 in interest.  We have identified the following 
bonds/loans that can potentially be refunding to provide relief within the BIDA Fund: 
 

 Convention Center, Series 2013 ($8,320,000); 
 Convention Center, Series 2016 ($24,615,000); 
 Redevelopment Authority, Series 2013 (Public Safety Building) ($3,235,000); 
 Redevelopment Authority, Series 2014 (Atlanta Land Purchase) ($1,420,000); 
 Redevelopment Authority, Series 2014 (Hotel) ($3,965,000); 
 Redevelopment Authority, Series 201 (Land) ($3,000,000); and 
 Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 ($5,905,000) (the “Refunded Bonds”) 

 
We have assumed that the City has extended the maturity of the Refunded Bonds 15-years, with no 
principal due the first three years, and solved for level debt service thereafter.   
 
As you will see in the attached chart, assuming successful execution of the financings, the City could 
achieve debt sevice relief as follows: 
 

 FY2021 $2,213,813 
 FY2022 $8,556,579 
 FY2023 $8,552,388 
 FY2024 $6,659,906  

 
 
Below is a comparison of the City’s current Debt Service schedule versus the proposed restructuring: 
 
 
 
 
 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 507



 
 

Piper Sandler & Co. Since 1895. Member SIPC and NYSE  

1442 Dresden Drive, Suite 257     Atlanta, Georgia 30319     (404) 846-9571     Fax: (404) 745-8098 

Fiscal Year
Prior Debt 

Service
Proposed Debt 

Service Savings

6/30/2021* 4,982,587           2,768,774           2,213,813      
6/30/2022 16,697,481          8,140,902           8,556,579      
6/30/2023 16,685,535          8,133,147           8,552,388      
6/30/2024 16,702,617          10,042,711         6,659,906      
6/30/2025 16,191,717          13,992,474         2,199,243      
6/30/2026 15,344,431          13,980,078         1,364,353      
6/30/2027 15,349,866          13,988,626         1,361,240      
6/30/2028 9,477,156           13,987,133         (4,509,977)     
6/30/2029 9,477,981           13,995,657         (4,517,676)     
6/30/2030 9,475,461           13,993,617         (4,518,157)     
6/30/2031 9,488,040           14,009,485         (4,521,445)     
6/30/2032 8,700,763           13,224,569         (4,523,806)     
6/30/2033 8,687,170           13,212,467         (4,525,296)     
6/30/2034 8,685,928           13,210,118         (4,524,190)     
6/30/2035 8,511,686           13,041,916         (4,530,230)     
6/30/2036 8,496,319           12,404,805         (3,908,486)     
6/30/2037 5,072,483           5,072,483           -               
6/30/2038 3,304,096           3,304,096           -               

191,331,315        200,503,056       (9,171,741)     

Net Present Value (1,224,885)   

* City has already paid to date $9,035,000 in principal and $2,521,278 
in interest (not counting GEFA loans)

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On a Net Present Value basis (the value of future cash flows in today’s dollars), the cost to refinancing 
and restructuring the Refunded Bonds is $1,224,885, inclusive of the cost of issuing new bonds. 
 
 
 
Regards, 

 
 

Ed Wall     Whit Moloney 
Managing Director   Senior Vice President  
 
 
 
Enclosed: Schedules 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 508



 

 

Exhibit E – General Fund Expense Reductions 

 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 509



Budget Adjustments

General Fund Reductions

Department Adjustments

Non-Depatmental Proposed Reductions 32,181.00                            
Information Technology Proposed Reductions 56,707.00                            
Fire Proposed Reductions 131,400.00                          
Parks Proposed Reductions 126,000.00                          Part-time budget & capital 
Highways & Streets Proposed Reductions 50,707.00                            Salaries Vacant postion
Recreation Proposed Reductions 312,217.00                          Salaries Vacant postions & Operating

Sub- Total 709,212.00                          

Total General Fund Reductions 709,212.00                          

Car Rental Reductions

Police Proposed Reductions 917,500.00                          

Total Reductions 1,626,712.00                      

General Fund Capital Budget funded by 
Car Rental 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 510



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8499  

Updated: 12/2/2020 11:37 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 2, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Mercedes Miller, Convention Center Executive Director 

 

RE:  Request to Temporarily Close the GICC & Arena 

 

 

Based on the current pandemic and economic downturn, I am seeking permission from the 

Honorable Mayor and Council to close the GICC effective January 1, 2021 through April 30, 

2021. Current and projected revenues at this time does not support the facility remaining open. 

However, to ensure a speedy return to business, I am also requesting essential staff to remain on 

site at the GICC and Gateway Arena in order to solicit and book new and returning business, to 

maintain and conduct the necessary service and maintenance to ensure optimal readiness once 

we reopen and security to protect and monitor the campus.  

 

Thank you. 

 

 

 

Review: 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 12/01/2020 6:42 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/02/2020 11:38 AM 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 12/03/2020 9:53 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:53 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

10.B

Packet Pg. 511



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8486  

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:33 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Revisions to the Acceptable Use of City-Owned Vehicles Policy 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Update regarding revisions to the City of College Park’s Acceptable Use of City-

Owned Vehicles policy. 

 

On November 17, 2020, a city council member collided with a parked car while driving a city 

vehicle.  While there was minor property damage, the parked vehicle was not occupied and no 

one was injured. 

 

I have since been asked whether the city policies establishing accident protocols-particularly the 

one requiring immediate drug and alcohol screening--can be applied to elected officials.  I have 

reviewed the applicable city policies and, as I anticipated, these policies by their plain terms 

apply only to city employees and do not extend to elected officials.  Thus, the requirement for 

drug and alcohol testing cannot be applied here. 

 

The Office of the City Manager is hereby executing revisions to said policy, as noted offering 

specific clarity that only employees (not elected officials, volunteers, interns, or citizens who 

may be working on city business) are authorized to operate city-owned vehicles. 

 

Meanwhile, as noted in the attached memorandum from Deputy Chief of Police Sharis McCrary, 

the aforementioned vehicle accident will result in the City of College Park being responsible for 

a $1,000.00 deductible expense.  Likewise, the newly revised policy is being forwarded to the 

City’s insurance carriers for respective clarity and edification purposes as well. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Acceptable Use of City-Owned Vehicles Policy (PDF) 

 Acceptable Use of City-Owned Vehicles Policy_Proposed Revision (PDF) 

 Letterhead PD official (002) (DOCX) 

12.A

Packet Pg. 512



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8486)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 10:33 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/01/2020 11:50 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/02/2020 11:15 AM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 12/02/2020 4:57 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 12/02/2020 11:24 AM 

 Sharis McCrary Completed 12/03/2020 10:38 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:54 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

12.A

Packet Pg. 513











 

 

COLLEGE PARK POLICE DEPARTMENT 
FERMAN WILLIFORD 

CHIEF 

SHARIS MCCRARY 

DEPUTY CHIEF 

 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 

DATE: November 30, 2020  
 
TO: Terrence Moore 
 
FROM: Sharis McCrary 
 
THROUGH: Chief F. Williford 
 
REF: City Vehicle Accident   
 
 
Executive Command Staff was notified of a city vehicle involved in a minor accident on November 17, 2020 

approximately 3:08pm on Greenspring Rd. The city vehicle was identified as a code enforcement vehicle 

(2019 Ford F150 tag # GV7612M).  

 

It was also brought to our attention that Councilman Gay was the driver of the vehicle at the time of the 

minor accident and was considered the at fault driver. We were informed he was backing up when the 

incident occurred.  

 

This city vehicle is the assigned vehicle of employee Shiya Townsend, she was present as a passenger in the 

vehicle with Councilman Gay during the time of incident.  

 

Although the accident seemed minor in nature, we are responsible for the deductible. The deductible is 

$1,000.00.  

 

For any additional details see accident report number 20-11525. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3717 COLLEGE STREET • COLLEGE PARK , GA 30337 • TELEPHONE: (404) 761-3131  • FAX: (404   

12.A.c

Packet Pg. 518



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8490  

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:35 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 2, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update 

 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council with the names, addresses, and outstanding balances 

of the top ten delinquent property tax payers as well as a brief update on collection efforts. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To proceed with established policies and procedures to ensure 

collection of these accounts.  To escalate the collection process as appropriate to minimize the 

loss of revenue.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The City of College Park contracts with GTS (Government Tax Services) to 

facilitate the collection of delinquent accounts to the extent necessary.  Past collection efforts 

have included GTS providing assistance with filing liens and assisting with tax sales.     

 

COST TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  None.  

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING:  December 7, 2020 

 

OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  Aggressive collection efforts to full 

extent of the law. 

 

STAFF:  Philip Latona, Property Tax Accountant 

 

 

12.B

Packet Pg. 519



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8490)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/2/2020 1:35 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 11252020 (PDF) 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 11252020 2018 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 12/02/2020 12:44 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/02/2020 1:35 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/02/2020 1:56 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

12.B

Packet Pg. 520







   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8500  

Updated: 12/3/2020 9:19 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: December 3, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Top 10 Delinquent Customers 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To update Mayor/Council regarding Top 10 delinquent customers, commercial and 

residential.  

 

REASON:  To keep updated on Top 10 commercial and residential accounts to ensure the 

accounts balances are current.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To deliver information to Mayor/Council by Customer Service team. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Each council meeting we deliver data that indicates who the Top 10 

customers are based on balances owed, length of time unpaid. 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: December 7, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS: N/A. 

 

STAFF: Customer Service Manager  

12.C

Packet Pg. 523



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8500)  Meeting of December 7, 2020 

Updated: 12/3/2020 9:19 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 CF Aging 11-30-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 CC Aging 11-30-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 RF Aging 11-30-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 RC Aging 11-30-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 November  2020 Cut-on report 113020 - Redact (XLSX) 

 Top Ten Report 12012020 - Redact (XLSX) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 12/02/2020 2:12 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 12/03/2020 9:20 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 12/03/2020 10:57 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 12/07/2020 7:30 PM 

12.C

Packet Pg. 524



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:08:45 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 1 
 
 2441.46 1391.95 0.00 0.00 3833.41 11/11/2020 1000.00 
  799.94 430.53 0.00 0.00 1230.47 11/20/2020 900.00 

------------------------------------------------------- 

2 Subtotals for Cycle 001 3241.40 1822.48 0.00 0.00 5063.88 

Cycle: 8 

 
                                                         2567.94 1095.57 0.00 0.00 3663.51 09/29/2020 1149.59 O 
  1507.30 808.99 0.00 0.00 2316.29 09/25/2020 2089.90 T 
 791.58 389.11 439.74 350.49 1970.92 08/05/2020 937.91 O 
                                    1595.27 1138.07 325.58 0.00 3058.92 10/26/2020 1000.00 T 
                                                          323.80 292.28 265.70 1979.14 2860.92 12/13/2019 109.00 T 
 250.11 67.14 79.87 1138.83 1535.95 O 
 330.88 349.36 455.03 252.79 1388.06 11/09/2020 T 
 643.41 376.34 31.37 0.00 1051.12 10/23/2020 400.00 

------------------------------------------------------- 

8 Subtotals for Cycle 008 8010.29 4516.86 1597.29 3721.25 17845.69 
 

Cycle: 15 

 
  1011.40 107.91 0.00 0.00 1119.31 11/13/2020 1000.00 T 
 3449.65 158.36 0.00 0.00 3608.01 11/20/2020 1583.55 O 
 12536.28 6570.56 0.00 0.00 19106.84 10/09/2020 500.00 
 1185.92 791.82 230.50 0.00 2208.24 11/06/2020 777.68 T 
                   1191.96 650.67 51.13 0.00 1893.76 11/16/2020 731.47 T 
  1276.86 761.33 0.00 0.00 2038.19 09/28/2020 1639.52 T 
  715.52 480.83 0.00 0.00 1196.35 09/10/2020 516.65 
 621.76 307.65 328.11 0.00 1257.52 08/12/2020 161.27 T 
 826.62 393.44 393.62 698.92 2312.60 11/02/2020 100.00 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

9 Subtotals for Cycle 015 22815.97 10222.57 1003.36 698.92 34740.82 

Cycle: 21 

 68.00 34.00 34.00 1140.10 1276.10 10/30/2020 50.00 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 

1 Subtotals for Cycle 021 68.00 34.00 34.00 1140.10 1276.10 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 525



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:08:48 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

 
 

Cycle: 25 

 

 
  480.81 480.81 480.81 480.81 1923.24 07/28/2020 480.81 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

1 Subtotals for Cycle 025 480.81 480.81 480.81 480.81 1923.24 

 
========================================================== 

21 Grand Totals 34616.47 3115.46 60849.73 
17076.72 6041.08 

 
 
 
 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
                                               Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                               A/R Block 1:30 
                                               A/R Block 2:60 
                                               A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’CF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 526



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:08:51 Page: 3 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 527



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:08:55 Page: 4 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 528



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:08:56 Page: 5 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

 

 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 529



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:09:49 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

Cycle: 15 
 
 8942.53 500.00 0.00 0.00 9442.53 11/20/2020 3380.92 O 
 
 

------------------------------------------------------- 

1 Subtotals for Cycle 015 8942.53 500.00 0.00 0.00 9442.53 

 
========================================================== 

1 Grand Totals 8942.53 0.00 9442.53 
500.00 0.00 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                                Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                                A/R Block 1:30 
                                                A/R Block 2:60 
                                                A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’CC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.b

Packet Pg. 530



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:09:52 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

12.C.b

Packet Pg. 531



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:05:35 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 1 
 
  234.81 215.48 195.78 1719.87 2365.94 02/04/2019 47.81 
  194.05 153.87 176.96 666.79 1191.67 02/29/2020 315.00 T 
 349.36 471.02 480.17 0.00 1300.55 08/27/2020 678.00 O 
  254.60 171.81 211.35 396.98 1034.74 07/26/2020 350.00 T 
  556.28 362.07 225.64 0.00 1143.99 09/21/2020 500.00 T 
 726.00 363.00 40.65 206.86 1336.51 O 
  728.38 253.52 431.44 232.48 1645.82 10/26/2020 200.00 O 
  414.59 333.18 407.13 0.00 1154.90 09/04/2020 362.00 T 
 305.45 121.85 323.75 823.62 1574.67 
 580.59 322.48 327.15 343.20 1573.42 10/23/2020 322.48 T 
                                                          372.85 323.00 352.98 0.00 1048.83 08/03/2020 239.65 T 
  268.57 286.32 336.61 144.76 1036.26 09/03/2020 65.38 
 370.28 266.51 274.55 377.89 1289.23 06/02/2020 T 
 865.39 499.32 0.00 0.00 1364.71 10/26/2020 O 
 459.09 304.46 342.35 470.21 1576.11 10/17/2020 300.38 
 633.84 690.17 209.83 0.00 1533.84 11/16/2020 100.00 
  1265.73 743.93 435.19 0.00 2444.85 10/02/2020 1000.00 O 
  1974.74 1546.68 0.00 0.00 3521.42 11/20/2020 500.00 T 
  564.09 451.06 59.19 0.00 1074.34 11/18/2020 100.00 T 
  490.83 354.51 349.54 0.00 1194.88 10/30/2020 50.00 O 
  593.97 222.41 324.35 654.93 1795.66 05/05/2020 
 536.48 266.77 373.06 1420.91 2597.22 11/19/2020 500.00 T 
                                            247.85 150.82 223.80 403.75 1026.22 T 
                                            792.38 533.62 535.77 790.75 2652.52 08/28/2020 395.50 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

24 Subtotals for Cycle 001 13780.20 9407.86 6637.24 8653.00 38478.30 

Cycle: 8 
 
 815.04 417.79 920.86 0.00 2153.69 11/21/2020 100.00 O 
 467.22 475.72 831.42 78.68 1853.04 09/16/2020 100.00 
  702.01 384.94 542.15 109.86 1738.96 10/26/2020 450.00 
  656.68 351.95 188.13 0.00 1196.76 O 
 763.86 329.09 271.79 365.22 1729.96 10/02/2020 300.00 
  729.40 525.40 530.31 0.00 1785.11 11/10/2020 380.00 T 
  985.34 632.10 566.39 810.06 2993.89 09/08/2020 400.00 O 
  366.45 270.16 418.48 87.43 1142.52 10/19/2020 250.00 T 
  224.24 192.97 334.86 314.91 1066.98 11/08/2020 106.92 T 
 178.54 163.29 297.39 1216.90 1856.12 07/19/2020 65.00 T 
 576.14 257.49 395.01 804.02 2032.66 08/10/2020 700.00 T 
 1386.66 543.46 71.43 0.00 2001.55 11/05/2020 50.00 T 
  359.41 87.99 329.45 600.13 1376.98 11/20/2020 100.00 T 
 412.61 180.69 250.81 215.62 1059.73 08/21/2020 347.00 T 
 700.44 251.61 254.22 447.38 1653.65 08/12/2020 390.00 T 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 532



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:06:26 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  
 428.95 406.86 209.40 0.00 1045.21 11/16/2020 146.00 T 
 444.34 203.64 359.30 435.81 1443.09 11/10/2020 150.00 
  546.40 393.31 127.05 0.00 1066.76 11/17/2020 367.34 O 
 518.59 270.14 260.60 0.00 1049.33 09/14/2020 400.00 O 
 291.95 153.21 275.30 606.46 1326.92 04/16/2020 109.70 T 
  486.07 364.46 485.80 197.67 1534.00 09/23/2020 150.00 T 
                                                 451.48 249.15 346.15 558.30 1605.08 08/11/2020 300.00 T 
  668.03 253.74 402.22 0.00 1323.99 08/31/2020 1746.29 T 
  146.87 214.75 325.33 464.09 1151.04 T 
  495.30 427.50 583.62 85.92 1592.34 11/20/2020 100.00 T 
  580.16 286.16 400.73 729.69 1996.74 06/15/2020 200.00 T 
 376.65 250.65 289.81 1336.83 2253.94 10/01/2020 175.00 
  604.00 282.23 479.32 600.56 1966.11 06/22/2020 56.09 T 
  303.12 191.01 305.27 598.66 1398.06 02/21/2020 131.19 T 
 503.50 373.30 359.03 782.96 2018.79 08/14/2020 300.00 T 
  164.03 95.19 207.44 591.53 1058.19 08/11/2020 100.0                                                               
                    342.54 153.98 221.70 528.49 1246.71 07/31/2020 102.00 T 
  262.53 184.29 302.38 571.41 1320.61 06/29/2020 100.00 T 
  164.14 104.73 136.66 1051.42 1456.95 09/10/2020 100.00 T 
 388.00 248.17 256.47 151.85 1044.49 O 
 230.48 322.52 547.71 0.00 1100.71 T 
 379.97 224.58 351.61 367.20 1323.36 11/02/2020 36.00 T 
  213.08 143.21 110.13 768.31 1234.73 10/05/2020 75.00 T 
 569.37 241.94 322.08 453.13 1586.52 07/05/2020 261.00 T 
  398.17 324.97 362.15 0.00 1085.29 08/25/2020 313.93 T 
 549.49 287.14 324.49 161.28 1322.40 09/17/2020 324.49 T 
  238.38 111.25 209.19 662.50 1221.32 07/30/2020 450.00 
                                        538.50 284.86 346.76 459.81 1629.93 10/19/2020 200.00 O 
 859.94 719.56 225.24 0.00 1804.74 11/18/2020 170.00 O 
 307.84 275.55 362.32 142.93 1088.64 11/04/2020 100.00 T 
  81.94 41.08 70.98 1365.58 1559.58 02/06/2020 608.92 
  514.74 296.22 388.08 0.00 1199.04 10/26/2020 644.00 T 
  1079.80 378.02 93.03 0.00 1550.85 10/24/2020 225.00 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

48 Subtotals for Cycle 008 23454.39 13822.02 16250.05 18722.60 72249.09 
 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 533



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:06:48 Page: 3 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

Cycle: 15 

 
  299.37 227.36 337.55 143.90 1008.18 09/22/2020 500.00 T 
  511.76 255.53 243.06 138.41 1148.76 09/19/2020 250.59 T 
 81.11 170.54 217.21 766.79 1235.65 08/31/2020 37.00 T 
  167.62 191.17 258.69 649.26 1266.74 08/13/2020 500.00 T 
  1095.93 633.71 811.09 0.00 2540.73 09/22/2020 600.00 T 
                                         414.75 222.13 397.61 0.00 1034.49 09/09/2020 334.00 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 

6 Subtotals for Cycle 015 2570.54 1700.44 2265.21 1698.36 8234.55 

========================================================== 
78 Grand Totals 39805.13 25152.50 118961.91 

24930.32 29073.96 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                               Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                               A/R Block 1:30 
                                               A/R Block 2:60 

                                               A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’RF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 534



 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 535



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/30/2020 08:10:55 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 8 

  115.89 124.79 255.07 506.24 1001.99 02/26/2020 180.00 T 
 198.13 114.94 188.05 533.00 1034.12 01/04/2020 99.52 T 
  518.04 264.65 358.93 596.73 1738.35 01/31/2020 56.94 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

3 Subtotals for Cycle 008 832.06 504.38 802.05 1635.97 3774.46 

Cycle: 15 
 
  614.87 398.79 59.24 0.00 1072.90 10/23/2020 140.00 T 
  254.57 173.56 247.20 363.62 1038.95 10/22/2020 125.00 T 
  1182.02 201.29 0.00 0.00 1383.31 11/16/2020 500.00 O 
 699.86 510.52 565.85 1056.10 2832.33 11/16/2020 600.00 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

4 Subtotals for Cycle 015 2751.32 1284.16 872.29 1419.72 6327.49 

 
========================================================== 

7 Grand Totals 3583.38 1674.34 10101.95 
1788.54 3055.69 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                                Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                                A/R Block 1:30 
                                                A/R Block 2:60 
                                                A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’RC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.d

Packet Pg. 536



November 2020 Reconnects

Customer's 

Account #

Occupant 

code Customer's Name

Date Work-

orders were 

created 

Balance Due @ 

Cut-Off  

Amount paid @ 

Cut-on  

Prepared by 

K.Johnson Grand Totals 41,773.76$       30,455.40$      

11/30/2020 $1,490.98 $1,440.98

11/24/2020 $1,360.30 $1,150.00

11/24/2020 $691.18 $665.64

11/23/2020 $1,296.77 $600.00

11/19/2020 $1,158.97 $1,158.97

11/19/2020 $1,142.34 $1,500.00

11/19/2020 $3,361.96 $3,361.96

11/19/2020 $1,552.19 $1,274.64

11/19/2020 $1,426.96 $1,131.79

11/19/2020 $1,901.84 $1,710.26

11/19/2020 $1,510.31 $800.00

11/19/2020 $1,882.14 $1,882.14

11/19/2020 $1,175.02 $400.00

11/19/2020 $2,171.81 $1,500.00

 11/19/2020 $1,103.14 $600.00

11/19/2020 $1,165.80 $585.00

11/19/2020 $1,356.64 $500.00

11/19/2020 $2,169.82 $1,500.00

11/19/2020 $1,133.46 $507.00

11/19/2020 $1,911.57 $1,911.57

11/19/2020 $1,057.51 $650.00

11/16/2020 $812.09 $0.00

11/16/2020 $3,449.36 $2,675.13

11/16/2020 $2,625.23 $731.47

11/16/2020 $1,193.45 $816.63

11/16/2020 $902.22 $902.22

11/9/2020 770.70$ 500.00$

Grand Totals: $41,773.76 $30,455.40

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 537



September/October 2020 Reconnects

Customer's 

Account #

Occupant 

code Customer's Name

Date Work-

orders were 

created 

Balance Due @ 

Cut-Off  

Amount paid @ 

Cut-on  

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 538



Prepared by 

K.Johnson Grand Totals 15,297.32$       11,666.49$      

Page 2 Grand Total -$                           -$                          

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 539



page*1

Remaining  Balance  

11,318.36$        

$50.00

$210.30

$25.54

$0.00

$0.00

-$357.66

$0.00

$277.55

$295.17

$191.58

$710.31

$0.00

$775.02

$671.81

$503.14

$580.80

$856.64

$669.82

$626.46

$0.00

$407.51

$812.09

$774.23

$1,893.76

$376.82

$0.00

270.70$                      

11,318.36$                

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 540



page*2

Remaining  Balance  

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 541



3,630.83$          

-$                            

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 542



City of College Park

TOP TEN  UTILITY CUSTOMER OUTSTANDING  BALANCES

12/1/2020

Prepared By Kymberli Johnson 

Business

Prior 

Adjustments

Payment 

Plan Liens BUSINESS  NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $9,154.31 $1,627.00 $1,818.14 $12,599.45 Yes 30days

Account is Active customer filed 

Bankruptcy 11-03-2020.A pymt of 

$500.00 was made on Nov. 09th. 

n/a No No $2,634.80 $0.00 $65.58 $2,700.38 Yes 30days

Account Active reminder letter was 

sent on Nov. 12th. A pymt of 

$1,000.00 on Nov.11th. 

n/a No No $1,412.74 $501.64 $469.49 $2,383.87 Yes 60days

Account is Active reminder letter was 

sent on Nov. 19th. A pymt of 

$1,000.00 was made Oct. 26th.

 

Apartments

Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens APARTMENT NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $0.00 $0.00 $6,080.91 $6,080.91 Yes 30 days 

Account is Active reminder letter was 

sent on Nov. 10th. Last pymt was 

made on Nov. 20th for $4,187.57.

n/a No No $0.00 $0.00 $5,766.84 $5,766.84 Yes 30 days 

Account is Active reminder was sent 

on Nov. 10th. Disconnection scheduled 

for Nov. 16th. Customer made a 

payment of $4,650.60 on Nov 20th. 

n/a No No $0.00 $0.00 $5,287.10 $5,287.10 Yes 30 days

Account is  Active reminder letter 

was sent on Nov. 11th. Last pymt was 

made on Nov. 20th for $4,187.57

n/a No No $0.00 $1,811.52 $535.79 $2,347.31 Yes 30 days

Account is Active reminder letter was 

sent on Nov. 19th. Electric is inactive 

on this account. Last pymt made on 

this account was on Sept. 20th $ 

1149.59

Residential
Prior 

Adjustment
Payment 

Plan Liens CUSTOMER NAME Account # Power
Water & 
Sewer

Storm Water & 
Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 
LETTER 

AGE OF 
DEBT Notes or Status

No No No $1,475.27 $929.37 $297.41 $2,702.05 Yes

180 

days

Account is Active a reminder 

letter was sent on Nov. 19th. The 

account holder is a Senior Citizen. 

No No No $1,215.88 $1,028.16 $295.05 $2,539.09 Yes

180 

days

Account is Active customer is 

currently in the hospital battling 

Covid. Family is trying to obtain 

POA for her accounts last pymt of 

$600.00 was made 11-16-20.

No No No $1,515.31 $722.20 $149.47 $2,386.98 No 90 days 

Account is Active a reminder 

letter was sent on Sept.16 th. The 

account holder is a Senior Citizen. 

TOTALS $17,408.31 $6,619.89 $20,765.78 $44,793.98
NUL Signifies that Lien has not been  filed due to legal statue (not property owner)

* Represents Lien filed against account

N/A Signifies account Lien has not been  filed

yes Signifies account received prior billing adjustment

N/A Signifies account that has not received prior billing adjustment

12.C.f

Packet Pg. 543




